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Design Concept
With the concept of a digital pixel free mix, bringing out the
renewable energy portfolio and emerging business strategies of
CR Power.

(R Power will strive to expand the Company's power sales business,
strengthen service capabilities, enhance customer adhesiveness,
and focus on industrial energy effciency, smart buildings and
intelligent parks to promote integrated energy projects, and
continue to promote the application of advanced technologies such
as energy storage, hydrogen energy and energy conservation.
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Company” or “CR

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (the"
Power") is one of the most efficient and profitable integrated energy
companies in China, which invests, develops, operates and manages

coal-fired power plants, wind farms, photovoltaic power plants,
hydro-electric plants and other clean and renewable energy projects in
the more affluent regions or regions with abundant coal resources in
China. Its business also covers distributed energy, power sales, intelligent
energy, coal mining, and other areas.

As at 31 December 2019, CR Power had 36 coal-fired power plants, 96
wind farms, 21 photovoltaic power plants, 2 hydro-electric plants and 3
gas-fired power plants in commercial operation. The total attributable
operational generation capacity of the Company was 40,392MW, with
31.1% of our capacity located in Eastern China, 27.9% located in Central
China, 17.6% located in Southern China, 13.3% located in Northern China,
4.8% located in Northeastern China, 3.3% located in Southwestern China
and 2.0% located in Northwestern China. Attributable operational
generation capacity in wind, hydro-electric and photovoltaic power
totalled 9,420MW, accounting for approximately 23.3% of its total
attributable operational generation capacity.
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Earnings per share
attributable to owners
of the Company (HK$)

Basic

Diluted

Turnover (HKS'000)

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company (HK$'000)

Dividend per share (HKS)

Consolidated statement
of financial position
(HK$'000)

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Total assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank and other borrowings

Attributable operational
generation capacity (MW)

Eastern China

Central China

Southern China

Northern China

Northeastern China
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Northwestern China
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Renewable energy
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1.37

1.37

67,757,632

6,950,345

0.548

186,166,238
29,569,488
71,358,497

57,661,216

72,923,979

215,735,726
4,907,306

94,136,758

12,582
11,250
7,097
5,363
1,952
1,328

820

40,392

9,420

0.83
0.83

76,940,125

3,950,435

0.328

178,274,093
29,949,074
71,356,447
59,582,109

70,135,314

208,223,167
7,977,153
96,675,137

12,472
10,507
6,819
3,792
1,910
1,216
721

37,438

7,544

0.97
0.97

73,311,677

4,623,323

0.875

193,276,019
27,696,451
72,623,180
67,607,410

75,213,819

220,972,470
5,381,686
100,922,869

12,358
9,838
6,583
3,706
1,751
1,171

671

36,077

6,184

1.62
1.61

66,212,590

7,708,373

0.875

176,225,781
23,885,688
73,885,120
51,661,486

69,020,906

200,111,469
4,347,022
91,463,402

12,565
9,554
6,674
3,706
1,722
1,702

261

36,184

5,042

2.10
2.10

71,435,875

10,025,241

0.85

182,252,640
25,833,239
64,681,383
59,665,153

70,917,575

208,085,879
7,273,945
88,517,336

12,421
9,373
7,037
3,706
1,622

368
205

34,731

4,535




TURNOVER NET GENERATION VOLUME OF OPERATING POWER PLANTS

b BENEREES
(HKSmillion B & 7T) (thousand MWh FIKELF)

184,980

2015

185,993

2016

190,511

2017

195,358

2018

67,758 193,607
2019 2019
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ATTRIBUTABLE OPERATIONAL GENERATION CAPACITY
RAGIHE ARGHE EEELRHEE
(HKSmillion BE&# 1) (MW JKEL)

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY RENEWABLE ENERGY ATTRIBUTABLE OPERATIONAL
MRACIEEARBLIES GENERATION CAPACITY
(HKSmillion B&E7T) OHYEREEELRREESSE

(MW JKEL)
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SERVICE AREAS
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Thermal
Power
XE

Wind power,hydropower,
photovoltaic power
B/ KE - KR

Power sales

&E

Integrated
energy services
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As at 31 December 2019, the total
attributable operational generation
capacity of the Company is
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PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ EFFECTIVE ATTRIBUTABLE
AUTONOMOUS INSTALLED EQUITY INSTALLED
REGION CAPACITY (MW) INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
#/HED BAAE POWER PLANTS HRE (KE) BHER RREERAECKR)

ELIHT Changshu 100.0%
NI Changzhou Al 25.0%
LErE Changzhou Gas 100.0%
Huaxin &= 72.0%
Nanjing Bangiao 79.0%

=
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park mR{EIE 90.0%
R

NERLERGEREL E 100.0%
Tongshan Eig|il] 59.9%
Xuzhou R 42.7%
Yangzhou No. 2 BME= 45.0%
Zhenjiang ST 42.5%
Nantong Wind FEEE . 100.0%
Yancheng Wind i [ B ; 80.0%
Huai'an Photovoltaic LI . 100.0%
Sugian Photovoltaic [R5 N . 100.0%

Guangdong Guangzhou Thermal BEMNARE . 100.0%
s Haifeng st . 100.0%
BRA Liyujiang A . 60.0%
Liyujiang B . 100.0%
Huilai Wind = . 100.0%
Lianzhou Wind N [ . 100.0%
Lufeng Wind . 100.0%
Leizhou Wind NS . 100.0%
Shantou Chaonan Wind PN . 100.0%
Shantou Haojiang Wind b . 100.0%
Shantou Wind JLZERE . 100.0%
Xinfeng Wind LREE . 100.0%
Xinyi Wind Bk . 100.0%
Xuwen Wind . 100.0%
Yangjiang Wind 5 L2 . 100.0%
Yangjiang Wind Phase Il 5 ) F_H . 100.0%
Haifeng Photovoltaic his N ) 100.0%
Yingde Photovoltaic EEHR . 100.0%

Henan Dengfeng BE . 75.0%
< o Gucheng = . 100.0%
EINETR) Jiaozuo Longyuan FEERER . 100.0%
Shouyangshan o 85.0%
Anyang Wind . 100.0%
Biyang Wind W £ . 100.0%
Huaxian Wind B %E 3 . 100.0%
Lushan Wind . 100.0%
Neihuang Wind ERE . 100.0%
Queshan wind . 100.0%
Tanghe Wind EIEE . 100.0%
Wugang Wind . 100.0%
Yanshi Wind . 100.0%
Yexian Wind HEEmE . 100.0%

Hebei Bohai Xinqu G HE . 100.0%
< o Cangzhou b=TAl . 95.0%
AdEE Caofeidian Eica : 51.0%
Caofeidian (Phase II) Bioa=H . 51.0%
Tangshan Fengrun ELEE . 60.0%
Chengde Weichang Wind RIEESRE . 100.0%
Qinhuangdao Wind <2 5@ . 100.0%
Mulanweichang Wind ANEESEE . 100.0%
Handan Wind HEHERE . 100.0%
Caofeidian Photovoltaic . CEN

Liaoning Panjin ;. . 100.0%
e Shenhai Thermal P 3 . 54.1%
REH Beipiao Wind =[5 3 . 100.0%
Fuxin Wind ¥R . 100.0%
Fuxin Wind Phase Il FRE_H . 100.0%
Jianping Wind . G . 100.0%
Jinzhou Wind & M 3 B . 100.0%
Linghai Wind %8R E . 100.0%

Shandong Heze SHI 90.0%
o Dongying Wind =EE 100.0%
IERAE Feixian Wind EZEE 100.0%
Haiyang Wind 100.0%

Jining Wind b . 100.0%

Linyi Wind BT E & . 100.0%

Penglai Daliuhang Wind eSS 1TRE 100.0%

Penglai Daxindian Wind ERANEERE 100.0%

Jixian Wind Phase | EHRAE—H 100.0%

Jixian Wind Phase Il FRRE —k . 100.0%

Qingdao Wind Phase | & 5§ . 100.0%

Qingdao Wind Phase Il - 100.0%

Rizhao Wind SENE 100.0%

Weihai Huancui Wind 100.0%

Weihai Wind g 100.0%

Wulian Wind Phase | i T . 100.0%

Wulian Wind Phase Il &8 _H . 100.0%

Yantai Penglai Wind Al . 95.0%

Yantai Wind 95.0%

Zibo Wind SERE 100.0%

Zoucheng Wind Y0 . 100.0%

Qingdao Wind 100.0%

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT




PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/
AUTONOMOUS

REGION

&/ HEh/ BAE

Inner Mongolia
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RESHBERE

POWER PLANTS
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Manzhouli Wind Phase Il

Wulanchabu Hongmu Wind
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SR
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INSTALLED
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HEHABCKR)
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INSTALLED
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Hubei
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Guangxi Autonomous Region
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Hezhou
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Hezhou Photovoltaic
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HEE
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Zhejiang
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Honghe Hydro
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FiEHRS

WANG CHUANDONG
T1Fik

Chairman of the Board

ESEXE

Dear Shareholders,

China's economy has transitioned from a phase of rapid growth
to its current phase of high-quality development, and in order to
adapt this transition, it is increasingly imperative for the power
industry to transform and progress. Supplying high-quality and
clean energy is one of the key missions for the industry.

In the past year, China's total power consumption grew steadily,
and the energy structure continued to adjust. The power industry
further shifted towards green and low-carbon development.

CR Power has actively responded to the challenges posed by
macroeconomic conditions and reform of the power industry.
Focused on transformation, innovation and quality development,
the Company has accelerated its development of renewable
energy, and continuously promoted business and asset structure
optimisation.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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PERFORMANCE RESULTS

In 2019, the Company newly commissioned a total of 1,871MW
of attributable wind power capacity, representing an increase of
684MW over the previous year, setting a new record high for its
annual wind power capacity additions. The attributable capacity
mix of renewable energy increased by 3.2 percentage points to
23.3%, from 20.1% in 2018.

Mainly due to business restructuring from the disposal of coal-
mining assets in 2018, revenue for the year decreased by 11.9%
compared to the previous year to HK$67.758 billion. With lower
coal prices and newly commissioned wind power capacity, profit
attributable to owners of the Company increased by approximately
66.8% compared to 2018 to HKS6.59 billion.

Dividend for the year will amount to HKS0.548 per share, of which
the final dividend proposed is HK$0.348 per share.

FEAKRH

20194 - NAIFEREEEZA=1,871K
ot EFEN684IKE - BIREFRE
REFLHE o Al BERRESIEEIGLL
23.3% 0 20184 20.1% A3 2@ &
DR o

X018 F HERKEES XK EBAR
FE PFLEEER2018F NE11.9%
7677581887 c HREE THREREER
RITE - AQAHAE AEEFEER2018
FEHA66.8% E65.9EBTT °
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REARE B.50.348 87T ©

Annual Report 2019 £k




10

BUSINESS REVIEW

CR Power accelerated the construction and commissioning of wind
power projects. The Company recorded a new record high in newly
commissioned wind capacity and also has a wind power capacity
under construction of 3,809MW at the end of the year. CR Power
will continue to do its best to further increase its mix of renewable
energy generation capacity.

The Company has been actively exploring potential offshore wind
power projects and has obtained preliminary development rights
for certain projects in the coastal provinces of China, including an
approval for a 400MW offshore wind power project in Cangnan in
Zhejiang province.

While continuing to improve the efficiency of wind power
generation, we developed and fully implemented an alert system
for wind turbines, which gradually decreased their unplanned
outage times and power loss from failures. In 2019, the average
full-load equivalent utilisation hours of wind farms amounted to
2,201 hours, 119 hours higher than the national average for wind
power generation units.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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The Company further optimised the structure of its coal-fired power
business. Its Caofeidian project in Hebei province commissioned
one 1,000MW ultra-supercritical generation unit and its Wujianfang
project in Inner Mongolia commissioned two 660MW ultra-
supercritical generation units. Designed with the most advanced
and efficient power generation technology, these units are
among the best in the industry in terms of power consumption
and emission levels. Simultaneously, the Company had shut down
two power plants, disposed of a number of projects with minority
interests, and further optimised its asset structure, laying a solid
foundation for long-term development.

We have been closely monitoring the reform of the power industry
in search of new opportunities, particularly in the power sales
business. By the end of 2019, we have set up 25 provincial power
sales companies in China, of which 22 have been participating in
regional electricity trading, successfully transacting 87.8 billion
kWh of electricity throughout the year, representing a year-on-year
increase of 36%. Our six power sales companies in Henan, Anhui,
Beijing, Hebei, Inner Mongolia and Guangxi ranked first in their
respective markets for electricity sold. The number of contracted
customers continued to grow and amounted to 5,358 in 2019,
adding 2,539 industrial and commercial customers as compared
with the end of the previous year.

We actively explored new businesses in energy storage, energy
efficiency services and incremental distribution networks.
Many projects commenced pilot run trials and have achieved
breakthroughs. Other projects have taken advantage of the diverse
strengths of CRH and commissioned projects in real estate projects
and factories of the group.
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Environmental protection: In 2019, we invested a total of
RMB1.828 billion in environmental protection mainly for energy
conservation of coal-fired power plants and the innovation and
upgrade of environmental technologies, resulting in further
improvement in the key indicators of energy consumption and
emission. Our subsidiary coal-fired power plants recorded an
average net generation standard coal consumption rate of 296.64
g/kWh, down by 2.90 g/kwh from 299.54 g/kWh in 2018. The
emission of sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxide both decreased by
0.01 g/kWh over 2018. We actively pushed forward the shutdown
and technical upgrade of coal mines. As at the end of 2019, 12
power station coal yards have been converted into fully enclosed
coal yards, 10 are in the process of being converted, together
representing 81.5% of the number of the Company's coal-fired
power plants.

To protect water resources, Shouyangshan, Dengfeng, Shenyang,
Nanjing Thermal, Changshu and other power plants achieved zero
discharge of wastewater. Due to their impressive results, Hezhou,
Wenzhou, Xuzhou, Jiaozuo and other power plants were well-
regarded by the local governments and categorized as water-
saving enterprises.

To protect the environment and reduce waste disposal or discharge,
we actively explored utilization and recovery of waste. 16 of
our coal-fired power plants carried out combustion treatment of
municipal sludge and industrial waste disposal. Throughout the
year, approximately 748,000 tonnes of sludge was combusted,
and 21.6 tonnes of various industrial and production wastes were
combusted or reused, which helped the local communities tackle
the problem of urban environment management.

In actively addressing the challenges of climate change, Haifeng
Power Plant Carbon Capture Testing Platform was put into
operation, which is Asia's first multi-threaded international carbon
capture testing platform in a coal-fired power plant. This project
reduces carbon dioxide emissions and turns waste into resources by
capturing approximately 20,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide annually,
which is then used for food processing and other commercial
purposes after purification.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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Safe production: CR Power highly values safe production, and
invested approximately RMB112 million in 2019 to enhance the
safe production equipment for employees, improve the safety of
the working environment, manage major safety risks and develop
advanced safe production technologies, etc. At the same time, the
Company focuses on the application of science and technology in
safety management. CR Vision is an intelligent safety management
system independently developed by the Company, which won first
prize in the First Safety Technology Advancement Awards organised
by the China Association of Work Safety, and was promoted and
used in Hebei Tangshan Fengrun Power Plant, Hubei Pugi Power
Plant and Fengming Wind Farm.

Corporate governance: We further strengthened our corporate
governance and risk control. During the year, the Board convened
a number of meetings to carefully approve major investments,
supervise the management's progress on achieving business and
strategic objectives, and identify and respond to the major risks
in the Company's operations. In addition to listening carefully to
the management's timely reports, the Board members also carry
out investigation and research to deepen their understanding
of the business, and conscientiously and diligently fulfill their
responsibilities.
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Giving back to society: We actively participate in charitable
activities. In December 2019, our subsidiaries had a charity week to
support students, themed around “Giving Warmth from the Heart".
The participants gave warmth, shared knowledge and sparked
dreams for the students in poor areas through voluntary teaching,
lessons about electricity, book donations, inspection and repair of
schools' power facilities, etc. During the year, CR Power engaged
in poverty alleviation, student support, community construction
and volunteer activities, and took part in CRH's activities such
as building "Hope Towns" in the poor areas of China, donating
cash and supplies of approximately RMB117 million in total. CR
Power recruited 855 new employees in 2019, including 331 fresh
university graduates.

We combine renewable energy development with public welfare
undertakings such as poverty alleviation, local infrastructure
construction and environmental protection. By the end of 2019, a
total of 515MW of renewable energy projects were implemented
to help the poor, annually contributing more than RMB36 million
to poverty alleviation and effectively lifting approximately 36,000
people out of poverty. These projects have made positive impacts
on the local communities and residents.

Open communication: We enhance our communication with
stakeholders and promote mutual trust and consensus through
special meetings, reports, websites, WeChat public account, phone
calls, emails, public visits, etc.

We have organised more public visits, formulated and implemented
a five-year plan for such activities. In September 2019, we had our
fourth public visit month, "Green Development from the Heart".
39 of our subsidiaries participated in the event, and invited more
than 2,000 people from all walks of life to visit the power plants,
including local residents, teachers, students, environmental
volunteers, partners, government officials and journalists. In
addition, CR Power recruited elite students from top universities in
China to conduct interviews and report on "CR Power in the Eyes of
Student Reporters”. During the year, our power plants organised
nearly 100 public visits, and took the initiative to be monitored by
all sectors in society.
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In 2020, the reform of the power industry will continue to deepen,
which may further intensify the competition for market resources.
The COVID-19 virus outbreak at the beginning of the year will
further pose enormous challenges to the economy, the power
industry and business operations in China, putting the Company in a
more severe situation.

We will overcome the significant challenges posed by the
epidemic and market competition. We will continue to accelerate
the construction of wind power capacity, ensure the timely grid
connection of ongoing and new projects by the end of 2020, strive
to put a number of wind power projects into successful operation
by the end of 2020, further increase the mix of renewable energy
generation capacity, adjust the Company's business structure, and
better respond to the challenges of the industry transformation.
At the same time, we will actively stock up on quality wind and
solar power resources in Northern, Northeastern and Northwestern
China, at the starting points and mid points of ultra-high voltage
transmission lines as well as offshore locations. We will also
accumulate quality grid-parity resources and distributed projects in
Central, Eastern and Southern China. This will drive earnings growth
for the Company, laying a foundation for sustainable development
in the future.

We will closely follow the trends of the power market reform and
strive to expand the Company's power sales business, strengthen
service capabilities and enhance customer adhesiveness. In
addition, we will establish a spot trading team and prepare for
the carbon trading market to respond to new market challenges
and opportunities. Focused on industrial energy efficiency, smart
buildings, intelligent parks and other scenarios, we will leverage
the diversification advantages of our parent company, CRH, to
promote the pilot run of integrated energy projects and develop
core capabilities.

The future of energy depends on technology development. A new
round of energy technology revolution is on the horizon with
countless new achievements in energy science and technology.
We will continue to focus on and promote the application of
advanced technologies such as energy storage, hydrogen energy
and energy conservation. By persisting in innovation and enhancing
technology exchange and collaboration, we will explore the new
business opportunities potentially arising from the cutting-edge
technologies in the energy industry.
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We will closely keep up with national strategies and capture
relevant opportunities. By exploring businesses in the Greater
Bay Area in China and increasing investment in projects such as
integrated energy services and harmless treatment of urban waste,
we will facilitate urban development and construction.

In 2020, we will seize new opportunities while responding to new
challenges. In an unfavourable external environment, we will
motivate our staff and strictly control our costs to achieve certain
goals. We look forward to continuing to work hand in hand with
all stakeholders. We will unite and make full use of our time to
achieve solid results and outstanding performance, leading CR
Power towards a brighter future!

Wang Chuandong
Chairman of the Board

30 March 2020
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
E=E/N

Mr. Wang Chuandong
IFEREE

Mr. Wang Chuandong, aged 56, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board
and a Non-executive Director of the Company in March 2020. Mr. Wang
has been the chairman of the board of China Resources Gas Group Limited
("CR Gas") since June 2012 and a non-executive director since January
2019. He was first appointed as a director and general manager of China
Resources Gas (Holdings) Limited (“CR Gas Holdings") in February 2007, then
appointed as an executive director and general manager of CR Gas from
November 2008. CR Gas is a fellow subsidiary of the Company and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("HKEx"). He is currently also a deputy general manager of CRH. Mr. Wang
joined China Resources Petrochems (Group) Company Limited in 1985 and
served as its director and deputy general manager. He has over 35 years of
corporate management experience in the energy area.

Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor's Degree in Science majoring in Petroleum
Refining from the China University of Petroleum and a Master of Business
Administration ("MBA") Degree from the University of Texas in the United
States of America.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREHREEE

Mr. Tang Yong
BBEXE

Mr. Tang Yong, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director and
President of the Company in December 2019. He served 3as managing
director of China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land") from June 2013, vice
chairman of the board of CR Land from November 2014, the CEQ of CR Land
from December 2018 and was appointed as the chairman of the board of CR
Land from February 2019. Prior to joining the Company, he was responsible
for leading the board of CR Land and formulating the strategies and policies
of CR Land. CR Land is a fellow subsidiary of the Company and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of the HKEx. Mr. Tang joined CRH in 1993, and had
worked for China Resources Property Management Limited. Mr. Tang has
extensive experience in property management and corporate management.

Mr. Tang has a Bachelor's Degree of Engineering in Industrial and Electrical
Automation from Tongji University in China and an MBA Degree from the
University of San Francisco in the United States of America.
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Mr. Zhang Junzheng
REBSEAE

Mr. Zhang Junzheng, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director and
Vice Chairman of the Board in December 2019. He served as assistant general
manager from June 2009 to February 2010 and deputy director from February
2010 to June 2014 of the office of the board of CRH respectively, and was
appointed as the director of the Health Safety and Environment Department
of CRH from June 2014. Before he joined CRH in 2009, Mr. Zhang had worked
for China Resources (Xuzhou) Electric Power Co., Ltd. and served as General
Manager of the Assets Operations Department of the Company from November
2004 to June 20009.

Mr. Zhang has an MBA Degree from the China Europe International Business
School (“CEIBS").
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREHREEE

Ms. Wang Xiao Bin
Tzt

Ms. Wang Xiao Bin, aged 52, is an Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of the Company. Prior to joining the Company in
July 2003, Ms. Wang was a director of corporate finance of ING Investment
Banking, responsible for execution of capital markets and merger
and acquisition transactions in the Asia Pacific region. She worked for
PriceWaterhouse in Australia in the audit and business advisory division for
five years before joining ING Barings. Ms. Wang is also an independent non-
executive director of Worley Limited, a company listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange.

Ms. Wang is a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and holds a graduate diploma in Applied Finance and
Investment from the Securities Institute of Australia and a Bachelor's Degree
in Commerce from Murdoch University in Australia.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERBREHEE

Mr. ChenYing
BRIE T4

Mr. Chen Ying, aged 49, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in June 2012. In May 2012, he was appointed as a non-executive
director of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (“CR Cement") and China
Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (“CR Beer") (formerly known
as China Resources Enterprise Limited). These are fellow subsidiaries of the
Company and the shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board
of the HKEx. He was appointed as a non-executive director of CR Gas and CR
Land in June 2012. Mr. Chen joined CRH in 1993 and has been the general
manager of Strategy Management Department of CRH since October 2011 and
the chief strategy officer of CRH since July 2013. Mr. Chen used to be a non-
executive director of China Vanke Co., Ltd. from March 2013 to June 2017. He
used to be a director of China Resources Double-crane Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (“SSE"), from May 2012 to
December 2015, and used to be a director of China Resources Sanjiu Medical &
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from
June 2012 to December 2015.

Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor's Degree of Architectural Management from the
Tsinghua University, China in 1993 and an MBA Degree from University of
Oxford, the United Kingdom, in 2007.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREHREEE

Mr. Wang Yan
FEXRE

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 48, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in August 2014. He was appointed as a non-executive director
of CR Land, CR Cement and CR Gas in August 2014. He was also appointed
as a non-executive director of China Resources Medical Holdings Company
Limited (formerly known as China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings
Limited) (listed on the Main Board of the HKEx) in November 2016. Mr. Wang
was a non-executive director of CR Beer from August 2014 to April 2016.
He was a deputy general manager of the Internal Audit Department of CRH
from April 2012 to February 2016 and was appointed as a general manager
in February 2016. Mr. Wang was appointed as a director of CR Gas in
November 2005. He was a deputy general manager of CR Gas Holdings from
September 2007 to April 2012. Mr. Wang joined China Resources Company
Limited (“CRCL") (formerly known as China Resources National Corporation)
inJuly 1994.

Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from the Finance and
Accounting Department, Capital University of Economics and Business, an
MBA Degree from the University of South Australia and is a qualified PRC
Certified Accountant.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERBREHEE

Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung
BRELRE

Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung, aged 78, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in December 2006. Mr. Ma is a
founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited (formerly known as Andrew
Ma DFK (CPA) Limited). He is presently a director of Mayee Management
Limited and also a director of several other private companies. Mr. Ma has
more than 40 years' experience in the fields of accounting, auditing and
finance. He received his Bachelor's Degree in Economics from The London
School of Economics and Political Science (University of London) in England.
Mr. Ma is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong.

In addition to his directorship in the Company, Mr. Ma is also an
independent non-executive director of a number of companies listed on
the HKEXx, including C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 00043), Chong
Hing Bank Limited (Stock Code: 01111), Asiaray Media Group Limited (Stock
Code: 01993), C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limitied (Stock Code: 03309) and
S.A.l Leisure Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 01832). Mr. Ma was an
independent non-executive director of Asia Financial Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 00662),a company listed on the HKEx, from September 2004 to
May 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREHREEE

Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie

REFLL

Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie, aged 81, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in April 2010. Ms. Leung was the first Secretary for Justice of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, as well as a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong from July
1997 to October 2005. Ms. Leung was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong
in 1968. She was a partner of P. H Sin & Co., a Hong Kong law firm, which amalgamated with
the law firm lu, Lai & Li Solicitors & Notaries in 1993; she was a senior partner with Iu, Lai & Li
Solicitors & Notaries from 1993 to 1997. At the end of 2006, she resumed to practice at Iu, Lai &
Li Solicitors & Notaries. Ms. Leung also serves as an independent non-executive director on the
boards of United Company Rusal Plc, listed on the Main Board of the HKEx, China Life Insurance
Company Limited which is listed on the Main Boards of the HKEx, New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE") and SSE and Petro China Company Limited listed on the HKEx, NYSE and SSE.

Ms. Leung served as a member of several government boards and committees, including
the Independent Police Complaints Council, Equal Opportunities Commission, Social Welfare
Advisory Committee and Inland Revenue Board of Review. Ms. Leung was appointed as a
delegate of the People's Congress of Guangdong Province in 1989. In 1993, she was appointed
as a delegate of the 8th National People's Congress and in 1994 as well as a Hong Kong
Affairs Advisor. She had been the Deputy Director of the Hong Kong Basic Law Committee of
the Standing Committee of the National People's Congress of the People's Republic of China
between 2006 and 2018.

Apart from being a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong, Ms. Leung was qualified as a
solicitor in England and Wales and obtained a Master of Law degree from the University of Hong
Kongin 1998.

Ms. Leung was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1982 and was awarded the Grand Bauhinia
Medal in 2002.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERBREHEE

Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung

RROEL

Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in April 2010. Dr. Ch'ien is the chairman and independent non-
executive director of Hang Seng Bank Limited. Dr. Ch'ien also serves as an independent non-
executive director on the boards of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
("HSBC"), Swiss Re Limited and Swiss Re Asia Pte. Ltd. Dr. Ch'ien was non-executive chairman of
MTR Corporation Limited from July 2003 to December 2015.

In public service, Dr. Ch'ien is an honorary president and past chairman of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries. From January 2013 to March 2018, Dr. Ch'ien was a member of the
Economic Development Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong SAR. From January
2008 to January 2018, he was a member of the Standing Committee of the Tianjin Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference. From 1992 to 1997, Dr.
Ch'ien was a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong, then under British administration.
He was appointed a member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR on 1 July 1997 and
served until June 2002. He was a Hong Kong member of the APEC Business Advisory Council
from 2004 to 2009. He was chairman of the Hong Kong/European Union Business Cooperation
Committee from 2005 to January 2012. Dr. Ch'ien was previously chairman of the Advisory
Committee on Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption, the Hong Kong/
Japan Business Cooperation Committee, the Industry and Technology Development Council and
the Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre Corporation Ltd.

Dr. Ch'ien received a Doctoral Degree in Economics from the University of Pennsylvania in 1978
and was a Trustee of the University from 2006 to 2016. Dr. Ch'ien was appointed a Justice of the
Peace in 1993 and a Commander in the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1994. In
1999, he was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star Medal. In August 2008, Dr. Ch'ien was conferred
the honour of Chevalier de 'Ordre du Mérite Agricole of France.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREHREEE

Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong
BEX KL

Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in June 2014. Mr. So assumed the chairmanship of the Airport Authority Hong
Kong in June 2015. He began his career with the Hong Kong Government and joined the private
sector in 1978, having held various senior positions in stockbroking, banking and property
development. He served as an executive director of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
from 1985 to 1992 and its chairman from 2007 to 2015. He was chairman and chief executive
of the MTR Corporation Limited from 1995 to 2003 and deputy chairman and group managing
director of PCCW Limited from 2003 to 2007.

Mr. So is also an independent non-executive director of AIA Group Ltd. and is also a senior
advisor to Credit Suisse, Greater China. He was an independent director of HSBC from 2000 to
2007 and Cathay Pacific Airways Limited from 2002 to 2015.

Mr. So is the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Society. He served as chairman of the
Hong Kong Film Development Council from 2007 to 2013. Mr. So was a member of the Chinese
People's Political Consultative Conference from 2008 to 2018 and was an international business
advisor to the Mayor of Beijing.

A Justice of the Peace, Mr. So was awarded the Golden Bauhinia Star and Grand Bauhinia Medal
by the Hong Kong SAR Government in 2011 and 2017 respectively. He received an Honorary
Doctorate in Social Science from the University of Hong Kong in 2011.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERBREHEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

RIREEEGE

«

Mr. Zhu Guolin
REIPREAE

Mr. Zhu Guolin, aged 60, is a Senior Vice President and Finance Director of
the Company. From May 2012 to July 2016, he served as a Vice President
and Finance Director of the Company; from July 2009 to May 2012, he
served as the Deputy Finance Director and General Manager of the Finance
Department of the Company; from November 2005 to July 2009, he served
as a Finance Director of Guangzhou China Resources Thermal Power
Co., Ltd.; from February 2004 to November 2005, he served as a deputy
general manager of the Corporate Development Department of CRH, and a
director and deputy general manager of China Resources Development and
Investment Co., Ltd.; from November 2001 to February 2004, he served as
the party committee member and vice director of the Department of Foreign
Trade and Economic Cooperation of Yunnan Province; from September
2000 to November 2001, he served as a director and general manager of
China Resources Conic Company Limited; from August 1997 to September
2000, he served as a director and an assistant general manager of Hong
Kong Kang Mao Company Limited (BHBEEZERAR A A]), and was also 3
director and general manager of Hong Kong Kang Mao Finance Limited (&
BREYEARAR); from July 1985 to August 1997, he was an official of
the Foreign Trade and Finance Division under the Finance and Accounting
Department of the Ministry of Foreign Economic Relations and Trade of the
PRC (FEKLE N & BINEB#EER), the Financial Manager of Great Wall
Trade Center, Dubai, United Arab Emirates (P B g8 R0 8 5 OB 15 E0),
a deputy director of the State-owned Assets Management Division under
the Department of Foreign Economic Coordination of the Ministry of Foreign
Economic Relations and Trade of the PRC (FF B $4ME E R E R ARG E
EE &), and a director of the Division of Integrated System Management
under the Planning and Finance Department of the Ministry of Foreign
Economic Relations and Trade (¥f4MEE #i5t B Al4= & #I/EEE). Mr. Zhu holds
an MBA Degree from the University of International Business and Economics.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREHREEE

Mr. Zhou Jianbo
BBk EE

Mr. Zhou Jianbo, aged 46, is a Senior Vice President of the Company. From
January to October 2018, he served as the senior deputy director of the
Discipline Inspection and Supervision Department of CRH, and the senior
deputy general manager of China Resources Vanguard Company Limited
("CR Vanguard"); from August 2015 to January 2018, he served as the
deputy director of the Discipline Inspection and Supervision Department of
CRH, as well as the deputy general manager of CR Vanguard; Mr. Zhou holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Law from Jiangnan University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERBREHEE

Mr. Jiang Lihui
ZRIE L

Mr. Jiang Lihui, aged 57, is a Vice President of the Company. From April
2016 to August 2019, he served as a Senior Vice President of the Company.
From June 2014 to April 2016, he served as a Senior Vice President of the
Company and Chairman of China Resources Coal (Group) Co., Ltd. From April
2012 to June 2014, he served as a Senior Vice President of the Company
and a General Manager of Coal Business Unit; from July 2010 to May 2012,
he served as a Deputy General Manager of China Resources New Energy, an
Assistant President of the Company and a General Manager of Hydropower
Business Department. From July 2009 to March 2011, he served as a Deputy
Chief Technical Officer of the Company. From July 2002 to January 2010, he
served as a Deputy General Manager of China Resources Power Hubei Co.,
Ltd, a General Manager of Xuzhou Huaxin Power Generation Co., Ltd and a
General Manager of China Resources Hezhou Co., Ltd. From April 1995 to
July 2002, he served as a Deputy Chief Engineer and an Assistant General
Manager of China Resources (Xuzhou) Electric Power Co., Ltd. Mr. Jiang holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Electric Automatization from Heilongjiang University
of Science and Technology, an MBA Degree from Huazhong University of
Science and Technology and an MBA Degree from CEIBS. He also holds the
title of Senior Engineer.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREHREEE

Mr. Zhao Houchang
HEERE

Mr. Zhao Houchang, aged 54, is a Vice President of the Company. From May
2012 to April 2016, he served as a Vice General Manager and Chief Technical
Officer of the Thermal Power Division of the Company; from July 2010 to
May 2012, he served as an Executive Vice President and Chief Technical
Officer of the Company; from August 2009 to July 2010, he served as the
Chief Technical Officer and a General Manager of the Construction Division
of the Company; from 2003 to 2009, he served as a General Manager of
China Resources Power Henan Shouyangshan Co., Ltd.; from 2002 to 2003,
he served as a Vice General Manager of China Resources Power (Changshu)
Co., Ltd.; and from 1994 to 2002, he successively served as a Deputy Head
of the Engineering Department, Vice General Manager, Assistant General
Manager and Deputy Chief Engineer of China Resources (Xuzhou) Electric
Power Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhao holds an MBA Degree from CEIBS.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERBREHEE

Mr. Wang Lin
EMEE

Mr. Wang Lin, aged 53, is a Vice President of the Company. From May 2012
to June 2016, he served as a Vice General Manager of the Thermal Power
Division of the Company; from June 2010 to May 2012, he served as a Vice
General Manager of the Jiangsu Branch of the Company; from March 2009
to June 2010, he served as a Vice General Manager of the Shanxi Branch of
the Company; from July 2005 to March 2009, he served as a Deputy General
Manager of China Resources Power (Jiangsu) Investment Company Limited;
from June 2003 to March 2009, he served as the Chief Representative of the
Company in Eastern China; from December 1995 to June 2003, he served as
the Chief Representative of Nanjing Office of China Resources (Xuzhou) Electric
Power Co., Ltd.; and from 1982 to December 1995, he worked in Fengxian
Fuel Company and Xuzhou Fuel Corporation in Jiangsu successively. Mr. Wang
holds an MBA Degree from the School of Business Administration of Nanjing
University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREHREEE

Mr. Hou Yongjie
fakEEEE

Mr. Hou Yongjie, aged 52, is a Vice President of the Company. From May
2016 to August 2017, he was the General Manager of the Central and
Western Region of the Company; from May 2012 to May 2016, he was the
General Manager of the the Thermal Power Division of Henan Branch;
from January 2011 to May 2012, he was the Deputy General Manager of
the Henan Branch; from September 2010 to January 2011, he served as
the Deputy General Manager of Henan Branch and the General Manager of
Dengfeng Project as well as the General Manager of Luore Project; from
September 2009 to September 2010, he served as the General Manager
of Shouyangshan Project and the General Manager of Luore project; from
October 2004 to September 2009, he successively served as the Deputy
General Manager and the General Manager of Luore Project; from April
2003 to October 2004, he successively served as the Assistant General
Manager of the Production Preparation Division of Dengfeng Project, the
General Manager of the Production Preparation Division, Head of the Power
Generation Department, and the Assistant Technical Director. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Hou worked at the Gansu Jingyuan Power Plant.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERBREHEE

Mr. Zhang Gang
SR SE4E

Mr. Zhang Gang, aged 44, is a Vice President and General Legal Counsel
of the Company. From March 2013 to July 2018, he served as an Assistant
President and General Legal Counsel of the Company. From February 2009 to
March 2013, Mr. Zhang successively served as a China legal counsel and chief
legal director in the Legal Affairs Department at CRH. From January 2006 to
February 2009, Mr. Zhang practiced law at Huaxia Assets, Investment & Assets
Department of CRH and CR Enterprise; and from July 2000 to December 2005,
he served successively as the manager of Planning Departments, assistant
manager of the Legal Affairs Department at CR Logistics, and the assistant
general manager of Express Centre of Shenzhen CR Logistics. Mr. Zhang holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Law from Northwestern University of Politics & Law.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREHREEE

Mr. Xu Hongbo
By e

Mr. Xu Hongbo, aged 43, is an Assistant President of the Company and the
General Manager of the Strategic Development Division. From October 2014
to June 2017, he successively served as a qualified director and assistant
director of the Supervision Department of CRH. From August 2011 to
October 2014, he successively served as a Senior Manager, Chief Analyst and
Assistant Director of the Strategic Development Department of the Company.
From April 2004 to August 2011, he successively served as a Qualified
Engineer and Senior Manager of China Resources Power (Changshu) Co.,
Ltd. and Jiangsu Branch of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, he
worked for Yangcheng International Power Generation Co., Ltd. Mr. Xu holds
a Bachelor of Engineering Degree in Thermal Engineering from Wuhan
University of Hydraulic and Electric Engineering and a Master of Engineering
Degree in Electrical Engineering from Tsinghua University. He also holds the
title of Senior Engineer.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) present the Annual
Report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group principally engages in investing, developing, operating
and managing power plants and coal mine projects in China. The
activities of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set
outin Notes 51, 11 and 12 to the financial statements, respectively.

The consolidated income statement is set out on page 140 and
shows the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2019. A
discussion and analysis of the Group's performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial position
are provided in the Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages
57 to 87 of this Annual Report.

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) is set out in the
sections headed "5-Year Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement” and
"Management’s Discussion and Analysis” from pages 2 to 3, pages
8 to 16, and pages 57 to 87 respectively of this Annual Report and

other parts of this report.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include, but
are not limited to, operational risks, policy risks, industry risks,
market risks, business risks and financial risks.

Please refer to the “"Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 16 of this
Annual Report for a discussion of the operational, policy, market
and business challenges and uncertainties facing the Group;
"Management’s Discussion and Analysis” on pages 85 to 86 of this
Annual Report for a discussion on foreign exchange rate risk facing
the Group; and "Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” on
pages 188 to 208 of this Annual Report for details of the financial
risks facing the Group.
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The Group adheres to environmental sustainability throughout its
business operations. As a responsible corporation, and in line with
the energy and environmental protection strategies of the Chinese
Government, the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental
impacts by committing to conservation of resources, promoting
the development of clean and renewable energy projects and
improving on emission control.

Please refer to the “"Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 16 of
this Annual Report for a discussion of the Group's development in
promoting Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG).

In addition, more details regarding the Group's performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and requlations which have a significant impact on the Company,
will be provided in the Sustainable Development Report to be
published by the Company pursuant to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules"”) and will be available on the Company's website at
WWW.Cr-power.com.

The Board places emphasis on the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and reqgulatory requirements. Updates on
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention
of relevant employees and operation units from time to time.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has complied
in all material respects with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the operations of the Group, including
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
their contribution and support are valued at all times. The Group
places importance on the career development of its employees
and organised trainings for employees to facilitate their career
development. In order to promote work-life balance for employees,
the Group created a competitive, yet united and pleasant working
environment to encourage improvement and increased personal
value to enhance their sense of belonging.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

A EER E OB BRE P — EE BT
HERE - A7 AT E BRI R
BREN  ASEAELSEE  HHB
BEOER - R R A B4 RIER
BB RANE R ESE - BARE B Y
BIEERAOTE -

BRASBERSRE HekBEABHES
BRI FLHAFREBAEE16 AN
[ERHRE] -

Foh - BEBRBRSEELSHBEZEK
EERBRRBHEARENRIEA  LERER
RABEREENHEBEENERNEST
BN FBRLHARARIEBZTES
EMRBI(T EmRE D)MW &8 =+ PTE
[IRIE - w2 RERHERS TN
FEERBE ] AIRARQ A (www.,
cr-power.com) &5 o

EXeERAKRERMETARERNI
REBO - BIRIREFEBREERZES
i & 5758 AR - R R ROEBR A B IF
X -BE_F-NFT-_A=t—HLHF
B AEEREERTEEEETHALE
BREEEEAFENHBEEIRER B
BN AMERDI R ETHARA

AEERAEEBEEAE  RA—BE+
SERESNEGRRLE  AEEIEE
EMBERRE  BRSEEERERNY
R - B(LEIES T (E8 AR T -
24 1 B 1R A 5 B T (IR
5 SEIEERELS  ESEAEE
SN o



The Company believes that maintaining good relationships with
stakeholders including customers and suppliers is one of the key
contributors to the Group's success. The Group has established
stable long-term relationships with a number of customers and
suppliers, and has taken active steps to maintain good cooperative
relationships with its customers and suppliers and to strengthen
communication with them.

An interim dividend of HK$0.2 per share of the Company (“Share")
was paid on 25 October 2019.

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HKS0.348 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Friday, 19 June 2020, subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the "AGM") to be held on Tuesday, 9 June 2020. The
proposed dividend will be paid on Thursday, 9 July 2020 following
approval at the AGM of the Company.

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 6 to the
financial statements.

Details of the movement in the shares issued by the Company
during the year are set out in Note 23 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to HK$18,563,211,000
as at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$17,080,310,000). Movements in
the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
142 to 143 of this Annual Report and Note 50(a) to the financial
statements, respectively.

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019
amounted to HKS$87,903,748,000 (2018: HKS$96,675,137,000).
Particulars of borrowings are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

ARRABRA - BEPRMAEHEN A
THPBRTBERREANEERINNETE
I%Z—°$‘§IE,\Q)5&T BRI
RHRENHEE TR HEREE
PR RN A ERR SN2 B

ARG (TR 1) 0.2 7 7T &9 B
BEER-_ZE—NFTA-THBAIRE -

EEgRFANR_ZT-_FTFATIH
(EHR)RINARRRR A M RRE K

HE_ZT—NE+-_A=+—HIEEHN
REARE B &A% 0. 348;‘%7_5 C BERER

E_TFERNANB(EH D) BITNARE
Efﬂxﬁﬁiﬁé((ﬂxiﬁiﬁgj)ﬁt
o RARRIRREFEANSHER - EE
BREFNR -_ZE_FFLANB(EHN)X
1

$’$l&$ AR - BB RRERAE
BB R E DT

RRABEBEITRONRAFENESFER
R TR RE 23 -

R—_E—NF+_A=+—H ' xR
fﬁ“Jﬂ%ﬁ7%18563211000,%71(_
— J\# :17,080,310,000/8 70 ) - N & H
AR ERAEENES D RIH A
FHRFPFU2AZTVIENEHEREH R
MR M sE50(a)

—hWF+-_A=+—8 ' K&£H
E’Mﬁffw%é?%s? 903,748,000/8 L (=&
f)\i 96,675,137,000/8 7T ) - fE E &

BER B REMFEIL -

Annual Report 2019 £ #R

37



38

The Group issued corporate bonds and notes with fixed rates
with face value amounting to RMB12,085,000,000 (equivalent to
HKS$13,491,090,000) (2018: RMB12,285,000,000 (equivalent to
HKS$14,020,748,000)) as at 31 December 2019, details of which
are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements. Such corporate
bonds and notes were issued in order to meet the Group's general
funding requirement, including financing of capital expenditure
and refinancing of debts.

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB117 million (2018: RMB6.0669 million).

The Directors who held office during the year of 2019 and as at 30
March 2020 are as follows:

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Chuandong (Chairman, appointed on 27 March 2020)

Mr. Chen Ying

Mr. Wang Yan

Mr. Li Ru Ge (resigned from his role as Chairman and
Non-executive Director on 27 March 2020)

Mr. Ge Changxin (Note)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tang Yong (President, appointed on 17 December 2019)

Mr. Zhang Junzheng (Vice Chairman, appointed on 17
December 2019)

(Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary)

(Note)

(resigned from his role as President and
Executive Director on 17 December 2019)

Ms. Wang Xiao Bin

Mr. Ge Changxin
Mr. Hu Min

Note:

Mr. Ge ceased to be the Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Senior Vice President of the
Company and was re-designated as a Non-executive Director and Senior Consultant to the
President on 15 April 2019. Subsequently, Mr. Ge Changxin resigned as a Non-executive
Director and Senior Consultant to the President on 16 February 2020.
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung
Ms. Elsie Leung Qi-sie

Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung
Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors had a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
terminable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Pursuant to Article 120 of the Company's Articles of Association,
Ms. Wang Xiao Bin, Mr. Wang Yan, Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung
and Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong, who are longest in office, shall
retire from office by rotation at the AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 98 of the Company's Articles of Association, Mr.
Wang Chuandong, who was newly appointed as the Chairman of
the Board and Non-executive Director of the Company on 27 March
2020, Mr. Tang Yong, who was newly appointed as an Executive
Director and the President of the Company on 17 December 2019,
and Mr. Zhang Junzheng, who was newly appointed as Vice
Chairman of the Board and Executive Director of the Company on 17
December 2019, shall hold office until the AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors in regard to their
independence to the Company and considers that each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors is independent to the
Company.

As at the date of this report, among the Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung, Ms. Elsie Leung Qi-sie and
Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung have served more than 9 years.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 17 to 26 of this Annual Report.

The Executive Directors are entitled to salaries and discretionary
bonuses determined by the Board at its absolute discretion having
regard to the Group's performance and the prevailing market
conditions. The Independent Non-executive Directors are entitled
to director's fees authorised by shareholders and approved by the
Board by reference to the prevailing market conditions. Details of
Directors’' remuneration are provided under Note 52 to the financial
statements.
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The name of persons who have served on the board of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year and up to 30 March 2020 is available
on the Company's website at www.cr-power.com.

The Group regards the President, the Chief Financial Officer, Senior
Vice Presidents, Vice Presidents and Assistant Presidents of the
Company as members of the senior management team.

The emoluments of the members of the senior management team
who are not Executive Directors are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 110 of this Annual Report.

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every
Director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company
against all liability incurred by him or her as such Director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgement is given in his or her favour, or in which he or she is
acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors of the Company.

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein:
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(A) The Company

(A)

Details of Shares held by the Directors as at 31 December 2019
are as follows:

Name of Director

EENA

Tang Yong®
EEO

Zhang Junzheng®
REER @

Wang Xiao Bin

F M

Wang Yan

FE

Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung

ERE

Ge Changxin®
ERHO

Notes:

1.

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held
BFEE®T
EBREA

Capacity
54

Beneficial Owner
ExnEBA
Beneficial Owner
EnBA
Interest of Spouse
[ e
Beneficial Owner
ExnEBA
Beneficial Owner
EmBA
Beneficial Owner
EnfAA
Interest of Spouse
Ao iB iR
Beneficial Owner
EnBA

300,000

700,000

76,000

3,664,560

44,000

30,167

4,000

4,828

Mr. Tang was appointed as the President and Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 17 December 2019.

Mr. Zhang was appointed as the Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the
Board of the Company with effect from 17 December 2019.

Mr. Ge ceased to be the Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Senior Vice
President of the Company and was re-designated as a Non-executive Director
and Senior Consultant to the President on 15 April 2019. Subsequently, Mr. Ge
Changxin resigned as a Non-executive Director and Senior Consultant to the

President on 16 February 2020.

ZN/NS

RZE—NF+-_A=+—HH E=%

FABRMDFRBDT

Percentage of

the total issued

shares of
the Company
Long/short RN F]
position 2 EITIRA
e/ KE Bt
Long 0.006%
e
Long 0.015%
HaE
Long 0.002%
e
Long 0.076%
S}
Long 0.001%
S
Long 0.001%
HeE
Long 0.000%
S}
Long 0.000%
HaE
k=3
1. RBEER_Z-NAF+_A+tHEEE
RRRREFNTES
2. REFER_Z—NFT_AT+HEZRE
KARERRRIFREHRNTES
3. BEER_Z-—NFHNATHBTHIEL
RRBEEFEFE  PIEERRE
BERERERFDATESTREHSNE
Mo BEfs  BREER T _TEHE_F X
HIREIFHNITE B RAAH S REER 2 %
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(B) CRBeer (B) EEHEH

CR Beer is an associated corporation of the Company (as B8 R A Q A R A E (RE
defined under the SF0). Details of shares in CR Beer held by BERBEKRPIMAT) EFR=
the Directors as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: E-NEF+_A=+—HFFEHE
B EFIBLT

Percentage

of the total

Number of issued shares

issued ordinary of CR Beer

shares held Long/short 12 ERE

Name of Director Capacity HECRT position B 1T IR

EENS 514 ZEREHE we/ Re BaoOLt

Wang Yan Beneficial Owner 167,999 Long 0.005%
TE EmEA A e

(C) CRGas (0 ZFEBMHR

CR Gas is an associated corporation of the Company (as FEEMR T AR B/ AB B L B (R &

defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Gas held by the BERBERFIMATE) ESKZ

Directors as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: TE-NE+-A=+—HEHEEBEMR

AIRGHEDT

Percentage

of the total

Number of issued shares

issued ordinary of CR Gas

shares held Long/short HEBRR

Name of Director Capacity BHEC BT position 2T A

HEENS 51 ZEREE He RE Baot

Zhang Junzheng® Beneficial Owner 10,000 Long 0.000%
RERW® EmEAA HaE

Ge Changxin® Beneficial Owner 200 Long 0.000%
ERHO EmEAA e

Notes: 5T -

1. Mr. Zhang was appointed as the Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the 1. REFRZZB-NFT_RA+LHERE
Board of the Company with effect from 17 December 2019. ANREEGRIERHAPTES -

2. Mr. Ge ceased to be the Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Senior Vice 2. %%iﬁ@:g*ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬂLﬁET\%%ﬁ
President of the Company and was re-designated as a Non-executive Director RARAREZERER - %ﬂﬁﬁ%%@é&%ﬂ
and Senior Consultant to the President on 15 April 2019. Subsequently, Mr. Ge BHLERATERIERTEERETSLE
Changxin resigned as a Non-executive Director and Senior Consultant to the Bl opEg BAER-_ZE-_ZTF_A+RX
President on 16 February 2020. RRMEFFNTTE BRGNS RER 2 B5 -
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(D) CRland

(E)

(D)

CR Land is an associated corporation of the Company (as
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Land held by
the Directors as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Number of

issued ordinary
shares held

Name of Director Capacity HEC®T
EEHR 80 EERHE
Tang Yong® Beneficial Owner 100,000
BEBEO EnEAA
ChenYing Beneficial Owner 500,000
PR 1& EnlAA

Note:

1. Mr. Tang was appointed as the President and Executive Director of the

Company with effect from 17 December 2019.
CR Cement (E)

CR Cement is an associated corporation of the Company (as
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Cement held by
the Directors as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Number of

issued ordinary
shares held

Name of Director Capacity EECRT
SR 514 EZEREE
ChenyYing Beneficial Owner 230,000
BeR & BB A

FEHEM

S0 75 A2 7 A0 AR B (1R 15
BH R EEPIHRE) - FRR=
T NF+-A=+—ARARHE
SRR LT ¢

Percentage
of the total
issued shares

of CR Land
Long/short hEBE
position 2 BT
5y} Btk
Long 0.001%
e
Long 0.007%
HE
5T
1. BEERZZE—NF+-A+LAEEMHF
RARBHFNTES -
2 HAKRE

WK 5 AN 2 7 9 4B 4 IR 3
BEHRBEEOIFAT)  EER =
T NF+=A=+—BREBEK
TR FEELT

Percentage
of the total
issued shares
of CR Cement

Long/short (EE:V i
position 22T
He/ KR Bt
Long 0.003%

e
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(F) China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited
("CR Pharmaceutical”)

CR Pharmaceutical is an associated corporation of the
Company (as defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR
Pharmaceutical held by the Directors as at 31 December 2019
are as follows:

Number of
issued ordinary
ETGEE
BFECE BT
EEREA

Name of Director

EFHS

Capacity
80

Wang Yan Interest of Spouse
TE B

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

During the year, neither had, the Company's holding company
nor their subsidiaries entered into any arrangement to enable
the Directors or the senior management of the Company or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities of, the Company or any associated corporation
and none of the Directors and senior management, or their spouse
and children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company or its subsidiaries, parent company or fellow
subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director or his or her
connected entities had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or during the year.

In addition, there was no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and its controlling
shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries) and there was no contract
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by its controlling shareholder (or any of its
subsidiaries) subsisting during the year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS A% = B34 175 53

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, no equity-linked BARFERAWEIN » AR BIRREEKLE
agreements were entered by the Company during the year or B sk A {E(a] BT E ] LA IR Z HM
subsisted at the end of the year. ek ©

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS SRR

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors [ FXF#EEEN  W-_ZE—AE+ A
were not aware of any other persons (other than a Director or chief =+—H EF W TAABEMHE A+
executive, whose interests are disclosed in the section headed (EZEZHKFE/THAEKRIN  MFIAEZ
"Directors’ Interests in Securities” above) who had an interest or R EX[EENBHFEZR | —HE2HE)R
short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company AR BIAIAR D kAR RS (D A R E 5 &
as required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded  ERE {51 55 336 {578 & 50 A% 6 AT i Y
referred to therein: WmIOKE

Approximate
percentage of the
issued shares

of the Company

as at
Number of 31 December 2019
issued ordinary R-ZE—-N%F
shares held Long/short +=BA=+—H
Name of shareholder Note Capacity BENE T position {LZARQ TS #ITRA
IR BB Mz 55 EBRRHE He/ KR R EER e
CRH (Power) Limited 1 Beneficial owner 3,027,003,337 Long 62.93%
ExEAA e
CRH 1 Interest in a controlled 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
EHEE corporation e
R—RKZ BB ER
CRC Bluesky Limited 1 Interest in a controlled 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
corporation e
R—RZIEEENER
China Resources Co., Limited* 1 Interestin a controlled 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
("CRC") corporation Sy}
EHRHARAR R—RZIEEEN R
(ME#ERG )
CRCL 1 Interestin a controlled 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
R corporation e

R—RKEZ A E

Note: 1. CRH (Power) Limited is a subsidiary of CRH, which is a 100% subsidiary of CRC  Fff3 : 1. CRH (Power) Limited AZEEEBEAOH B A

Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned as to 100% by CRC, which is in turn held A - ME RS E A (RC Bluesky Limited &9
as to 100% by CRCL. Each of CRH, CRCL, CRC and CRC Bluesky Limited is deemed MifE A &)+ M CRC Bluesky Limited %)
by virtue of Part XV of the SFO to have the same interests in 3,027,003,337 B& 5 ¥ 5 100% R 7 - M= E ARG B i
Shares as those of CRH (Power) Limited. CRH, through another wholly-owned BEEFE100% % - EFRHEK
subsidiary, is interested in 902,000 Shares of the Company. Accordingly, each of PIEXVERTES @ FEHER - PREER - =
CRCL, CRC and CRC Bluesky Limited is deemed by virtue of Part XV of the SFO to A% & CRC Bluesky Limited ¥ %18 A%
have the same interests in the 902,000 Shares as those of CRH. A CRH (Power) Limited 5 3,027,003,337
BROFPOEREZ ZEHEEEBS
—REEME QAR R F 902,000 P& A%
MAPERER - Bt - stE S KT KD
EXVEME - PEER - ZRRG & CRC
Bluesky Limited 9% &1 B E B S E R
902,000 M A% 15 B AERI % ©
For translation purposes only BEEH2E
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During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Group under the Listing Rules. Details of
those continuing connected transactions which are subject to the
reporting requirements under Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules are
summarised below.

Connected Transaction

(1) On 30 October 2019, China Resources Power New Energy
Investment Limited ("CRP New Energy") entered into a
Subscription Agreement with the DR Biomass Development (HK)
Limited (the "Target Company”), China Resources Gas (Hong
Kong) Investment Limited (“CR HK Gas") and China Resources
Ng Fung Limited ("CR Ng Fung") in relation to the subscription
of 30% of the share capital of the Target Company by the
Company. On the same date, CRP New Energy, CR Environmental
Protection (HK) Company Limited (“CR Environment"), CR HK
Gas, CR Ng Fung also entered into a Shareholders' Agreement
with the Target Company. The Shareholders' Agreement will
become effective upon completion of the subscription under
the Subscription Agreement. Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement, CRP New Energy shall pay HK$12,692,782
(equivalent to RMB11,448,966) for the subscription of 30%
of the share capital of the Target Company. On 11 November
2019, (i) CRP New Energy and the Target Company entered
into an Offshore Shareholder's Loan Agreement; and (ii) CRP
Investment Co., Ltd. ("CRP Investment") entered into an Onshore
Shareholder's Loan Agreements with each of the four onshore
wholly-owned project subsidiaries of the Target Company.
Pursuant to the Offshore Shareholder's Loan Agreement, CR
Power New Energy will provide a shareholders' loan of up
to RMB68,400,000 to the Target Company in 2019 for the
capital and working capital of the project companies of the
Target Company. Pursuant to the Onshore Shareholder's
Loan Agreements, CRP Investment will provide shareholder
loans to four onshore wholly-owned project companies in
an aggregate amount of up to RMB117,600,000 in 2019.
Pursuant to the said Shareholders' Loan Agreement, CRP New
Energy and CRP Investment expected to provide shareholders’
loans of up to RMB186,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$206,207,405) to the Target Company and its onshore
wholly-owned project subsidiaries in 2019. CRH was the
sole shareholder of the Target Company at the time of the
transaction, holding 1 share of the Target Company. Prior to
the completion of the Subscription under the Subscription
Agreement, CRH transferred all the shares it held in the Target
Company to CR Environment, and the Target Company also
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issued 49 additional shares to CR Environment, such that before
the completion of the Subscription under the Subscription
Agreement, CR Environment holds 50 shares in the Target
Company. As each of the Target Company, CR Environment,
CR HK Gas and CR Ng Fung is a subsidiary of CRH, CRH is the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and CR Environment,
CR HK Gas, CR Ng Fung, the Target Company and its wholly-
owned project subsidiaries are each a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Details of such connected
transactions are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 30 October 2019 and 11 November 2019.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(1)

0n 20 December 2018, the Company entered into the Property
Lease Framework Agreement 2018 with CRH. The term of the
agreement is two years from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2020. Pursuant to the Property Lease Framework Agreement
2018, the Group may lease certain properties (including
buildings and lands) and procure related management
services for certain properties from CRH and its associates.
The proposed annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement 2018 for
each of the years ending 31 December 2019 and 2020 were
RMB70 million (equivalent to approximately HK$80 million)
and RMB85 million (equivalent to approximately HK$97
million), respectively. In view of the increase in office space
rented by the Company from CRH and rental expense, the
Board anticipates that the Original Property Services Annual
Caps for the financial years ending 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2020 will not be sufficient. Accordingly, the Board
proposes to revise and increase the Original Property Services
Annual Caps for the financial years ending 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2020 to RMB75 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$S85 million) and RMB90 million (equivalent
to approximately HKS102 million), respectively. CRH held
approximately 62.94% interest in the Company at the time
of the transaction and is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Therefore, it is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Details of the continuing connected
transactions are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 20 December 2018 and 9 December 2019. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the total rent expense paid by the
Group to CRH and its associates for leasing office space was
RMB72 million (equivalent to approximately HK$S82 million).
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(2)

0On 21 December 2016, the Company and CR Cement entered
into the Power Supply Framework Agreement, pursuant to
which the Company shall supply electricity to CR Cement, its
subsidiaries or associates through direct power supply and
agency power supply, for a term of one year from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2017. At the time of the transaction, CRH,
which was interested in approximately 62.98% of the equity of
the Company, is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
CR Cement is an associate of CRH and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the
continuing connected transaction are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 21 December 2016. On 1 November
2017, the Company and CR Cement entered into a new Power
Supply Framework Agreement for a term of three years from
1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. From 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2020, the proposed annual cap for transactions
under the Power Supply Framework Agreement is expected
to be RMB1,490 million (equivalent to approximately HK
1,728 million). At the time of the transaction, CRH, which
was interested in approximately 62.94% of the equity of the
Company, is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
CR Cement is an associate of CRH and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the
continuing connected transaction are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 1 November 2017. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the transaction amounts with CR
Cement, its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
RMB306 million (equivalent to approximately HK$349 million)
in respect of the retail power agency services provided and
power supply of the Group.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 November 2010, 19 December 2013 and 18
December 2015, respectively in relation to, among other
things, the entering of the Strategic Cooperation Agreement.
The Company has entered into another new strategic
cooperation agreement (“CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement 2018") with CR Bank on 24 December 2018
whereby new annual caps were revised taking into account
of the Group's liquidity, business needs and the expected
level of services to be received from CR Bank under the CR
Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2018. The term of the
CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2018 is 3 years
commencing from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.
Under the CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2018, CR
Bank provides deposit services bearing the same interest and
on the same terms and conditions as would apply to a similar
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deposit made by any other customer of the bank, which rates
assessed with reference to the rates published by the People's
Bank of China. CR Bank also provides commercial banking
services, including credit services (such as commercial loans,
bill acceptance and discount services and account receivable
factoring services), settlement services, agency services (such
as entrustment loan, insurance and custodian services), cash
management services, financial advisory services, and other
financial services as agreed by the parties. These services will
be provided on normal commercial terms and such service
fees shall not be higher than the net discounted fees offered
to other preferred customers of CR Bank. The maximum daily
deposit cap, inclusive of interest payable, and the maximum
daily cap of financial services and products to be provided by
CR Bank to the Group during the term of the CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement 2018 are RMB2 billion (equivalent
to HKS$2.3 billion) and RMB1 billion (equivalent to HKS$1.1
billion) respectively. For the period between 1 January 2019
and 31 December 2019, the maximum daily deposit amount
was approximately RMB647 million (equivalent to HKS724
million). Details of the continuing connected transaction
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 24
December 2018.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that save for these transactions, other continuing
connected transactions of the Company conducted during the year
ended 31 December 2019, were exempted from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and that the above continuing
connected transactions:

have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the
Company's business;

have been entered into on normal commercial terms or better;
and

have been entered into on terms that are fair and reasonable
for and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole, and in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions.
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The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised) "Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on page 47 to 49 of the
Annual Report in accordance with paragraph 14A. 56 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by
the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Save for the following transactions, none of the related party
transactions contained in Note 47 to the financial statements falls
under the definition of "connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” within the meaning of the Listing Rules:

(1) The two trademark licence agreements dated 17 October
2003 entered into between the Company and CRCL and
CRH respectively, under which the Company was granted
irrevocable, royalty free and non-exclusive licences to use
certain trademarks and the rights to sub-license the same to
any member of the Group in consideration of nominal amount
of HKS1 each.
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(2) Significant transactions with related parties during the year: (2) FRER@ETNERARS :

2019
—E-hE
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HKS$'000
BENREE 2R REHE TET
CRH Intermediate holding  Interest expense paid 75,196
EHEE company ENFMEER
PREER A A
Certain subsidiaries of CRH Fellow subsidiaries Supply of direct power 139
EHEENETHBARF BEAGIENG BEME
Providing retail power 16,868
agency services
RETEENRERE
Providing integrated energy 571
services
LR S IRIRT
Providing agency service fee 152
REREREE
Software maintenance 29,612
expense paid
B E A ER
Trademark use fee 2,026
BIRERE
Purchase of consumables 1,050
BEHRMm
Professional fee 658
BEXEH
Purchase of fuel 8,338
BEME
Purchase of materials 188
BEMH
Rental expense 49,073
HeRx
Advertisement expense 71
EER%
Insurance expense 35
RE2 X
Other expense 506
HAhfAx
Certain joint ventures of CR Cement Joint ventures of Providing retail power 1,523
EHKENETEELE fellow subsidiary agency services
RZHERRZ REZEENAERS
BELE
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Name of related company
BEAR BB

Certain subsidiaries of (R Land
EHEMAE THERR

China Resources Energy Service Co., Ltd.

ERHERREERAT

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai
Company Limited

WEEBRTRNBRAF

Certain associates of the Group
AEBENETHERE

Relationship
B

Fellow subsidiaries
EERN)ENE]

Fellow subsidiary

eGP

Fellow subsidiary

BEG)- U]

Associate
B

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

Nature of transactions

Providing maintenance service
TR #E IR T

Rental expense

He&H

Transportation fee

RpE

Other expense

Hi &M

Contract environment
management fee, contract
energy management fee and
exclusive operation fee

AAIREEHEER  AWEER
ERERAREHEEEN

Interest expense paid

ENFSER

Interest income

FIEWA

Sales of electricity
HEE S

Sales of coal

HE X

Sales of heat

SHE A

Sales of materials
HEMH

Purchase of fuel
HEEME

Electricity trading fee
ENRFER
Providing agency service fee
RERERKE

Providing maintenance service

TR AR

Service income

FRFSUA

Rental income

HE WA

Rental expense
HeEH
Transportation fee
RmpE

Interest expense paid

ENFISER

Interestincome

FSHA

2019
e

HK$'000
TET

1,731
32,534

149

15

12,095

3,682

384,981
838,343
44
72,751
106,088
1,211
46,034
58,121
2,439
162
59

24
10,175

446



Name of related company
BEAR BB

Certain joint ventures of the
Group

AEENETARZEEE

Certain non-controlling
shareholder of the Group

AEEOETIFERER

Relationship
B1R

Joint ventures
BEL%

Non-controlling
shareholder

E 2l

Nature of transactions

Sales of electricity

HEE S

Sales of coal

HERX

Sales of materials

HE R

Sales of heat

THEREY

Sales of by-products

HEREMD

Purchase of fuel

EEME

Purchase of materials

HEEME

Purchase of coal
transportation service

RER KRR

Providing agency service fee

RERERKE

Providing maintenance service

R EERS

Providing integrated
energy services

RMERAEIRIRE

Service income

ARISMA

Management fee income

EEBWA

Maintenance expenses

HEER

Interest expense paid

BHFEEMA

Interest income

FISHA

Interestincome

FIEWA

2019
o

HK$'000
8%
2,283
484,895
740,045
91,997
6,375
71,582

25,230

66,015

3,267
3,102

10,537

27,540
13,862
106,948
5,563

5,741

706
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(3) Compensation to the Company's key management forms
part of the "Key Management Compensation” described in
note 47(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements. These
are continuing connected transactions exempted from the
connected transaction requirements under Rule 14A.76 or
14A.95 of the Listing Rules

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2019.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers together
accounted for 24.39% of the Group's total purchases during the
year. The five largest suppliers are ®RE8ERAR A A (Yuanjing
Energy Co., Ltd.) (6.86%), Datong Coal Mine Group Co., Ltd. (4.68%),
BB L IRIREEBRRA M AR A A (Shanxi Lu'An Environmental
Energy Development Co., Ltd.) (4.57%), HEHEELEB AR AT
(Shenhua Trading Group Co., Ltd.) (4.30%) and Shaanxi Coal Selling
and Transportation (Group) Corporation (3.98%).

Sales to the Group's five largest customers together accounted
for 63.20% of the Group's total turnover during the year. The
five largest customers are B# T4 & E H/2F) (Jiangsu Electric
Power Company) (17.73%), T?ﬁgﬁiﬁﬁﬁ (Guangdong Power Grid
Company) (14.58%), B4 EE 1727 (Hubei Electric Power
Company) (12.58%), B# A m&E 727 (Henan Electric Power
Company) (11.00%) and IUEEH R A (Shandong Power Grid
Company) (7.31%).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued
shares) have any interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers
or customers.

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company has applied all of the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code (the"Code") continued in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules and complied with the code provisions of the Code.
The Company also adopted most of the recommended best practices
in the said Code.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices of the Company is
set out in Corporate Governance Report on page 88 to 128 of this
Annual Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS (“MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit and
Risk Committee. In 2019, four of the five Audit and Risk Committee
members are Independent Non-executive Directors, with the
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee having appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company will submit a resolution at
the forthcoming AGM to recommend the appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the new independent auditor of the Company
after the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
Annual Report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company's issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited

Wang Chuandong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group develops, constructs, and operates power plants,
including large-scale efficient coal- fired generation units,
wind farms, hydro-electric plants, gas-fired power plants and
photovoltaic power projects. The Group also engages in power
sales and comprehensive energy services as well as constructs and
operates coal mines.

In 2019, power consumption growth in China slowed down as
compared to 2018, with an increase of 4.5%. Average utilisation
hours for thermal generation units in China decreased by 85
hours or 1.9% year on year to 4,293 hours. The average full-load
equivalent utilisation hours of the subsidiary coal-fired power
plants of the Group which were operational for the full year of 2019
was 4,725 hours, representing a decrease of 275 hours or 5.5% as
compared to 2018, but exceeding the national average utilisation
hours for thermal power plants by 432 hours.

In 2019, the average utilisation hours for wind power generation
units in China reached 2,082 hours. The average full-load
equivalent utilisation hours of the wind farms of the Group which
were fully operational for the year of 2019 was 2,201 hours,
exceeding the national average by 119 hours.

Generation capacity

As at the end of 2019, the Group's total attributable operational
generation capacity was 40,392MW, of which thermal power
plants amounted to 30,972MW, accounting for 76.7%, wind, hydro
and photovoltaic power capacity together accounting for 23.3%,
representing an increase of 3.2 percentage points from the end of
2018.

During the year, the Group accelerated the development and
construction of clean and renewable energy, and the attributable
generation capacity of newly commissioned wind and photovoltaic
power projects reached 1,871MW and 5.1MW respectively. At
the end of 2019, the Group's attributable operational wind
power generation capacity was 8,687MW and 3,809MW under
construction; attributable operational photovoltaic generation
capacity reached 453MW and 98MW under construction;
attributable operational hydro-electric generation capacity was
280MW and 107MW under construction.
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During the year, the Group newly commissioned a 1x1,000MW
ultra-supercritical generation unit in Caofeidian (Phase I1), Hebei,
51% owned by the Group; 2x660MW ultra-supercritical coal-fired
power generation units in Wujianfang, Xilingol, Inner Mongolia,
70% owned by the Group; and 103MW gas-fired distributed energy
project in Changzhou, Jiangsu, 100% owned by the Group. Newly
commissioned thermal power generation capacity was 1,537MW.

Gross and net generation volume

The gross generation volume and the net generation volume of
the subsidiary power plants amounted to 158,038,060MWh and
149,186,086MWh respectively, both representing a decrease of
1.6% as compared to 2018, mainly due to the 5.5% decrease in
average full-load equivalent utilisation hours of subsidiary coal-
fired power plants, and the reduction of equity interest in CR
Fuyang Power Plant by the Group during the year, which was
reclassified as an associate.

In 2019, the net generation volume of our consolidated power
plants that followed market-based pricing accounted for 66%, and
that participated in direct power supply (including bilateral long-
term agreements and on-grid competitive bidding) accounted for
55%. The average tariff (exclusive of tax) of the direct power supply
volumes was at a discount of 8.1% as compared with the average
benchmark on-grid tariff, further narrowing as compared to that in
2018.

Fuel costs

In 2019, due to the gradual release of production capacity in the
coal industry and the slowdown in power demand growth in China,
domestic coal prices were on a downward trend. Average unit fuel
cost of the subsidiary coal-fired power plants was RMB203.8/MWAh,
representing a decrease of 7.6% as compared to 2018. Average unit
cost of standard coal was RMB679.9/tonne, representing a decrease
of 6.8% as compared to 2018.

The average net generation standard coal consumption rate of the
subsidiary coal-fired power plants was 296.6g/kWh, representing a
decrease of 2.9g/kWh or 1.0% from 299.5g/kwWh in 2018.

Environmental expenses

The total environmental expenses incurred by the subsidiary
coal-fired power plants were RMB109 million, representing a
decrease of 4.1% as compared to 2018, mainly due to the decrease
in net generation volume of coal-fired power plants, decrease
in coal consumption rate and the efficiency enhancement of
desulfurization and denitrification of certain power plants resulting
from upgrades for energy-saving.
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Capital expenditure

In 2019, the cash capital expenditure of the Group amounted to
approximately HKS22,786 million, of which HK$17,685 million
was used in the construction of wind farms, photovoltaic power
projects and hydro-electric plant, approximately HK$3,471 million
was used in the construction of thermal power units, HKS1,391
million was used in upgrading the operating coal-fired power
units for environmental protection, energy-saving and heat supply,
and approximately HK$239 million was used in the upgrade and
construction of coal mines.

In January 2020, the "COVID-19 virus" epidemic outbreak spread
across China. The government implemented a number of measures
to curb the spread of the virus, such as extending the Lunar New
Year holiday, quarantining personnel, and delaying resumption
of work. Due to the delayed resumption of operation in factories
and enterprises in January and February, power demand remained
at low levels. With enterprises across China gradually returning to
work and resuming production at the end of February and March,
it is expected that power demand will gradually recover. In order
to deal with the negative impacts of the epidemic on economic
growth, the central government will adopt a series of measures,
such as reducing taxes and fees, reducing the burden on enterprises
and stimulating economic growth.

The overall electricity consumption growth rate in China for the
year will depend on a number of factors, including epidemic
control and economy stimulus measures by the government. The
epidemic delayed production resumption of certain coal mines after
the Lunar New Year, at the same time power demand remained
low. The Group responded quickly by increasing coal inventory to
deal with the epidemic impacts. The Group is also well-prepared
for power generation demand rebound as soon as the epidemic is
over.

The epidemic delayed the resumption of construction of
power projects after the Lunar New Year, which may affect
the commissioning dates of some wind power projects. The
government has stated that wind power tariff will implement grid
parity policy starting from 2021. The Group will accelerate the
construction of wind power projects and strive to complete the
construction target by the end of this year, and currently estimates
that by the end of 2020, renewable energy, mainly wind power,
will account for approximately 29% of the Group's total attributable
operational generation capacity.
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In 2020, the Group expects to commission an attributable capacity
of 1,222MW of thermal power generation units including:
1x1,000MW ultra-supercritical generation unit in Caofeidian (Phase
I1), Hebei, 51% owned by the Group; 2x350MW heat and power
co-generation units in Yundong, Cangzhou, Hebei, 90% owned by
the Group; and an 82MW gas-fired distributed generation unit in
Taixing, Jiangsu, 100% owned by the Group.

As the Chinese power industry reform will continue to advance,
the Group will actively seek development opportunities, focus on
the development of power sales, comprehensive energy services
including energy efficiency services and energy storage, and
actively explore business transformation and innovation.

In 2020, the cash capital expenditure is expected to be
approximately HKS24 billion, including approximately HK$19
billion for the construction of wind farms, photovoltaic power
projects and hydro-electric power plant, approximately HKS3
billion for the construction of thermal power units, approximately
HKS1 billion for technical upgrades of coal-fired power units, such
as environmental protection, energy saving and heat supply, and
approximately HKS1 billion for the construction of coal mines.

The development of the power industry is closely related to
the national macro-economy, and is influenced by government
policies. In addition to the main factors such as change in power
demand, electricity tariff policies and fuel supply and pricing, other
factors such as the COVID-19 epidemic at the beginning of 2020,
have certain impact on the achievement of the Company’s business
objectives which creates uncertainty. The Group will continue to
monitor the supply and demand situation of the domestic power
market, as well as national policies and make timely and necessary
responses and adjustments in business implementation, including
controlling the pace of capital expenditure.
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OPERATING RESULTS
Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Turnover

Operating expenses
Fuels
Depreciation and amortisation
Employee benefit expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Consumables
Impairment charges
Tax and surcharges
Others

Total operating expenses

Other income

Other gains - net

Net losses on disposal of certain subsidiaries
in coal mining segment

Operating profit

Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Other non-controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company during the year
- Basic and diluted
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2019
=F-NF
HK$'000
Tz

67,757,632

(33,317,542)
(10,631,129)
(5,190,039)
(1,954,437)
(1,035,835)
(2,284,134)
(765,388)

)

(2,684,470

(57,862,974)

2,851,010
142,790

12,888,458

(3,786,511)
192,537
358,532

9,653,016

(2,311,622)

7,341,394

6,590,345
751,049

7,341,394

HK$1.37/& 7T

2018
—ZE—)\F

HKS'000
FETT

76,940,125

(39,436,898)
(11,152,914)
(6,068,230)
(2,039,174)
(1,136,328)
(962,004)
(1,385,656)
(3,993,848)

(66,175,052)

2,613,340
91,441

(2,121,569)

11,348,285
(4,314,685)

223,638

53,937

7,311,175
(2,286,302)

5,024,873

3,950,435
1,074,438

5,024,873

HK$0.83/8 7T

Annual Report 2019 £ %R




62

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Itemns that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Currency translation difference

Share of other comprehensive income
of investments accounted for using
the equity method

Release to profit or loss in relation to
disposal of subsidiaries

Release to profit or loss in relation to
disposal of associates

[temns that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss

Fair value changes on equity investments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Perpetual capital securities holders
Other non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year, net of tax
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2019
—F-NF
HK$'000
TR

7,341,394

(2,271,465)

(131,779)
(15,146)

17,401

30,590

(2,370,399)

4,970,995

4,432,883
16,050

522,062

4,970,995

5,024,873

(4,578,808)

(206,700)

(818,797)

308,644

(5,295,661)

(270,788)

(1,171,366)

900,578

(270,788)



Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2019

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Right-of-use assets
Goodwill
Mining rights
Exploration and resources rights
Deferred tax assets
Other receivables and prepayments
Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Loans to an FVOCI investee company

Loans to a non-controlling shareholder

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Loans to an associate
Loans to joint ventures
Loans to an FVOCI investee company

Loans to a non-controlling shareholder
Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from other related companies
Pledged/restricted bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

aE
FREEE
EN =
BNHEER
EREEE
m
PRUERE
BIRE R
EEFHIEE
H it FEH R
REFERE

RNE B

AR REE
Hib#r &
AARAE
AR AR
REER

[ S22 Il

REEE

FE
JRE UK BR 3 2
MBS %
Ae S
AR B
AFH AR
NGII=EN
BERZEES
JFEE LS e 1
fE A &
JRE U Lt 8
[ i
BeRBE$

REE

EHEEERBR
H2019%F12A31 8

&L
A

E
eVt
i

s

SHEASBEHA
st S MAE
CHETE S
BRI E

REX

H fto fE YRR
&

&%

B2 BE#Ehst
Bl ERE
REX

EL/L]

ES/L]
BRAFRIA

PR BRI T 3K
EEY

2019
—F-NF
HK$'000
T#RT

150,581,102
5,377,588
773,405
320,628
151,462
744,390
11,937,592
8,833,069
5,158,844

1,934,571

339,633
13,954

186,166,238

3,171,932
20,395,018
32,821
415,059

83,867
27,348
21,141
89,493
425,503

4,907,306

29,569,488

215,735,726

145,272,477
3,437,135
1,287,142

480,605
216,025
882,182
11,521,984
9,480,198
3,678,437

1,877,311

126,331
14,266

178,274,093

3,295,536
17,898,990
33,137
45,652

306,631
36,521
32,637
42,473
66,063

214,281

7,977,153

29,949,074

208,223,167
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Perpetual capital securities holders
Others non-controlling interests

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred income
Retirement and benefit obligations

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to joint ventures
Amounts due to other related companies
Current tax liabilities
Borrowings

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
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22,316,710
8,225,686

42,381,583

72,923,979

5,581,750

8,210,284

86,716,013

68,763,429
432,157
826,903
480,933
740,073
115,002

71,358,497

28,719,884
1,309,434
210,811
468,532
140,549
6,747,540
924,147

19,140,319

57,661,216

129,019,713

215,735,726

22,316,710
9,078,976
38,739,628

70,135,314

7,149,297

77,284,611

69,210,171
531,755
778,517
779,275

56,729

71,356,447

28,253,761
1,128,165
1,370,208

648,770
292,310
423,929
27,464,966

59,582,109
130,938,556

208,223,167
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
—E-NF eaayiS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TBT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRETHELENBEERE
Profit before income tax K P45 5 A A 9,653,016 7,311,175
Adjustments for: P

Depreciation and amortisation 785 BRI 5 10,631,129 11,152,914
Impairment charges NERIEE=ES 2,284,134 962,004
Exchange gains PE 5 e (69,775) (60,880)
Interest expense FEMAZ 3,786,511 4,314,685
Interest income FEWA (367,750) (414,113)
Share of results of associates FE(EE S XS (192,537) (223,638)
Share of results of joint ventures BIHEETEXEE (358,532) (53,937)
Dividends income from financial assets U AREBEEBEHETA
at FVOCI in investee companies HEGaRENemERE
IR E N AR IR BUA (386,627) (212,993)
(Gains)/losses on disposal of property, HEME - BEREED
plant and equipment (W), EE (621) 74,281
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets/ PEFRAEEE TENHEE
prepaid lease payments FIBH) W = (17,024) (67,129)
(Gains)/losses on disposal of subsidiaries HENB QR (M), B8 (41,614) 2,019,094
Gains on disposal of associates HEEEPE RS (33,054) -
Changes in working capital: LEEGE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERA,/(38M) 60,348 (465,077)

(Increase)/decrease in trade and JE UK BR 3% B HL A JE W R IR

other receivables (&), R (3,032,421) 1,273,153
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FETIR N EAth FE AT 3R I8

other payables #hn,/ Crd) 577,629 (4,814,258)

Increase/(decrease) in retirement and EFHRAR M EMRIAE T
other long-term employee BRI A, O d)
benefit obligations 58,273 (167,875)

Income tax paid ETFTEH (A0 S0 (2,530,642)

NET CASH INFLOWS FROM RETHELENBEESRATE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 20,507,579 18,096,764
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from associates
and joint ventures
Dividends received from financial assets
at FVOCl in investee companies

Interests received

Decrease in term deposits

Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments, right-of-use assets,
mining rights and exploration and
resources rights

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments and right-of-use assets

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of associates

Loans repaid by associates

(Loans to)/loans repaid by joint ventures

Loans repaid by/(loans to)
other related parties
Additional investment made into FVOCI

Capital contributions into associates

Capital contributions into joint ventures

Cash outflow on acquisition of
interestin a subsidiary

Government grants related to assets

NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
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2019
—ZE-hEF
HK$'000
FiERT

1,605,309

241,264
310,682

(22,541,915)

88,683
1,381,584
430,398
11,157

(366,507)
37,382
(24,757)

(167,954)
(2,444,245)

43,472

(21,395,447)

2018

—F N\
HKS'000
T

531,507

212,673
307,825
37,996

(16,884,456)

337,031
8,371,942

143,161

113,000
(39,880)
(851)
(725,228)

(100,548)

(4,923)
111,074

(7,589,677)



2019 2018
A =
HKS'000 HKS$'000
T FiT
RATHELNRSRE
RATHE B S H
TR RIES RE RGO

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of corporate
bonds and notes

Repayment of bank borrowings

Redemption of corporate bonds and notes

Proceeds from issuance of perpetual
capital securities

Proceeds from sale of shares held for

34,881,749

56,192,679

5,519,772 -
(L ie e (50,617,562)
G (4,516,360)

BERITIEE
BORREZMER
BITKABAEFHFHR
5,565,700 -
SR SR T &IPS AL

Share Award Scheme B FT1S B8 469,970
Proceeds from disposal of interests HERB AR ER

in subsidiaries without loss of control (R Izl ) FriS 5R 1,383,919 650,068
Capital contributions by JEfEH S B E

non-controlling interests 262,601 1,008,653
Capital reductions by non-controlling interests  FE4Z2HI 1SR E (121,526) -
(Repayment of advances to)/advances (BEMELERR),

from associates B 8 (> SE AR (850,466) 289,949
(Repayment of advances to)/advances (BEAEDERR)/

from joint ventures BEPERR (481,878) 394,042

Repayment of advances to other EEEMBEATRR
related companies (107,452) (455,411)
Advances from/(repayment of advances to) PR A R B

an intermediate holding company (BEPREIERATIERR) 6,238,035 (812,104)
(Repayment of advances to)/advances from (EEM B R RM IR

non-controlling interests of subsidiaries 830,/ WERE

FEFE AR AR SR E R (20,978) 13,599

Principal elements of lease payments EEMEREBEARE (99,981) -
Interests paid EIFE (2 (4,757,071)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BEIRNAQFHEE ARE Ll el (4,184,668)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ERME A A FEERE R

interests of subsidiaries o)) (635,294) (1,119,931)
Others HAth - (1,042)

NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM BMETEEENRES AL B

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (2,084,513) (7,445,189)

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND HERBREEEBYORD),/

CASH EQUIVALENTS #InE A (2,972,381) 3,061,898
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FYRERREEEY

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 7,977,153 5,381,686
EXCHANGE LOSSES EREX (97,466) (466,431)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREGRREEEY

AT THE END OF THE YEAR 4,907,306 7,977,153
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Changes in accounting policies

Except as described below, the accounting policies applied are
consistent with those accounting policies as described and applied
in the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group,
effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2019:

A number of new or amended standards became applicable
for the current reporting period and the Group had to change
its accounting policies and make retrospective adjustments as
a result of adopting Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
16 Leases ("HKFRS 16").

The impact of the adoption of the leasing standard and
the new accounting policies is disclosed below. The other
standards did not have any significant impact on the Group's
accounting policies and did not require retrospective
adjustment.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1
January 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the 2018
reporting period, as permitted under the specific transitional
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases' under the principles of HKAS
17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee's incremental borrowing rates as of 1 January 2019.
The weighted average lessee's incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 ranged from
3.1% 10 5.6%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the Group
recognised the carrying amount of lease assets and lease
liabilities immediately before the implementation of the
new standard as the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
at the date of initial application. The measurement principles
of HKFRS 16 are only applied after 1 January 2019. The
remeasurements to the lease liabilities were recognised as
adjustments to the related right-of-use assets immediately
after the date of initial application.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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The lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 upon initial

adoption are arrived as below.

Operating lease commitments disclosed
as at 31 December 2018
Discounted using the lessee's incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised
as at 31 December 2018
Less: short-term and low-value leases recognised
on a straight-line basis as expense
Less: contracts reassessed as service agreements
Add: adjustments as a result of a different
treatment of extension options
Others

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019

Of which:
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to
the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised
in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018. There were
no onerous lease contracts that would have required an
adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of initial

application.

HEREWOT -

R2018F 12 A 31 HEBEHKE

THE A

{5 AR AR VA B B 25

12 (& KPR

h0 o A 20184F 12 A 31 BHEERH)
MEHEAE

B RESAEREATNEER
EEEHRE

B BRI E ARG HREAELD

i BRSO TREREATERE

HAh
A2019F1 81 BEANHEELERE

Hp gk :
B EAE
FENHEERE

HIRERAREN 2019 1 A 1 REERH

HK$'000
THET
244,657

192,239

22,791

(2,430)
(40,476)

139,795
122,232

434,151

117,672
316,479

434,151

FE 0 R 2018F12A31HME
ERERPEREAZIBHERENT
FEM K EAENREBETH
B o PAWIIAE R B HA AT 8 S PR
BEETARMERAY -
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The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following

types of assets:

2019

HKS$'000
FET

31 December

EERNERREEL T EERE
Gl

INERERY
2019
=L
—H—H
HKS'000
FABTT

Prepaid lease payments ENEEER 4,496,335 4,180,413
Buildings BF 475,954 252,693
Power generating plant and equipment 2B HE MR E 392,044 69,986
Motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures, B R BE -

equipment and others B S HA 13,255 13,543
Construction in progress EEIR - 22,845
Total right-of-use assets REAEEE 5,377,588 4,539,480
The change in accounting policy affected the following items R2019F 1 A1H  BEREFHE
in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019: ETHNEEBERNER -
e Right-of-use assets - increase by HK$4,539,480,000 e F A B B E — & m

(including reclassification of prepaid lease payments for
land use right in PRC amounting to HK$3,437,135,000)

4,539,480,00078 JT(& # B +
WERENENEERBEE D
$83,437,135,000757T)

e Qther receivables and prepayments - decrease by °
HK$656,963,000

H b e Y 3018 K FE S SRR — R
656,963,000 7 7T

e Property, plant and equipment - decrease by °
HK$34,022,000 (representing reclassification to right-
of-use assets for property, plant and equipment finance
leased by the Group)

ME-- BMEREKHE - AP
34,022,000 8 L (AAEERE
MY BEIRZHEBRENGE
REEENENHE)

e Prepaid lease payments - decrease by HK$3,437,135,000 e MM MEE RHE - R D
3,437,135,0007 7T

e Trade and other payables - decrease by HK$22,791,000 o FETOR R K H b E S FIE — R
4>22,791,0007%8 ¢

e Lease liabilities - increase by HK$434,151,000 e MHEBE-1EIN434,151,0008

7T
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(b) The Group has not early adopted new and amended
standards that have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning after 1 January 2019

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for the reporting
period ended 31 December 2019 and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue received and receivable arising on
sales of electricity, coal and heat supply, net of value-added tax,
during the year.

Sales of electricity BIHEE
Including: Sales of power generated

from thermal power plants

Sales of power generated Al AR
from renewable energy
Heat supply HeeftrE
Sales of coal B IEE

The Group's turnover for 2019 was HKS67,758 million, representing
an 11.9% decrease from HK$76,940 million in 2018, mainly
attributable to (1) the disposal of coal assets in Shanxi Province and
reduction of equity interest in CR Fuyang Power Plant by the Group
last year resulting in a decrease in turnover, (2) depreciation in
the exchange rate of RMB against HKD resulting in a year-on-year
decrease of 4.3% in the value of turnover presented in HKD, and
(3) the year-on-year decrease of 1.6% in the total net generation
volume of subsidiary power plants.

At the end of 2018, the Group disposed of its coal assets in
Shanxi Province, resulting in a substantial decrease in the profit
contribution from coal business to the Group and its share of the
Group's assets. The remaining coal projects are mainly supporting
coal mines for power plants in integrated coal and power projects.
Therefore, the coal business has been classified into the thermal
power segment and is no longer reported as a separate segment
from 2019.

B NEREBEEHE

(b) AEZE[E o RIZRRAR2019F 14 1
H & B 46 BRI B JB 2 2% i 18 e R £
RAHIFTET RASNEZTE R

AR T — L Ty = 5T 4 R R0 AR
1 LRI EL 2019F 12 A
3IEMFREHATZREER - b
RBEWEBIRAIRA - Bt ELIZeE

RISk AR R AR BRI A A 7B B /Y

ARZGFIEHARBELEERY
@,

SXRARNESER

LERBEFARBEEES - KRR MHRN
E AR B SR ER (FIBRIB BT IR) ©

2019 2018
—E-NF giGE

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TETT

62,613,522 66,001,230
52,019,375 56,886,301
EBHE
10,594,147 9,114,929
5,144,110 4,808,207
= 6,130,688
67,757,632 76,940,125

2019 ¥ A 677.58EE T - 82018
F769.401EFBITLTF11.9%  FERHED
WMEFAEELEELAEKREEL BT

BEREmBE BREXRTE (A
RELEHERRLLREDN4.3% - F15A
BRI EXBERERL TR - &(3)

MEBERNAEEERL TE1.6% -

2018 FK * AEEHE TURILARMER
BE BREBHAEENFBEBFME
AEBEEELEKNE T - BRAEEKIEH
FTEAKE B EEPAEREEMNK
% AtB2019FBFEKREBHANE
“%ﬂﬁ M ABIEAE—(EEBY RO D

.
hval

hu]
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE w1

The Group is engaged in two business segments - thermal power
(inclusive of coal-fired and gas-fired power plants and coal assets)
and renewable energy (inclusive of wind, photovoltaic and hydro-
electric projects). The segment information for 2018 is restated
accordingly.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results of
the reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Segment revenue 7 EBULA

External sales HNERSHE

Inter-segment sales 7 EBEIHE

Total st

Segment profit 7 EpFI

Unallocated corporate expenses RKNBELEER

Interest income FEWA

Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARRE W

Gains on disposal of associates HEREPERE R

Finance costs HBEA

Share of results of associates JE(REtE XA

Share of results of joint ventures EhEEabEREA

Dividend income from FVOCI NARBETELEE
investee companies AR ’rHl/vT\/\HﬂZﬁn

EOEE SN ISR ON
Exchange gains P H
Profit before tax B 15 AT A1

72 China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

BRASEBLEMBEEB I - ANHESE
(BREBREER RAERMEEREE)
fn‘fﬁi ER(BIERNDEE - SR RK

B) 2018FMHHAERBEUETE
§IJ

AT BRI 2850 B0 & 0 M AR B U S K
KEN

BZE2019F 12831 ALEE

57,163,485 10,594,147 67,757,632

57,163,485 10,594,147 67,757,632

8,227,609 5,751,599 13,979,208

(1,989,570)
367,750
41,614
33,054

(3,786,511)
192,537
358,532

386,627
69,775

9,653,016



For the year ended 31 December 2018

Segment revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total
Segment profit

Unallocated corporate expenses
Interest income
Net losses on Disposal of Shanxi
Coal Mining Assets
Gains on disposal of
other subsidiaries
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Dividend income from
FVOCl investee companies

Exchange gains

Profit before tax

Geographicalinformation

Substantially all of the Group's non-current assets are located in the
PRC, and operations were substantially carried out in the PRC.

Thermal
power
XE
HK$'000
TAR
(restated)
(BE5)
D EBA
INERSHE 61,694,508
HEEEE -
st 61,694,508
k= T DEd 7,136,326
ADBLEXER
FBUA
HELFEREREE
BEFE
HEEMME AT
BE W
BB
e E D EEE
ElhaEtEEE
NAREERTE
BEHTARM
A WM
BERRRBLA
B 5 Wezs
BR &L A F)E

HZEZ2018F 12 A 31 BLLFE

PENEED]E
energy  Coal mining
BEER BIERR
HKS'000 HKS'000
THERT THERT
(restated)
(EE35)
9,114,929 6,130,688
- 23,241
9,114,929 6,153,929
4,665,171 2,704,214

Hh 15 & K}

Eliminations

3

HKS'000
TET

(23,241)

(23,241)

BN ERRAREET -

Total
st

HKS'000
TET

76,940,125

76,940,125
14,505,711

(1,826,318)
414,113

(2,121,569)

102,475
(4,314,685)
223,638
53,937

212,993
60,880

7,311,175

AEBBABDIFRDEEMNTE - &
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Operating expenses

Operating expenses mainly comprise fuels, repairs and
maintenance, depreciation and amortisation, employee benefit
expenses, consumables, tax and surcharge, impairment loss,
and other operating expenses. Other operating expenses
include production safety expenses of coal, office rent, water
charges, production maintenance fees, utility expenses and
other management expenses. Operating expenses amounted
to HK$57,863 million, representing a decrease of 12.6% from
HK$66,175 million in 2018.

Fuels amounted to HK$33,318 million, representing a decrease
of HKS$6,119 million or 15.5% from HK$39,437 million for 2018,
mainly due to the decrease in the unit price of standard coal
by approximately 6.8% year-on-year, and the decrease in the
net generation volume of subsidiary thermal power plants by
approximately 3.6% year-on-year. In addition, the depreciation in
the exchange rate of RMB against HKD resulting in a year-on-year
decrease of the fuel cost presented in HKD.

Repairs and maintenance expenses decreased by approximately
HKS85 million or 4.2% to HKS1,954 million mainly attributable to
the impact of depreciation in the exchange rate of RMB against
HKD.

Depreciation and amortisation decreased by approximately
HKS522 million or 4.7% to HK$10,631 million, mainly due to (1) the
decrease in the depreciation and amortisation of coal assets as a
result of disposal of coal assets in Shanxi at the end of 2018, and (2)
the depreciation in the exchange rate of RMB against HKD.

Employee benefit expenses decreased by approximately HKS$878
million or 14.5% to HK$5,190 million from approximately HK$6,068
million in 2018, mainly due to (1) the disposal of coal assets in
Shanxi at the end of 2018, resulting in a decrease in the number of
employees as the related employees were transferred to the buyer,
and (2) the depreciation in the exchange rate of RMB against HKD.

Tax and surcharge decreased by approximately HK$S620 million or
44.8% from HKS$1,386 million in 2018 to HKS765 million mainly due
to (1) a decrease in coal-related resource tax paid after the disposal
of the coal assets in Shanxi at the end of 2018, and (2) a decrease in
urban maintenance and construction tax and education surcharge
payable as a result of adjustment in the rate of value-added tax.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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Impairment loss increased from HK$S962 million in 2018 to
HKS$2,284 million, mainly including: (1) impairment provisions
made for power assets of HK$S957 million, which mainly included
impairment provisions made for goodwill of Jiangsu Investment,
Xuzhou Huaxin and Shenyang Shenhai, and impairment provisions
made for obsolete assets as a result of technological upgrades, and
(2) impairment provisions of approximately HKS1,327 million made
for coal mine assets, which were mainly provisions for impairment
of coal assets located in Henan, Jiangsu and Hunan.

Other operating expenses decreased by HK$1,309 million or
32.8% from HKS$3,994 million for 2018 to HKS$2,684 million for
2019, mainly due to the inclusion of other operating expenses
of HKS1,032 million of disposed coal assets in Shanxi in 2018.
Excluding this factor, other operating expenses decreased by
HKS$277 million or 9.4% year-on-year, mainly due to the impact
of the depreciation of the exchange rate of RMB against HKD.
Other operating expenses mainly include other production costs
of the power business such as water charges and utility expenses
totalling HKS1,792 million, office rents, building management fees,
professional fees, administrative charges and other administrative
costs totalling HK$892 million.

Otherincome and other gains - net

Other income amounted to HK$2,851 million, representing an
increase of 9.1% from HKS2,613 million in 2018, mainly attributable
to an increase in income from sales of by-products and an increase
in dividend income. Other income mainly included income from
sales of by-products of HK$994 million, receipt of government
grants and subsidies of HKS675 million, dividend income of HK$387
million, interest income of HK$368 million, and income from
service fees of HK$131 million.

Other gains - net amounted to HKS143 million, mainly including
exchange gains and losses of HK$S70 million, gains on disposal of
equity interest in subsidiaries, namely Panzhihua and Dongming,
and associates, namely Hebei Hengxing and Hebei Hengfeng,
amounting to HKS75 million, charity donations of HK$S90 million,
income from insurance claims of HKS44 million, gains from disposal
of land use rights of HK$S17 million and indemnity for breach of
contract of HKS15 million.

MEBAXB2018F9.2EE T EAZE
2284BF L EEB/EFE: ()ENEEST
REYS7TESBIT TERMIEHKRE -
HBMNESFLG LSO EETIERE - U
K BB 3510 23 T 3R BE D AR M AT IR R (B
Z QBB REEIRRELN13.27188
T FEREETUANE - JTEMBAE
RRE R EETIR T HE ©

2019 F H b & & B 2N & 26.84 1878 T -
2018 F 39.94 (8B LR 2 13.09 B8 T
532.8% TER2018FEBETDHERN
WA R EEMNEMEERA10.32188
TC o BrRZ AR - EM KB AR LR A
277 BT 9.4% - TERHANRARE Y
BITEXZEYE -HEMEEXNATER
RENEBNEMEERALKE - N
BEA17.92BE T BAERS 2
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THAY A 8.92E8F T °

HAW A MEAFG — F 88

H fb W A A28.511E /& JT° 820184F
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1€~ REFMBE L AR AL H - b Er e
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0.90 188 TT * tRERESFULA 0.44 88T -
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Operating profit

Operating profit represents profit from the subsidiaries before
deduction of finance costs, income tax expenses and non-
controlling interests. Operating profit for 2019 amounted to
HKS12,888 million, representing an increase of 13.6% from
HK$11,348 million in 2018. The increase was mainly due to (1) a
decrease in unit fuel costs of the subsidiary coal-fired power plants,
and (2) increase in profit contribution of newly commissioned
wind farms; such increase was partially offset by (1) increase in
asset impairment charges, (2) decrease in profit contribution of
the coal business upon disposal of Shanxi coal assets, and (3) the
depreciation in the exchange rate of RMB against HKD.

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to HKS$3,787 million, representing a
decrease of HKS528 million or 12.2% from HKS$4,315 million in
2018, mainly due to the decrease in bank and other borrowings
and the average borrowing interest rate.

Interest on bank and other borrowings
Interest on corporate bonds and notes

Interests on loans from related parties B 7 B RFE
Interests on lease liabilities HERENE
Others HAmh

Less: Interest capitalised in property,
plant and equipment

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates decreased by 13.9% to HKS193 million
from HKS224 million in 2018 mainly due to impairment provisions
made for coal assets, but such decrease was partially offset by the
increase in profit from associate power plants.
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Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of joint ventures increased by 564.7% to HKS359
million from HK$54 million in 2018 mainly due to a decrease in fuel
cost and an increase in utilisation hours of Hezhou Power Plant in
Guangxi, a joint venture of the Group, both of which resulted in an
increase in its earnings.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses increased by HKS25 million or 1.1%
to HKS2,312 million from HKS$2,286 million in 2018 mainly
attributable to the increases in income tax expenses as a result of
profit increase of subsidiary coal-fired power plants, which was
partially offset by (1) the decrease in income tax expenses of coal
business subsequent to the disposal of coal assets in Shanxi as at
the end of 2018, and (2) the reversal of deferred income tax of coal
business due to the losses on disposal of coal assets.

Details of the income tax expenses for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 are set out below:

Current income tax - PRC enterprise income tax & A5 518 — P D RS

Deferred income tax RIEFTIS IR

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
had no taxable profit or incurred tax losses in Hong Kong for both
years.

The PRC enterprise income tax has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax
rates applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC.

iR

AL EELEAIOBEB T &
2018 F 0.54 BB L2 K564.7% T EF
FE T B 78 N E R R AR AR AR T B K I A
N E A B E TG0

FREBER

Fri8fi &M A23.128 8 T ° 820184
22.861E B L IE MN0.251E B 7T 5 1.1%
FEHRKTBREERFE LA - ABFT
SR BRAEMN - B4 (1)2018F KL E L
ARHREER HEFAESHREBARL &
RQEEREFBERAFEHREIELMSH
BEMIDHEE -

HE2019F 201812 A31 B I FE
AT BRESEINT ¢

2019 2018
—Z-NF RIS
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
2,437,137

(150,835)

2,286,302
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Operating profit for the year

FREEFNB

Operating profit for the year has been arrived FREZFED R

after deducting the following items:

Directors' remuneration
- Fees
- Salaries and bonus
- Pension costs

Wages, salaries and bonus

Pension costs, excluding directors -
retirement benefit schemes

Employee termination benefits

Total staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Auditor's remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as
operating expenses

Impairment charges

Operating lease payments on
land and buildings

And after adding the following items:
Dividend income from FVOCI

Government grant

Interest income

Sales of scrap materials

Service income from heat
connection contracts

Net exchange gains (included in
other gains/(losses))

Net gains/(losses) on disposal of subsidiaries

Gains on disposal of associates

Net gains/(losses) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (included in
other gains/(losses))
Net gains on disposal of prepaid lease

payments (included in other gains/(losses))

Expenses capitalised in construction
in progress:

Other staff costs

Pension costs

Depreciation and amortisation
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2019

S
HKS'000
FiE

1,832
12,159
156

14,147
4,309,302

726,724
139,866

5,190,039

10,631,129
13,393

34,361,165
2,284,134

82,880

386,627
674,894
367,750
1,003,276

83,282

69,775
41,614
33,054

535,161
61,619
120,515

1,335
13,782
156

15,273
5,042,559

1,034,681
(24,283)

6,068,230

11,152,914
13,124

40,562,857
962,004

143,812

212,993
755,495
414,113
757,782

205,070

60,880
(2,019,094)

(74,281)

67,129

442,571
41,464
74,137



Profit attributable to owners of the Company RATEE AEAEFE

As a result of the above, profit attributable to owners of the MR L&\ - KNQ A% A A EAGFH
Company increased from approximately HK$3,950 million in 2018  F 20184 #939.50 185 j0 1€ = 2019 F 49
to approximately HK$6,590 million in 2019, representing a year- 65.901&8 7T * AL FF66.8% °
on-yearincrease of 66.8%.

Earnings per share BRAEF

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share ZARQFIHEAABRGEHTRERRESET
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the MREBLATEREE
following data:

2019
HKS'000 HKS'000

FET FEIT
Profit attributable to owners of the Company KNFHER AEIGFE 6,590,345 3,950,435

Number of ordinary shares

EEREE
2019

ordinary shares for calculation of A EERERZFTE -

basic earnings per share TimR JSil i ) 4,780,875,881
Weighted average number of ordinary shares METEEREERFME -

for the calculation of diluted earnings AR A pIAE 19 ER

per share SSRL aas e 4,780,875,881

Basic earnings per share FREREF

Diluted earnings per share FREEAT
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Final dividend and closure of register of members

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.348 per
share for 2019 (2018: HKS0.203 per share).

Dividends distributed during the year:
2019 Interim, paid - HKS$0.20 per share

(2018: HK$0.125 per share) A% 0.20 87T

FRAEDIRARE :
2R 2019 FHEANG B —

REPREREEERDELFE

BEEORREZ2019FERBEREAER
0.34870(2018 4 : BA%0.20387T) °

2019
=t ST

HK$'000
FiBT

(20184 : &% 0.12587T) 962,089 597,390
2018 Final, paid - HK$0.203 per share BEIRT 2018 FARHIAL &S —
(2017: HK$0.75 per share) FR%0.20378 7T
(20174 : §f%0.75/87T) 976,520 3,580,429
1,938,609 4,177,819
Dividend proposed after the end of the WMEFEHREHEEIRN
reporting year: RS -
Proposed final dividend for 2019 of HK$0.348  #PJK 2019 FARHIR S
(2018: HK$0.203) per share FHR0.348787T
(20184 : 0.20387T) 1,674,034 976,520

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 9 June
2020, the proposed final dividend will be distributed on Thursday,
9 July 2020 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Friday, 19 June 2020.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
4 June 2020 to Tuesday, 9 June 2020 (both days inclusive), during
which no share transfer will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company's share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 3 June 2020.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019, the register of members of
the Company will be closed on Friday, 19 June 2020 and no share
transfer will be registered on that day. To qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 18
June 2020.

Capital structure management

The Group and the Company manage capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity structures. The Group's and the Company's
overall strategy remain consistent as in prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts (including
long-term and short-term bank borrowings, corporate bonds, loans
from related parties), cash and cash equivalents, pledged and
restricted bank deposits and equity attributable to owners of the
Company (comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
earnings).

The Board reviews the capital structure on a periodic basis. As part
of the review, the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on the resolution of the
Board, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as by issue of new debts or repayment of existing debts.

Liquidity and financial resources, borrowings, and charge of
assets

At 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$28,092 million. The Directors are of the opinion
that, taking into account the current operating and business plan of
the Group as well as the banking facilities available to the Group,
the Group has sufficient working capital to enable it to meet in
full its financial obligations as and when they fall due for the
coming twelve months from the balance sheet date. Therefore, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.
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The cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2019
denominated in HKD, RMB and other foreign currencies amounted
to HKS444 million, RMB3,985 million and US$2 million,
respectively.

Bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 are as follows:

Secured bank loans BEMIRITER
Unsecured bank loans EIPIRITER
Corporate bonds nEfES

Loans from related parties B2k AR =R

The maturity profile of the above bank and other borrowings is as
follows:

R2019F 1283180 UiET  ARER
HMINEDIERNIR e RIREEEMH R A
4441878 T - AR 398518702 0.0218
FETT e

KREBR2019F & 2018F12 A31HH
RITREMEENT :

2019 2018
e T \F
HKS'000 HKS'000
FEx FHBTT

2,996,099 3,324,118
71,416,559 79,330,271
13,491,090 14,020,748

6,233,010 -
94,136,758 96,675,137

BRI REMEBENSIHBENT

2019 20
—E-hEF Z=— )\
HKS$'000 HKS'000
THBTT T T

Within 1 year —FR 25,373,329 27,464,966

Between 1 and 2 years BB —FETBBMRFE 10,821,374 14,656,676

Between 2 and 5 years MEAMFEETHBBRSE 35,164,519 27,092,882

Over 5 years HBidAF 22,777,536 27,460,613
94,136,758 96,675,137

The above bank and other borrowings FatiRIT R EMEE

are secured by: T8 B fEE R
Pledge of assets (Note) BERBMZE) 2,106,542 2,744,296

Note: Certain bank loans were secured by the Group's buildings, power generating plants
and equipment with carrying value of HK$941,449,000 (2018: HKS$1,007,489,000)
and HK$1,165,093,000 (2018: HKS1,736,807,000), respectively.

Bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2019 denominated
in HKD, RMB and other foreign currencies amounted to
approximately HK$21,888 million, RMB63,287 million, GBP150
million, USD6.73 million and EUR1.45 million, respectively.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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As at 31 December 2019, bank and other borrowings of HK$21,888
million and GBP150 million (2018: HK$20,305 million and US$120
million) bore interest at a range from HIBOR plus 0.60% to HIBOR
plus 1.03% per annum and LIBOR plus 0.89% to LIBOR plus 0.98%
per annum, respectively. The remaining bank and other borrowings
carried interest rates at a range from 2.35% to 4.90% (2018: 2.35%
t0 4.99%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, the ratio of the Group's net debt
to shareholders' equity was 121.8%, and total debt to total
capitalisation was 52.1%. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Group has a stable capital structure, which can support its future
development plans and operations.

In 2019, the Group's primary sources of funding included new
bank borrowings, proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, dividend
income, issuance of corporate bonds and notes, issuance of
perpetual capital securities, borrowings from CRH and net cash
inflow from operating activities, which amounted to HK$34,882
million, HKS$1,382 million, HKS1,847 million, HKS5,520 million,
HKS5,566 million, HKS6,238 million and HKS$20,508 million,
respectively. The Group's funds were primarily used for the
repayment of bank borrowings, redemption of corporate bonds
and notes, acquisition of and deposits paid for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, interest and dividend payments,
which amounted to HK$41,838 million, HK$5,612 million,
HKS$22,542 million, HKS4,230 million and HKS2,573 million,
respectively.

Trade and note receivables

Trade receivables e U BR 3k
Note receivables JrE U 2= 1%

Less: loss allowance for trade receivables

R EWERTOR B2

2019412 8318 RITREMEER

#£218.8812 78 T M 1.5018 & £5(2018 :

203.05 BB TN 1.20BET) D RIAN R
EARTHEEREM00EZEL03ER
FHMERBHEEHREIMN0.89[F EF0.98
ERFEMNEGFE  p NRITLEMEER
NI 2.35BE4.90/E(20184F : 2.35[B%F

4.99 B)MFFIERETE o
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2019
—E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBT THET

11,401,608

143,885

11,545,493

(114,676)

11,430,817

Annual Report 2019 £ #R




84

Trade receivables are generally due within 60 days from the date of
billing.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and note receivables by
invoice date included in trade and other receivables at the end of
the reporting period:

0 - 30 days 0&30H
31 - 60 days 31Z260H
Over 60 days 60 HEA

Trade payables

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice
date included in trade and other payables at the end of the
reporting period:

0 - 30 days 0&30H
31 -90 days 31290 H
Over 90 days 90 HIA

Average credit term for purchases is 90 days.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

FEU AR X — AR IR B H Bl 5T 60 R M 2
£ o

AT RRHEHRBEERY L E MR
FEANEBRERREERREZEREH
ERRER D AT -

2019
—

HK$'000
FER

T

6,426,672 6,453,797
604,875 583,248
7,661,824 4,508,448
14,693,371 11,545,493

FEAS iR

BT BRI 45 H oK 2 R S B A
I8 PR B A IR SR T 2 B B BR R
7

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F

HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FAIT

3,406,975 6,672,213
2,077,496 2,253,431
3,505,208 2,417,342
8,989,679 11,342,986

BETOEEHRHE -



Key financial ratios of the Group AEBENETEBLL R

2019
—E-hEF =

Current ratio (times) MENLE(1F)
Quick ratio (times) RENLE(F)
Net debt to shareholders' equity ratio (%) FREHREER (%)
EBITDA interest coverage (times) @ EBITDA | BAR[EfZ R (15) ©
Current ratio = balance of current assets at the end of  mENELE = RFERORBEELS
the year/balance of current liabilities B INEROTEE
at the end of the year BiERR
Quick ratio - balance of current assets at the end REIELE = (RERNEYEE
of the year - balance of inventories at ERR—RNFRNEFE
the end of the year)/balance of current B8/ REFERER
liabilities at the end of the year FEEER
Net debt to = (balance of borrowings at the end of FEBEHERER = (RFEREEELR -
shareholders' the year - bank balances and cash at M RERBIRITE R K
equity ratio the end of the year - pledged bank Re-—REKHER
balances at the end of the year)/ HIRITER) RNF
balance of equity attributable to O RANYNSIE RS W
owners of the Company at the end of IhRER AR
the year
EBITDA interest = (profit before taxation + interest EBITDAR]E = (BRFaIFE+F B
coverage expenses + depreciation and RIZ(EEL X+ T RESE),F
amortisation)/interest expenses EXH(BEEXRL
(including capitalised interest) K8
Note: Hia -
(1) Excluding non-cash income and expenses, being loss on disposal of assets, (1) TEFRSUX BREEERERX HERX
impairment loss and exchange gains and losses. RIEH B -
Foreign exchange risk b 2= & by

The Group collects substantially all of its revenue in RMB and most  ANEBE AW A LT 2 30 A A RBEULEL - A
of the Group's expenditures, including expenditure incurred in its S B A KD 2 H( &%%“%Fiﬁﬁﬁiﬁ

operations as well as capital expenditure, are also denominated in &ﬁﬁiﬁ)ﬁ%/\ﬁ% o 2R &8 M
RMB. Dividends receivable from the subsidiaries and associates are B /A &) K% ﬁé%fﬂﬁ}?qﬂlﬂx SUARKE -
collected in RMB, HKD and Great Britain Pounds ("GBP"). BT A BESEULER o
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RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Future exchange rates of
RMB could vary significantly from the current or historical exchange
rates as a result of controls that could be imposed by the Chinese
government. The exchange rates may also be affected by economic
developments, political changes and supply and demand. The
appreciation or devaluation of RMB against HKD and United States
Dollar ("USD") may have positive or negative impact on the results
of operations of the Group.

The functional currency of major project companies of the Group is
RMB, the revenue and expenses are mainly denominated in RMB,
foreign exchange risk mainly arises from borrowings denominated
in HKD. However, certain entities are located in Hong Kong and
their functional currencies are HKD, their foreign exchange risk
mainly arises from balances denominated in RMB and borrowings
denominated in RMB and GBP.

In addition, given there are different functional currencies within
the Group, there is still foreign exchange risk which arises from
the transactions and balances within the Group even after intra-
group eliminations. The carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities before
elimination as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Assets BE
USD X7
RMB AR
HKD BT
GBP HEE
Liabilities afE
RMB AR
USD E7T
EUR BT
GBP HEE

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
its exposure against changes in exchange rates of the RMB against
HKD and USD.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

AREAIFEARBEE - REARKE
Al gL A BEIBUT B e E Hl i RIR T8
ENEXREERER - ERTRAIREX KA
BR - BOAREREREREE - ARE
BT NETLTHERRZE RS A EED
REFREENTIAXBATE

AEEETRBERAFNNELEEE /AR
o AR ELRXHEERAARKINE @ &
FEBREZRNETER - A 5TE
BUNEL HIEERRBTT  HEX
R EERNAAREIENESRMAR
B REEER -

N ERAEBRNGFETRNIIEE
B WA EAREBANNR S REHRIIR
W DEEEELHNINERB - 2019
F12A318  HEHRIUAINEIERHEE
BENEEEENIREAEDT -

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—A
2019
—2-hF

HKS'000
FiE

12,516 12,508
18,596,090 16,400,607
828 405

207 -
6,140,235 6,277,095
52,795 -
12,659 13,544

1,532,775 -

AEBEYERBITES R T A HARE
ETMETEXREFHNER o



Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided certain
guarantees amounting to HK$564,689,000 (31 December 2018:
HKS2,894,284,000) to its related parties.

In addition, there were certain pending litigations and claims
against the Group. After consulting with legal counsels, the
Directors are of the view that the likelihood of any material adverse
financial impact on the Group is remote, and no further provisions
need to be made in respect of such litigations and claims.

Employees

The Group had 21,746 employees as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
21,629 employees).

The Company and its subsidiaries have concluded employment
contracts with all of their employees. The compensation of
employees mainly includes salaries and performance-based
bonuses.

FREE

R2019F 12 A31 8 » 7N £ B 7] 8 B
R B 8564,689,0008 ST 9 & T R
(2018 12 A31H : 2,894,284,000 8
JC) °

S - BEHARENE TRRFLRER
1,\ ﬁéﬁxiéﬁﬁﬁum’wé EERRAE

HAERMEBRTROMBZENAIRENE
TK BEFRZERARRELE - FIFL
B -

==
MR2019F 128310 XREEBRBRB T
21,746 % (20184 : 21,629 % )EE °
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FREBIES

The Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board") strives to
ensure that the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) meet
high standards of safety, performance and corporate governance.

The Board has ultimate authority over, and oversight of, the Group's
operations and regards good corporate governance as a critical
element in the drive to improve the Group's performance and
achieve the Group's vision of being a world class energy provider
and one of the most admired employers in China.

In 2019, CR Power has adopted all of the principles and complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "Code") as contained in Appendix 14 to The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Listing Rules”).

The following summarizes the Company's corporate governance
practices and explains the implementation of recommended best
practices.

A.1 The Board

The Board is responsible for the optimization of the Company's
corporate governance, and is ultimately accountable for
the Company's strategic planning, operating activities and
operating results.

The Board Charter is published on the Company's website
(www.cr-power.com) under the “Corporate Governance”
section of “Investor Relations". The Board Charter is updated
regularly to take account of changes in the law and
governance practices.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the oversight and
review of management, administration and the overall
governance of CR Power and its strategic direction. The Board
plays a central supporting and supervisory role in CR Power's
corporate governance structure, provides leadership and
guidance to the Group's activities, and oversees the execution
of the Group's business strategies.

This includes:
» the protection of shareholders' interests by seeking to

ensure that CR Power's strategic direction provides and
creates value for its shareholders;

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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»  establishing goals for management and monitoring the
achievement of those goals;

» authorising policies and overseeing the implementation
of these policies;

> seeking to ensure that CR Power's internal control and
reporting procedures are complete, effective and abide
by laws and requlations as well as business ethics.

The Board should ensure that management can effectively
perform its duties. The Board's policy is to regularly monitor
the effectiveness of management policies and decisions,
including the implementation of strategies.

The Board oversees the implementation and operation
of a risk management system. In addition to fulfilling its
obligations to generate rewards for shareholders who invest
their capital in CR Power, the Board recognises that CR Power
has responsibilities to its customers, employees and suppliers
and to the communities in which CR Power operates.

In carrying out its responsibilities and powers as set out in the
Board Charter, the Board will at all times recognise its ultimate
responsibility to:

» maintain good corporate governance standards;

»  perform duties honestly, fairly and diligently;

» supervise safety, health and environmental issues
associated with the Company's operations;

>  establish and reinforce a "zero-tolerance” culture against
corruption;

» comply with laws and regulations;
» avoid conflicts of interest;

> enable the Company to become an excellent corporate
citizen; and

> gain and maintain the social community's respect for the
Company.
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Non-executive Directors should use all reasonable endeavours
to ensure that CR Power's operations, business and
transactions are conducted in accordance with the law and the
highest standards of propriety.

The Company has set forth matters that require the Board's
approval in its Board Charter.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provisions A.1.1 to A.1.8, as
described as follows:

A.1.1 Pursuant to code provision A.1.1, meetings of the Board
should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. During the year, the Board held a
total of seven Board meetings.

The Board met seven times in 2019. Each meeting
involved the active participation in person of a majority
of Directors entitled to be present.

During 2019, the following changes in directorship were
announced:

Mr. Ge Changxin ceased to be the Vice Chairman of the
Board, executive Director and Senior Vice President of
the Company and was re-designated as a Non-executive
Director and Senior Consultant to the President of the
Company with effect from 15 April 2019.

Mr. Hu Min resigned as an Executive Director and the
President of the Company with effect from 17 December
2019;

Mr. Tang Yong was appointed as an Executive Director
and the President of the Company with effect from 17
December 2019; and

Mr. Zhang Junzheng was appointed as Vice Chairman of
the Board and Executive Director of the Company with
effect from 17 December 2019.

Subsequent to the review period ended 31 December
2019, the following changes in directorship were
announced:

Mr. Ge Changxin resigned as a Non-executive Director

and Senior Consultant to the President of the Company
with effect from 16 February 2020;
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Mr. Li Ru Ge resigned as the Chairman of the Board and a R-ZE-_EF=RA_++tH"
Non-executive Director with effect from 27 March 2020; ?zﬁi?ﬁi%ﬂf$ BEELS
and FEFRIEPITES K

Mr. Wang Chuandong was appointed as the Chairman of RZE_ZEF=A_++H"
the Board and a Non-executive Director with effect from TEHERLEEZEIARAGES
27 March 2020. FEERIEPITES -
AEMEESEEEAFEE

The former and current Directors' attendance at the

meetings of the Board and the Annual General Meeting ez VINERAEASHNE
(the "AGM") during the year is as follows:

SRR

Attendance
rate of board
meetings
Number during the
of board office of
meetings directorship Attendance
attended {EEEA RS of the AGM
HEEES EEEEE HERER
FERH = BFERE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Wang Chuandong (Note 1) FERGFEL) N/A N/A N/A
T iE A NiE A iE A
Chen Ying (Note 2) PR JE (FfI7E2) 0/6 0% -
Wang Yan (Note 2) FE(MFE2) 1/6 14% -
Li Ru Ge (Note 3) L E(MEE3) 6/6 100% v
Ge Changxin (Note 4) ERIF(MsEa) 7/7 100% -
Executive Directors HITES
Tang Yong (Note 5) E & (Fi7ES5) N/A N/A N/A
TE A TiE A NE A
Zhang Junzheng (Note 6) SREE(MIFE6) N/A N/A N/A
TE A TiE A TEA
Wang Xiao Bin FH 7/7 100% v
Hu Min (Note 7) A (M 7) 7/7 100% v
Independent Non-executive BV IEHITES
Directors
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung S5 RREE 6/7 86% 4
Elsie Leung Qi-sie (Note 8) 9@?.:7(5@?18) 7/7 100% v
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung R 6/7 86% -
Jack So Chak Kwong BRZEH 5/7 71% -
Note (1): Subsequent to the review period ended 31 December 2019, Mr. W) #z2—F—NAF+=-_A=+—H

E’J%?H}%é FTEREER-F
—EFEZA-FTLRABZREAR
AEEGIERIFNTES -

Wang Chuandong was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and
3 Non-executive Director with effect from 27 March 2020.

Annual Report 2019 %3} 91



92

Note (2): Given that Mr. Chen Ying and Mr. Wang Yan concurrently hold
senior positions with the Company's controlling shareholder, they
have abstained from voting on a board resolution regarding a
transaction in one of the seven board meetings held during the
year.

Note (3): Subsequent to the review period ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Li
Ru Ge resigned as the Chairman of the Board and a Non-executive
Director with effect from 27 March 2020. Given that Mr. Li Ru Ge
held senior positions with the Company's controlling shareholder,
he abstained from voting on a board resolution regarding a
transaction in one of the seven board meetings held during the
year.

Note (4): Mr. Ge Changxin ceased to be the Vice Chairman of the Board,
Executive Director and Senior Vice President of the Company
and was re-designated as a Non-executive Director and Senior
Consultant to the President of the Company with effect from 15
April 2019. Subsequent to the review period ended 31 December
2019, Mr. Ge resigned as a Non-executive Director and Senior
Consultant to the President of the Company with effect from 16
February 2020.

Note (5): Mr. Tang Yong was appointed as an Executive Director and the
President of the Company with effect from 17 December 2019.

Note (6): Mr. Zhang Junzheng was appointed as Vice Chairman of the Board
and an Executive Director of the Company with effect from 17
December 2019.

Note (7): Mr. Hu Min resigned as an Executive Director and the President of
the Company with effect from 17 December 2019.

Note (8): Due to conflict of interest, Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie abstained from
voting on the board resolutions regarding certain transactions in
two of the seven board meetings she attended held during the
year.

Al.2 In 2019, arrangements were in place to ensure that
all Directors were given an opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The
Board is supported by four committees, namely the
Audit and Risk Committee, the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Sustainability
Committee to ensure that it is well equipped to discharge
its responsibilities. Each committee has its own terms
of reference which are available on the Company's
website (www.cr-power.com). The terms of reference
of each committee are updated reqularly to take
account of changes in the rules and requlations and
governance practices. The chairperson of respective
committees reported to the Board reqularly and
made recommendations on matters discussed when
appropriate. Senior management of the Company may
attend committee meetings upon invitation by the
chairpersons of the committees.
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Al3

Al4

In the year under review, notice of at least 14 days was
given of a reqgular Board meeting, giving all Directors
an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice was given. The Board aims to set
dates of regular meetings, AGM and site visits at the
start of each year, so that all Directors can make proper
arrangements to ensure attendance of the meetings and
visits.

The Company Secretary attended all Board and
committee meetings except for meetings of the
Remuneration Committee where a person (that is not a
member of the senior management) was appointed as
secretary. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board Committees were kept by the Company Secretary
or duly appointed personnel and were arranged to be
reviewed by the Directors present at the meetings before
they were signed by the chairperson of the respective
meetings. Such minutes will be made available by the
Company for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director when he/she deems
necessary.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees recorded in detail the matters considered by
the Board or Board Committees and decisions reached
at meeting, including any concerns raised by Directors
or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions
of minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees were sent to all Directors for their comments
and records respectively, within a reasonable time after
the Board or committee meetings were held.

The Board Charter sets out the policy that Directors,
especially Non-executive Directors should be provided
with sufficient resources in the furtherance of their
duties as Board/Committee members, including access
to independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
Company's expense.

Physical board meetings, as opposed to written
resolutions, were held to consider matters in which
a substantial shareholder or Director had a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board
which the Board has determined to be material. At
these physical board meetings, Independent Non-
executive Directors who, and whose close associates,
had no material interest in the transaction were present.
Directors who had a conflict of interest abstained from
voting.
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A.2

A.1.8 The Company has arranged corporate liability insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against its Directors.

The Board Committees have adopted, so far as practicable, the
principles, procedures and arrangements set out in A.1.1 to
A.1.8 in the Code, where applicable.

The Chairman and the President

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
President has been clearly established and set out in writing.
Under A.2.1 of the Code, the role of the Chairman and the
President should be separate to ensure a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman’s primary responsibilities include
deciding on the meeting schedule and agenda, formulating
Board policies, ensuring Board effectiveness, promoting
the Company and maintaining the Company's corporate
governance. The President has delegated authority from,
and is responsible to, the Board for managing the Group's
business, including the implementation of the strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board.

In the period under review, the Company strictly complied
with the Code principle and Code provisions A.2.1 to A.2.9 as
described below:

A.2.1 The roles of the Chairman and the President of the
Company are separate and are currently assumed by
Mr. Wang Chuandong and Mr. Tang Yong, respectively.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the President has been clearly established and set
out in writing. After Mr. Hu Min resigned as an Executive
Director and the President of the Company with effect
from 17 December 2019, Mr. Tang Yong was appointed as
an Executive Director and the President with effect from
17 December 2019. Subsequent to the review period
ended 31 December 2019, after Mr. Li Ru Ge resigned as
the Chairman of the Board and a Non-executive Director
with effect from 27 March 2020, Mr. Wang Chuandong
was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and a Non-
executive Director with effect from 27 March 2020.
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A.23

A.2.4

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for providing
leadership for the Board. The duties are mainly to
ensure the effective operation of the Board, and the
establishment of and compliance with the corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Chairman
is also responsible for ensuring that appropriate
procedures are adopted to guarantee effective
communications with shareholders, and that the
shareholders' opinions are circulated among all Board
members.

The President is responsible for managing the Company's
business and coordinating overall business operations,
implementing major strategies approved by the Board
and making day-to-day operation decisions.

None of the members of the Board has any connections
(including financial, business, family relationship and
other material/related relationships) with each other
(including between the Chairman and the President).

All Directors were properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings. Any enquiries and requests from the
Directors were followed up and responded to by the
management of the Company in a timely manner.

The Board papers contained sufficient details and
Directors were given reasonable time to review the
contents before the meetings. All Directors who were
present at the Board meetings received adequate
information, which must be accurate, clear, complete
and reliable, in a timely manner, prior to the meetings.

One of the Chairman's responsibilities is to provide
leadership for the Board. The Chairman ensures that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman, with the
help of other Executive Directors and Company Secretary,
is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving
the agenda for each Board meeting taking into account,
where appropriate, any matters proposed by other
Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman
should delegate this responsibility to a designated
Director or the Company Secretary in the event of his
absence at a board meeting.
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A2.3

A.2.4
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A.25

A.2.6

A.2.8

A.2.9

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for
ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established. The Chairman meets
regularly with Independent Non-executive Directors to
discuss, among others, suggestions and feedback with
regard to Board and corporate governance practices and
procedures and areas for improvement.

The Chairman encourages all Directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board's affairs and takes the
lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of
the Company. The Chairman also encourages Directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allows
sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensures that
Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus.

The Chairman, Mr. Li Ru Ge (resigned as the Chairman of
the Board and a Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 27 March 2020), held a meeting with
the Independent Non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Executive Directors or management in
July 2019.

The Chairman ensures that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with shareholders
and that their views are communicated to the Board as a
whole.

The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and debate
by facilitating the effective contribution of Non-executive
Directors and ensures constructive relations between
Executive and Non-executive Directors. During the year,
the Independent Non-executive Directors visited the
wind power projects of the Company in Guangdong
Province in April 2019 and Shandong Province in October
2019. The site visits gave the Independent Non-executive
Directors an opportunity to meet with the Company's
front-line staff and local management team and also
gained first-hand understanding of the Chinese power
industry.
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A.3 Board Composition

The Board's composition is determined in accordance with the
following principles, the Company's Articles of Association and
relevant governance requirements:

» the Company should appoint at least three Independent
Non-executive Directors and maintain Independent Non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board;

» the role of Chairman and President should be held by
separate persons;

> the Board should comprise of Directors with an
appropriate range and mix of skills, experience,
expertise and diversity;

»  the performance of the Board and its members should be
reviewed annually and objectively; and

»  all Directors must submit themselves for re-election at
regular intervals and at least every three years.

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of 10 Directors,
3 of whom are Non-executive Directors, 3 are Executive
Directors and 4 are Independent Non-executive Directors. The
number of Independent Non-executive Directors complied
with the requirements of Rule 3.10 and Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. The list of Directors as at the date of this
report and their biographies are set out in the Directors and
Senior Management Section on page 17 to page 34 of this
Annual Report, and are available on the Company's website
(www.cr-power.com).
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Set out below are details of the composition of the Board and RABREHS  EFekBETLEE
its committees as at the date of this report: WK BFFIBIAT -

Committee Membership

ZEEHE
Board Audit
Designation  Sustainability and Risk Remuneration Nomination

Director == EEERN UBERE BREER N =RE

Wang Chuandong TER NE, C 4 C

Tang Yong EB E, P

Zhang Junzheng REM E

Wang Xiao Bin F/MY E

Chen Ying PR E NE

Wang Yan TE NE 4

Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung Jeiic e INED 4 C 4

Elsie Leung Oi-sie BB INED v C v

Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung #3RZ INED v v v v

Jack So Chak Kwong EREN INED C 4 v

Note: Note:

C Chairman C s

E: Executive Director E: HWITES

NE:  Non-executive Director NE:  JEHITES

INED: Independent Non-executive Director INED: B IEMITE R

P: President P: 4

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with RERBFE » KA[lEEEST iR

the above principles and Code provisions A.3.1 and A.3.2 and BIEESFRIECA.3.1 A3.2 LA RE

the recommended best practice A3.3 as described as follows: EERAZ BT -

A3.1 The Independent Non-executive Directors accounted A3l BUERTEEABEESS
for more than one-third of the members of the KEABBRE=227— HZK
Board and were expressly identified in all corporate AIFTBEHBESEHEZNA
communications that disclosed the names of the ETH?E%?%I?F%?‘T%%%@ °
Directors.

A.3.2 The Company posts the names and biographical details A3.2 AN A A AL (www.cr-power.
of the Board members on its website (www.cr-power. com)%ﬁlJ EEXNENHERER
com), with their designations in the Board clearly stated. B Wi ESZS M - ~AQ
The Company also posts on the website of the HKEX ﬁﬁﬁéﬂ?z”\ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬂﬁ‘ﬁﬁ—%ﬁ
an updated list of its Directors identifying their roles EERE - BB AL
and functions and whether they are Independent Non- ERRBUIENITES o

executive Directors.
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A.4

A3.3 In the year under review, none of the Independent
Non-executive Directors held cross-directorships or
had significant links with other Directors through
involvements in other companies. Please refer to page
17 to page 34 of this Annual Report for each of the

Independent Non-executive Directors’ biographies.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board's Nomination Committee sets and reviews the
criteria for new Director appointments having regard to the
overall composition of the Board.

The Board seeks to ensure that its membership is such that
each Director:

» isaperson of integrity;

»  has sufficient time available and abilities to perform his
or her role effectively;

» brings an independent and questioning mind to his or
her role which enables him or her to exercise sound
judgment;

> enhances the breadth and depth of skills and knowledge
of the Board as a whole; and

» enhances the experience and diversity of the Board as a
whole.

The service term of every Director is 3 years. All Directors are
subject to reqular retirement and retiring Directors are eligible
for re-election. The staggered structure enables the Board to
change its composition in an orderly manner over time while
maintaining leadership, stability and continuity, and allows
for reqular evaluation of the mix of skills and experience, as
required.

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the above principles and Code provisions A.4.1 to A.4.3 as
described as follows:

A.41 Each Non-executive Director (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) receives a letter formalizing his
or her appointment and that letter outlines the key terms
and conditions of the appointment. Each Non-executive
Director (including Independent Non-executive Director)
is appointed for a term of 3 years.

A.4
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A4.2

A4.3

In accordance with Article 120 of the Company's Articles
of Association, one-third of the Directors, including
Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors as well as
Independent Non-executive Directors, shall retire by
rotation at each AGM of the Company, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
every three years and a retiring director shall be eligible
for re-election. Pursuant to Article 120 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Chen Ying, Mr. Wang Yan, Ms. Elsie Leung
Oi-sie, and Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung, retired from
office by rotation and were re-elected at the AGM on 25
June 2019.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association,
all new Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy or
being a new member of the Board of Directors shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders at the next general
meeting after their appointment (in the case of filling
casual vacancy) or next AGM (in the case of addition
to the Board). Pursuant to Article 98 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Tang Yong, who was newly appointed
as an Executive Director and the President with effect
from 17 December 2019, Mr. Zhang Junzheng, who
was newly appointed as an Executive Director and Vice
Chairman with effect from 17 December 2019, and Mr.
Wang Chuandong, who was newly appointed as a Non-
executive Director and Chairman with effect from 27
March 2020, shall retire from office at the upcoming AGM
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

As at the date of this report, among the Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung, Dr.
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung and Ms. Elsie Leung Qi-sie have
served more than 9 years. Mr. Ma was re-elected at the
AGM on 8 June 2017 by a separate resolution. Dr. Ch'ien
and Ms. Leung were re-elected at the AGM on 25 June
2019 by separate resolutions. The papers to shareholders
accompanying those resolutions included the reasons
why the Board believes he/she is still independent and
should be re-elected: This is because as Independent
Non-executive Directors with in-depth understanding
of the Company's operations and business, Mr. Ma, Dr.
Ch'ien and Ms. Leung have expressed objective views
and given independent guidance to the Company over
the years, and they continue to demonstrate a firm
commitment to their role. The Board considers that the
long service of Mr. Ma, Dr. Ch'ien and Ms. Leung have
the required character, integrity and experience to
continue fulfilling the role of Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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A.5 Nomination Committee

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
Code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.5 as described as follows:

A5.1

AS5.2

The Company has established a Nomination Committee
which is comprised of 4 members, including 3
Independent Non-executive Directors and Chairman of
the Board. In 2019, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings to, among other things, review the composition
and performance of the Board and the policy for
nomination of Directors. The attendance record of the
members of the Nomination Committee during the year
under review is set out as follows:

A5 REEZEE

REBEFE - AR 8RS EST A
XA5.1ZA5.5 #atmT

AS]l ARAIRABIRARZEER RA4
HKE - BREIZBBUIERNITE
ENMEFEFFE -RZT—N
Fr RELZESHBHAMAE
EUWESRREIRTESE
R RIBIARIRAEZEENIK
Keo-RBLZBEKNENRTESF
AR ELSEHSNIT

Number of meetings

attended/number
of meetings held Attendance
HEBITEE rate
Nomination Committee REL i E =R
Wang Chuandong (Chairman) (Note 1)  F{E#R(F /&) (Ftsr1) N/ATEA  N/A TEA
Elsie Leung Qi-sie REF 2/2 100%
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung BRE 2/2 100%
Jack So Chak Kwong #RE 1/2 50%
Li Ru Ge (Note 2) e (fsE2) 2/2 100%

Note (1): Subsequent to the review period ended 31 December 2019,
Mr. Wang Chuandong was appointed as the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 27 March 2020.

Note (2): Subsequent to the review period ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Li
Ru Ge resigned as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee with
effect from 27 March 2020.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to formulate and implement the policy
for nominating candidates for appointment on new
directors or for re-election by shareholders of the
Company based on criteria such as reputation for
integrity, accomplishment and experience, professional
and educational background, and potential time
commitments, and to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee (which is
reviewed reqularly and updated where necessary) have
incorporated the specific duties set out in the Code
provision.
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A5.4

In considering the new appointment of Directors,
the Nomination Committee follows the nomination
procedures and the process for nomination of
directorship under the nomination policy and assesses
candidates on criteria such as perspective, integrity,
independent mindedness, experience, skill and ability
to commit time and effort to carry out duties and
responsibilities effectively and makes recommendations
to the Board for approval. In 2019, Mr. Tang Yong and
Mr. Zhang Junzheng were appointed as Directors of the
Company. Subsequent to the review period ended 31
December 2019, Mr. Wang Chuandong was appointed as
a Director of the Company.

The Nomination Committee's terms of reference are
available on the Company's website (www.cr-power.
com) and the HKEx website.

The Company ensures that the Nomination Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

Where necessary, the Nomination Committee may seek
independent professional advice at the Company's
expense, to perform its responsibilities.

If the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual
as an Independent Non-executive Director at the general
meeting, it will set out in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice
of the relevant general meeting:

» the process used for identifying the individual
and why the Board believes the individual should
be elected and the reasons why it considers the
individual to be independent;

» ifthe proposed Independent Non-executive Director
will be holding their seventh (or more) listed
company directorship, why the Board believes the
individual would still be able to devote sufficient
time to the board;

» the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

» how the individual contributes to diversity of the
Board.
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The Company has included the above required information in
a circular dated 30 April 2019 for re-election of Dr. Raymond
Ch'ien Kuo Fung and Ms. Elsie Leung 0i-Sie as Independent
Non-executive Directors at the 2019 AGM.

The Company has established a nomination policy of Board
members in the Board Charter. Pursuant to the nomination
policy, the Company strives to assure that nomination of
candidates to stand for election as Board members must go
through formal, prudent and transparent procedures. The
Board is required to evaluate the overall composition of the
Board and the skills of members on a regular basis, in order
to prepare succession plans, facilitate smooth handover
and to maintain efficiency at all times. Further details of the
nomination policy is available on the Company's website
(www.cr-power.com).

The Company has established a policy concerning diversity of
Board members which is available on the Company's website
(www.cr-power.com). The Company strives to achieve
diversity of the Board by endorsing the principle that the
Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the Company's business. The
Company welcomes a very diverse population of people that
reflects the range of cultures and background spanned by
its operations. These differences will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. The
Nomination Committee will consider, and if appropriate, set
measurable objectives to implement the policy and review
such objectives to ensure appropriateness of the objectives
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
policy to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Since the adoption of the board diversity policy in December
2013, the Board has observed the policy and took into account
the objectives set out in the policy in reviewing its Board
composition to ensure that it has a balanced composition
of skills and experience in line with the requirements of the
Company's businesses, and ensuring that hiring, promotion,
rewards and retaining of the best people for the job are
implemented regardless of their diversity profile. In particular,
when selecting the candidates for Directors, the Nomination
Committee considered the nomination policy and took into
account the diversity aspects (including without limitation,
age, cultural and educational background) as set out under the
board diversity policy. As a result, the Nomination Committee
considered that the appointment of the Chairman of the
Board, the President of the Company and the Vice Chairman of
the Board during the reporting period were appropriate and
that there is sufficient diversity at the Board level.
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A.6 Responsibilities of Directors

The Board plays a central supporting and supervisory role
in the Company's corporate governance structure, provides
leadership and guidance to the Group's activities and
development and oversees the work of the management and
its execution of the Company's business strategies.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principle and Code provisions A.6.1 to A.6.8 as
described as follows:

A6.1 ALl newly appointed Directors will receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first
occasion of their appointment in order to ensure that
they will have a proper understanding of the operations
and business of the Company and that they will be fully
aware of their personal responsibilities under statute
and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal
and other requlatory requirements, and the Company's
business and governance policies.

Induction had been provided to Mr. Tang Yong and Mr.
Zhang Junzheng, who were appointed on 17 December
2019.

A6.2 Independent Non-executive Directors actively
participated in Board meetings of the Company. The
Company's Audit and Risk Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Sustainability
Committee comprise a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Directors were encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development programs at the
Company's expense to remain abreast of changes and
developments impacting the business.

The roles of Independent Non-executive Directors
also include providing their independent views to the
Board and management on business proposals and
strategies and supporting the implementation of these
strategies. Independent Non-executive Directors shall
take lead in board meetings in the event there are
conflicts of interest. They also scrutinise and monitor
senior management's performance in meeting goals
and objectives. During the year, the Independent Non-
executive Directors also examined the Group's operations
in different locations to broaden their knowledge of the
Group's business.
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A.6.3

A6.4

A6.5

Directors’ attendance of Board meetings and Committee
meetings is set out on pages 91, 101, 109 and 118 of
this Annual Report. Each of the Executive Directors and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) ensured that he/she gave sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with their
obligations regarding dealings in securities of the
Company under the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines for
senior management and employees in certain functions
in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company for their strict compliance. The Company issued
notices to all Directors, senior management and relevant
employees reminding them to comply with the restriction
on dealing of securities of the Company under the above
code and guidelines 60 days prior to the publication of
the annual results and 30 days prior to the publication of
the interim results.

The Company's Executive and Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors)
participated in various continuous professional
development programs to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to help ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Directors are encouraged to participate in professional
training programs and the Company also organizes and
funds such training programs.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors
participated in training programs regarding Directors'
responsibilities and duties and examined the Company's
operations. The Company has received the Directors’
training records, which are set out as follows:
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Training

on recent
development of
the Listing Rules,
corporate
governance

and Directors'
responsibilities

Site visits to
thermal

power plants,
renewable
power projects or
other operations

BB LEHHRE - BihZ 5

TEERR KABER -

EEETEH RIBARREHR

2R A ER=RiE

Wang Chuandong (Note 1) FEFFELD) v N/A N3 A
Tang Yong (Note 2) EB(MzE2) v N/A 5 B
Zhang Junzheng (Note 3) REER(MEES) v N/A 3 A
Wang Xiao Bin RN 7 v v
Chen Ying 53 v -
Wang Yan TE 4 -
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung BRRE 4 v
Elsie Leung Qi-sie RETF v 4
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung mRe v v
Jack So Chak Kwong BREN v v
Hu Min (Note 4) HAB (P sk 4) v v
Ge Changxin (Note 5) BRI (MzES) v v
Li Ru Ge (Note 6) 4 E (M1t e) v v

Note (1): Subsequent to the review period ended 31 December 2019, Mr.
Wang Chuandong was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and
a Non-executive Director with effect from 27 March 2020.

Note (2): Mr. Tang Yong was appointed as an Executive Director and the
President of the Company with effect from 17 December 2019.

Note (3): Mr. Zzhang Junzheng was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director of the Company with effect from
17 December 2019.

Note (4): Mr. Hu Min resigned as an Executive Director and the President of
the Company with effect from 17 December 2019.

Note (5): Mr. Ge Changxin ceased to be the Vice Chairman of the Board,
Executive Director and Senior Vice President of the Company
and was re-designated as 3 Non-executive Director and Senior
Consultant to the President of the Company with effect from 15
April 2019; Subsequent to the review period ended 31 December
2019, Mr. Ge Changxin resigned as the Non-executive Director and
Senior Consultant to the President of the Company with effect from
16 February 2020.

Note (6): Subsequent to the review period ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Li
Ru Ge resigned as the Chairman of the Board and a Non-executive
Director with effect from 27 March 2020.
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A.7

A6.6

A.6.8

Each Director has disclosed to the Company at the time
of his or her appointment, and on a periodic basis, the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments, with
the identity of the public companies or organisations
and an indication of the time involved. Such disclosures
should be made annually.

Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-
executive Directors actively participated in Board
meetings and Committee meetings on which they serve.
In order to develop a balanced understanding of the
views of Shareholders, the Chairman and a number
of Executive Directors participated in roadshows and
investor forums to meet with institutional investors
during the year. As laid out in the attendance table
in A.1.1 on page 91 of this Annual Report, half of the
Directors attended the AGM held on 25 June 2019. The
Company sets the date of the AGM at the beginning of a
year so all Directors are encouraged to attend the AGM
to enhance communication with Shareholders. For the
Company's report on communication with Shareholders,
please refer to page 122 to 127 of the Annual Report.

Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-
executive Directors actively participated in Board
meetings and Committee meetings and made a positive
contribution to the development of the Company's
strategy and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments.

Supply of and Access to Information

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the Code Principle and Code provisions A.7.1 to A.7.3 as
described as follows:

AT7.1

In respect of reqular Board meetings and Committee
meetings, the Company’s policy is to provide at least
a l4-day notice prior to the meeting setting out the
intended agenda. An agenda and accompanying Board
papers are delivered in full to all Directors at least three
days before the intended date of a Board meeting or
Committee meeting.
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B.1

A7.2 To enable Directors to make decisions based upon
the related data on hand, management is required to
provide adequate, complete and reliable information
and provide a briefing to the Board in respect of the
matters and issues under consideration. The Company
supplied Directors with monthly management reports to
keep Board members informed of the latest development
and performance of the Company. The Board and
Directors also have separate and independent access to
the Company's senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials. Queries from Directors also receive
a prompt and full response.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND BOARD EVALUATION

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code Principle and Code provisions B.1.1 to B.1.5 and the
recommended best practices B.1.6 to B.1.9 except for B.1.8 as
described as follows:

The Board has an established Remuneration Committee and
its primary functions are to evaluate the performance and
make recommendations on the remuneration packages of
the Directors and senior management, and to evaluate and
make recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.
All three members of the Remuneration Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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In 2019, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to, among other things, review and determine the policy
for the remuneration of the Executive Directors, assess
the performance of the Executive Directors, and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages
of all Executive Directors and senior management. The
attendance record of the members of the Remuneration
Committee during the year under review is set out as follows:

Remuneration Committee

Elsie Leung Qi-sie (Chairman) 2EH (£F)
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung yicb=s
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung ERY

B.1.1

B.1.2

B.1.3

B.1l.4

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman,
the President or any independent third party about the
remuneration level of other Executive Directors. The
Company has a policy that the Remuneration Committee
may seek professional advice from independent third
parties if it thinks necessary at the expense of the
Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(which is reviewed and updated regularly) have
incorporated the specific duties set out in the code
provision of the Code. Code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) was
adopted by the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are set out on the Company's website
(www.cr-power.com) and the HKEx website.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties. The Remuneration
Committee may seek professional advice from
independent third parties if it thinks necessary at the
expense of the Company in order to enable it to properly
discharge its duties and responsibilities.
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Number of
meetings
attended/number
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BT Attendance rate

BEAH g

1/1 100%

1/1 100%

1/1 100%
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B.1.5 The emoluments of the members of the senior
management team (excluding Executive Directors) are
within the following bands:

Number of individuals

A

s E

0%1,000,000/87C

1,500,001 7c22,000,000/8 7T
2,000,001 7C%2,500,000/87T
2,500,001 7% 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001/ 7C%3,500,000%87C
3,500,001 724,000,000/ 7T
4,000,001 £ 4,500,000/8 7T
4,500,0018 725,000,000 7T -

Emolument bands

HKSO0 to HK$1,000,000
HKS1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HKS2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HKS$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HKS$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HKS$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HKS$4,000,001 to HKS$4,500,000
HKS4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

NN PN e
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B.1.6 The Board has no disagreement with the Remuneration

Committee on remuneration or compensation
arrangements with regards to Executive Directors and
senior management.

A significant proportion of Executive Directors'
remuneration is structured so as to link rewards to
corporate and individual performance. The Company sets
its strategic and performance targets on an annual and
three year rolling forward basis. Based on the Company's
overall performance targets, the Company assigns
responsibilities and sets performance benchmarks
and evaluation methods for each Executive Director,
members of the senior management team and other
managerial staff. The total remuneration of Executive
Directors and senior management comprises three
key components, namely basic salary, annual bonus
and the Medium to Long-term Performance Evaluation
Incentive Plan. The actual performance of the Company
and each Executive Director and senior management
team members' own performance against performance
targets determine the component paid under the annual
bonus and Medium to Long-term Performance Evaluation
Incentive Plan. Please refer to Note 52 under the section
“Notes to the Financial Statements” in this Annual
Report on page 305 to 309 for details on Directors'
remuneration.
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B.1.8

B.1.9

The Company has not adopted the recommended
best practice to disclose details of any remuneration
paid to members of senior management (other than
Executive Directors) on an individual and named basis
in the Annual Report. Having disclosed Directors'
remuneration and remuneration of the five highest paid
individuals, the Company believes that disclosure of
individual senior management's remuneration does not
benefit Shareholders. The majority of Shareholders are
concerned with the total amount of remuneration, rather
than on an individual basis.

Board evaluation is conducted on an annual basis.
During the year, this evaluation was conducted by
consulting each Director regarding the attendance of the
Board and Committee meetings, the implementation of
improvements suggested by the Directors in the previous
years. The evaluation report was considered and
discussed by the Board.

C.1 Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance,
position and prospects. It is also the Board's responsibility to
oversee the preparation of the annual accounts which give a
true and fair view of the Group's state of affairs, results and
cash flows for the year.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principle and Code provisions C.1.1 to C.1.5 as
described as follows:

Cl1

Cl1.2

Directors were provided with financial information and
the related information of the Group enabling them to
make an informed assessment before the publication of
the interim results and the annual results, respectively.

To enable Directors to discharge their duties under
Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, senior
management is required to provide adequate, complete
and reliable information and provide briefing to
the Board in respect of the matters and issues under
consideration. The Company supplied the Board with
monthly management reports to keep Board members
informed of the latest development and performance of
the Group.

C.1
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C.2

(.1.3 The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility
for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which gives a true and fair
view of the operating results and financial conditions of
the Group during such period. More information about
the external auditor's responsibilities is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 129 to 309 of
this Annual Report. In preparing the financial reports for
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently; made judgments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable, and prepared accounts on a
going concern basis. The Company does not foresee any
uncertainties in its ability to continue as a going concern.

The Chairman's Statement on pages 8 to 16 of the Annual
Report provides a summary of the Group's performance
and future prospects on how the Group will preserve
value over the longer term and our strategies for
delivering the Group's objectives.

The Directors have acknowledged that it is their
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and
interim reports, other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, reports to regulators as well as
other information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

The Company has not resolved to announce and publish
financial results on a quarterly basis and has not adopted
recommended best practices C.1.6 and C.1.7.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems for the Group and to review their effectiveness
to safequard Shareholders' investment and the Group's assets.
To this end, risk management and internal control systems
have been established to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage or
mitigate risks of failure to achieve business objectives.
The Board oversees the senior management in design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems and the senior management have
provided a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of
these systems for 2019.
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In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principle and Code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.5 and has
taken into consideration recommended best practices C.2.6 to
C.2.7 as described as follows:

(.2.1 The Company's target is to establish an efficient and
effective risk management and internal control system.

The Company emphasizes on professional integrity and
high business ethics. 568 managerial officers and staff
signed an annual declaration on compliance with the
code of ethics for the year under review.

The Company and its subsidiaries provide regular training
to its management and staff. The training sessions not
only cover the technical and operational aspects of our
businesses, but also on business ethics, Listing Rules,
corporate laws and regulations and internal controls.

The Group has an internal audit department which is
responsible for the monitoring of the Group's internal
control. The internal audit team has unrestricted access
and authority to review the information on the business
and internal control matters of the Group. The Chief Audit
Officer reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit and
Risk Committee and administratively to the President.
The internal auditors can employ outside resources
when necessary. In 2019, the internal audit department
completed internal audits and follow-up audits on a
number of subsidiaries and branches of the Group, and
presented their findings and recommendations to the
Audit and Risk Committee and senior management of the
Company.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems (including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions) of
the Group. The Board believes that in order to manage
the risk of failure to achieve the Group's goals and
objectives to the maximum extent, the Group should
improve continuously its risk management and internal
control systems.
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2.2

(2.3

In March 2020, the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's internal audit function, accounting and
financial reporting function and believes that the Group
should monitor on an ongoing basis its total resources
in the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and continue to increase its investment and
budgets for staff recruitment, training programmes and
information technology system.

The Board, through the Audit and Risk Committee,
reviews annually the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Company and its subsidiaries, such review considers:

e the changes in the nature and extent of significant
risks since the last review, and the Company's
ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment;

e the management's ongoing monitoring of risks and
the internal control system, and the work of the
internal audit function;

e the communication of the monitoring results to
the Board semi-annually that enables it to assess
control of the Company and the effectiveness of the
risk management;

e any possible significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been identified and the
extent to which they have caused unforeseeable
outcomes or contingencies that had or might have,
or may in the future have, a material impact on the
Company's financial performance or condition; and

e the effectiveness of the Company's processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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(.2.4 Inthe year under review, the Company complied with the
risk management and internal control code provisions
C.2.4(a) to C.2.4(e) as described as follows:

(a)

The Board has delegated to senior management of
the Company the responsibility to design, operate
and monitor its risk management and internal
control systems for identifying and evaluating the
risks and probable exposures faced by the Group.
Key risks, control measures and management
actions are continually identified, reviewed and
monitored by the management. The internal
auditor assists and guides the management in
the formulation of risk policies and processes
to effectively identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks. The management has established a
risk identification and management process.

The senior management is accountable to the
Board for providing assurance on managing and
monitoring the risk management and internal
control.

The Group's risk management and internal control
systems provide a systematic and disciplined
approach to risk management process, which
are embedded as an integral part of corporate
governance. The systems help sustain business
success, create value for stakeholders and support
the Board in discharging its corporate governance
responsibilities by proactively identifying,
addressing and managing key risks within the
Group.

The Board is accountable for overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control systems
and for reviewing its effectiveness, while the
management and other personnel are responsible
for implementing and maintaining a robust system
of internal controls that covers governance,
compliance, risk management, financial as well
as operational controls to safequard the Group's
assets and stakeholders' interests. The systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable, and not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or Loss.
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(d) All findings and recommendations on internal
control deficiencies for each audit engagement
are communicated to senior management who are
required to establish remedial plans to correct those
internal control deficiencies within a reasonable
time period. Post-audit reviews are performed
regularly to monitor those agreed action plans and
to ensure that corrective measures of previously
identified internal control deficiencies have
been implemented as intended and on a timely
basis. Significant deficiencies of individual audit
engagement are reported to and reviewed by the
Audit and Risk Committee.

(e) The Company has adopted a policy for certain
relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in
relation to the Company or its shares, for instance
financial results of the Company. Relevant
employees are required to acknowledge their
understanding of this policy and the list of relevant
employees is updated at regular intervals. The
Group has management controls in place to
ensure that potential inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for
the attention of the Board to decide the need for
disclosure. Furthermore, the Company ensures that
dissemination of inside information strictly complies
with the standards and disclosure requirements of
the Listing Rules.

(.2.5 The Company has an internal audit function in place.
In the annual assessment of the effectiveness and
adequacy of the risk management and internal control
systems, the Company has taken into consideration the

recommended best practices contained in C.2.6 and C.2.7.

The Company considers the risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate.
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C.3 Audit and Risk Committee

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code Principle and Code provisions C.3.1 to C.3.7 and
recommended best practice C.3.8 as described as follows:

€31

(3.2

Full minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meetings
were kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting.
Draft and final version of minutes of the Audit and
Risk Committee meetings were sent to all committee
members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting.

The Company's Audit and Risk Committee comprises four
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Non-
executive Director, with Chairman of the Committee,
who is an Independent Non-executive Director, having
the requisite qualification, knowledge and experience. A
former partner of the Company's existing auditor shall be
prohibited from acting as a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee for a period of two years from the date of the
person ceasing to be a partner of the firm; or to have any
financial interest in the firm, whichever is later.

The main duties of the Audit and Risk Committee include
the following:

e to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference with full access to all books, records,
facilities and personnel. It is authorised to seek
information it requires from any employee and all
employees are required to co-operate with any
request made by the Audit and Risk Committee;

e to secure the attendance of outsiders with
relevant experience and expertise and to obtain
independent legal or other professional advice if it
considers necessary to carry out its duties; and
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e to be primarily responsible for making recommendation e IZHERZME EFZ
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment £ & B % HNEE i ERD [
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve EESROER @ HESN
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the EBZESAMMEZENe RF
external auditor, and to raise any questions of its H - Bt HEH Tk R

resignation or dismissal. BT RERE o
The attendance record of the members of the Audit and EZEBREREESK B RO E
Risk Committee during the year under review is set out as FERNNEELRESEETWOT

follows:

Number of meetings
attended/number of

meetings held

118

HE T Attendance rate
Audit and Risk Committee RPN HE =
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung (Chairman) HREHE(EF) 2/2 100%
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REF 1/2 50%
Jack So Chak Kwong BREN 2/2 100%
Wang Yan = 0/2 0%
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung (Note 1) HRE (ML) N/A 73 A N/A 38 A

Note (1): Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung was appointed as a member of the
Audit and Risk Committee of the Company with effect from 17
December 2019.

The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee
have incorporated all the duties set out in the Code
provision and are reviewed reqgularly and enhanced
where necessary.

For the period from 1 January 2019 to the date of this
report, the Audit and Risk Committee has performed
its duties, including reviewing the Group's interim and
annual results, risk management and internal control
systems, the internal control report prepared by the
Company's internal audit department and the statement
relating to risk management and internal control systems
as set out in this report. The Audit and Risk Committee
also met with the external auditor without the presence
of Executive Directors and senior management. In
March 2020, the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019, including the major accounting
issues raised by the external auditor. The Audit and Risk
Committee also recommended the re-appointment of the
external auditor.
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C3.4

€35

C3.6

3.8

The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk (34 BEZEERZESNBESRE
Committee are available on the Company's website BB H AR B 480 (www.cr-
(www.cr-power.com) and the HKEx website. power.com) M B2 Fr A8k

In 2019, there was no disagreement between the Board (35 RZET—NF - HREIINERZ
and the Audit and Risk Committee on the selection and A EEoHEZERRSE
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit and Risk BEEgVESARAER - FiZHER
Committee is mandated to monitor the independence MEZEeA S TERINEZXE
of the external auditor to ensure true objectivity in the EEY B - AERBI R K
financial statements. Prior to the commencement of RREHEEEEESENER - A%
the audit of the Group's 2019 accounts, the Audit and BT -NFREBEZRAIBZ
Risk Committee received written confirmation from the Bl BEZHRKREZEESEERE
external auditor on its independence and objectivity. The INIBRZEMARB L E R EE
external auditor is refrained from engaging in non-audit MHNEMHER  BRERENH
services except for limited tax-related services or specific FERFESE ETE B 4N - SNEE AR
approved items. The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed HE TN EIRHEIEZERT - T
the external auditor's statutory audit scope and non- ZHEREZESELINEZE
audit services and approved its fees. B A9 )% TE 28 1% & B & IE | AR

% W EHKE -

2019 2018
Zﬁ—ﬁ,i —//\'E'E
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET THIT
Audit services ZE RS 11,957
Non-audit services L B BR TS 1,020
Total et 12,977
The Audit and Risk Committee was provided with (3.6 RZE—NF - BEZERERE
sufficient resources to discharge its duties in 2019. EeERTTERNBITHRE -
The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee (37 BEZEERZESNBESRE
have incorporated all the duties contained in the Code 2 A A ST R SCAT S HY BT B BB
provision. B
The Company has established a whistleblowing policy (38 AR A BB EWBEK KL
and system by which employees and others who deal B -EEREAKREERHEBHE
with the Group can raise concerns, in confidence, about AR B ER R TE AR
possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group. SENERNBETRESE -
The contents of the whistleblowing policy are available BRWBERHNABD A EARR AR
on the Company's website (www.cr-power.com). 4B (www.cr-power.com)&
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D.1 Management functions

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the principle set out in the Code and Code provisions D.1.1 to
D.1.4 as described below:

D.1.1 The Board is mainly responsible for formulating and
approving the business strategies, objectives, policies
and plans of the Group, and monitoring the execution
of the Group's strategies. It is also responsible for
overseeing the operational and financial performance
of the Group and establishing appropriate risk control
policies and procedures in order to ensure that the
strategic objectives of the Group are achieved. In
addition, the Board is also responsible for improving
the corporate governance structure and enhancing
communications with Shareholders.

The Board delegates its management and administration
functions to management and gives clear directions
as to the powers of management at the same time, in
particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on the Company's behalf.

D.1.2 The Board Charter has laid out clearly the role of the
Board, including matters which are reserved for Board
approval and the functions delegated to management.
The Board Charter is reviewed regularly and amended
where necessary to take into account of any changes in
law and governance practices as well as any changes in
business operations.

D.1.3 The responsibilities of the Board and the management
are contained in the Board Charter which is available on
the Company's website (www.cr-power.com).

D.1.4 The Company has formal letter of appointment for all

Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.
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D.2 Board committees

D.3

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the principle set out in the Code and Code provisions
D.2.1 and D.2.2 as described below:

D.2.1

The Company has established written terms of reference
for the Committees (namely, Audit and Risk, Nomination,
Remuneration and Sustainability Committees) of the
Board. Details on the duties and terms of reference of
the Board Committees are available on the Company's
website (www.cr-power.com) and the HKEx website.

The terms of reference of each Board Committee require
it to report back to the Board on its decisions and
recommendations.

In addition to the Nomination, Remuneration and Audit
and Risk Committees meetings held as mentioned on
pages 101, 108 and 117 of this Annual Report, the
Sustainability Committee also held one meeting in 2019
where all members of the committee attended the
meeting.

Corporate Governance Functions

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the Code provisions D.3.1 and D.3.2 as described below:

D.3.1

D.3.2

The Board Charter includes the duties specified in the
code provision.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the Board Charter
including determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company, and duties performed by
the Board under D.3.1.
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E.1 Effective communication

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the principle set out in the Code and Code provisions E.1.1 to
E.1.5 as described below:

E.1.1In respect of each substantial issue at a general
meeting, a separate resolution was proposed by the
Chairman of the meeting, including the re-election
of individual Directors. The poll voting results of the
meetings are available on the Company's website
(www.cr-power.com) and the HKEx website.

Matters resolved at the 2019 AGM

e Received the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 together with the Reports of
the Directors and the Independent Auditor

e Approved payment of the final dividend of HKS$0.203 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2018

e  Re-elected Mr. Chen Ying, Mr. Wang Yan, Ms. Elsie Leung
Qi-sie, and Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung as Directors, and
authorised the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration
of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2019

° Re-appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditor of the
Company and authorised the Board to fix the Auditor's
remuneration

e @Granted a general mandate to the Board for the share
repurchase of a number not exceeding 10% of the total
number of the Company's issued shares as at the date of
2019 AGM

e Granted a general mandate to the Directors to issue new
shares of the Company not exceeding 20% of the total
number of the Company's issued shares as at the date of
2019 AGM

e Approved to extend the general mandate granted to the

Directors to issue new shares of the Company by addition
thereto of the shares repurchased by the Company
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E.1.2 The general meeting provides the ideal venue for

El3

the interchange of ideas between the Board, the
management and Shareholders. We therefore encourage
Shareholders to attend our AGM to discuss matters of
business substance with the Board and management
and to give us valuable advice and feedback on both
operational and governance matters. At the AGM held
on 25 June 2019 at 2:00pm, there were a total of 99
individual Shareholders, authorised representatives of
corporate Shareholders as well as proxies participated
and the number of shares voted represented 82.30% of
the total number of the Company's issued shares.

As laid out in the attendance table in A.1.1 on page 91
of this Annual Report, half of Directors attended the AGM
held on 25 June 2019. The Directors and management of
the Company took the opportunity to communicate with
the Shareholders present, and answered their queries
with respect to the Company's operations and industries.
A representative of the external auditor attended the
AGM to answer Shareholders' questions about the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of
the auditor's report (if any).

The Company, the Board and management highly value
the opinions and requirements of our Shareholders.
The Company communicates with Shareholders through
various channels including publication of interim
and Annual Reports, circulars, press releases and
announcements of the latest business developments,
operational results, major financing plans and other
developments of the Company on its corporate website
(www.cr-power.com) and the HKEx website in a timely
manner.

The notices are sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM and there was no
extraordinary general meeting held in 2019.
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Convening Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), members of the Company
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
members having a right to vote at general meetings may
request the Directors to call a general meeting. The request
must state the general nature of business to be dealt with
at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
meeting. The request may consist of several documents in like
form and may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form and must be authenticated by the person(s)
making it.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the members of the Company
may request the Company to give to members of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the annual general meeting,
notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting. The request may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of the
Board) orin electronic form (by email: crp-ir@crc.com.hk) and
must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given,
authenticated by the person or persons making it and received
by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate; or if later, the
time at which notice is given of that meeting.

The Company will give notice of a resolution if it has received
the requests from (a) members representing at least 2.5% of
the total voting rights of all the members who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have a
relevant right to vote.
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Procedure for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as Director are available on the website of the
Company (www.cr-power.com).

E.1.4 An Investor Relations team has been designated to
maintain purposeful dialogue and ongoing relationships
with investors and analysts. We strive to provide quality
information to Shareholders as well of our many
stakeholders regarding the latest developments of the
Company whilst ensuring that material information is
equally and simultaneously provided and accessible to
all interested parties. The Company has established a
Shareholder's communication policy which is available
on the Company's website (www.cr-power.com).

Investor Relations Activities

The Company consistently pays close attention to investor
relations activities and always believes that maintaining
effective communications with Shareholders and provision
of timely and accurate information are critical in creating
shareholder value.

The Company enhances communication with Shareholders
through various investor relations activities. Details of major
investor relations activities in 2019 are set out below.

In 2019, there were over 100 requests for company visits
and teleconferences from different investors. Together with
investor conferences and roadshows in major financial
centers around the world, we met approximately more than
300 fund managers and analysts. During the meetings with
investors, we explained the development and trend of the
power industry and updated Shareholders on our operational
conditions, strategic planning and future outlook. We also
placed great emphasis on listening to investors' feedback,
concerns and expectations so we can relay the messages from
Shareholders to our management team.
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Through emails or designated telephone lines, we also
provide Shareholders and potential investors with a channel
to obtain the latest information of the Company and have
their queries answered in a timely manner. We announce
our power sales on a monthly basis on our Company website
(www.cr-power.com) as well as through announcements on
the website of the HKEX.

The Board always welcomes Shareholders' views and input.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the Investor
Relations Department of the Company by letter, telephone,
fax or email. Details of the contact information can be found
on page 311 of this Annual Report.

E.1.5 The Company adopts a general dividend policy that
aims to provide Shareholders out of the Group's profit
attributable to shareholders in any financial year, subject
to the criteria set out below.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall
remain to be determined at the discretion of the Board
and subject to all applicable requirements under the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Articles of Association of the Company.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also
take into account, inter alia:

e the Group actual and expected financial
performance;

e shareholders' interests;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company;

e the capital structure of the Company;

e the Company's capital expenditure and future
expansion plans;

e statutory and regulatory restrictions;

e general business conditions and strategies;
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e general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group's business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company;
and

e  other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may propose the payment of dividends, if
any, with respect to the Company's shares on a per share
basis.

In addition to cash, dividends may be distributed in
the form of shares subject to and in accordance with
the procedures set out in the Company's Articles of
Association.

Except for interim dividend, any dividends declared by
the Company must be approved by an ordinary resolution
of shareholders at the general meeting and must not
exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

The Company will continually review its dividend policy
and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion
to update, improve and/or modify its dividend policy at
any time.

E.2 Voting by Poll

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provision E.2.1. The Chairman
explained the detailed procedures for conducting a poll at the
AGM in 2019.
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In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provisions F.1.1 to F.1.4.

The role of Company Secretary is taken on by Ms. Wang Xiao
Bin, who is also an Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company's affairs. Her duties as Company Secretary include
ensuring good information flow among the Directors and that
board policy, procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. She advises the Directors through
the Chairman of the Company and also facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

In 2019, Ms. Wang attended at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training which complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

In the year under review, there were no significant changes to
the Company's Articles of Association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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To the Members of China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the "Group") set out on pages 137 to 309 which
comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

8 X7 %% BH B #R 25

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is impairment of the non-
financial assets (including property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, mining rights, prepayment for acquisition of mining
rights and goodwill).
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Key Audit Matters

Impairment of non-financial assets (including property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, mining rights, prepayment for
acquisition of mining rights and goodwill)

Refer to notes 4(b), 4(c), 4(d), 6, 8, 9, 10, 13 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group had made material impairment of non-financial assets
in past years because of the coal market downturn and China's
supply-side reform. Although the Group had disposed several coal
mining subsidiaries in 2018, pursuant to the government policy
implemented for reducing overcapacity in the coal industry, the
Group continued with its shutdown and disposal plan of some of
its coal mines gradually. This indicated that the carrying amounts
of the non-financial assets of the Group in these coal mining
companies might not be recoverable.

In addition, in 2019, certain thermal power plants were determined
to be closed down and certain power assets were planned to be
retired or obsolete to follow the change in technology regulating
environment, which indicated that the carrying amounts of these
non-financial assets might not be recoverable.

Therefore, management performed an impairment assessment
and made additional impairment provision of approximately
HKS2,262,267,000 for non-financial assets for the year ended 31
December 2019.

For the impairment assessment performed on the cash generating
units ("CGUs"), management of the Group had determined the
recoverable amounts of related CGUs based on the higher of their
fair values less costs of disposal and their value in use ("VIU")
amounts. VIU calculation involved significant management
estimates and judgements including (1) the possibility of
converting prepayments made into mining rights and the costs to
be inputted for acquiring the mining rights; (2) growth rate of coal
prices, output volumes, estimated operation date for the coal mines
currently under construction; (3) generation volumes of thermal
power plants; and (4) discount rates used in the calculation.

Because of the significance of the carrying amounts of non-financial
assets as at 31 December 2019 (including those with impairment
indicators), together with the use of significant judgements in
estimating the recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs, we had
identified this matter as a key audit matter.
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18 N7 % SR B #R 25

BARETEH

HeMEEBEYE BELRRE £
HREE - IRE# - WEIREEAEAN
KB )BiE

w2BEE B mERME4Db) 40
4(d) 6-8-9-1013%15°

BRER™S B RPEHRGANE &
SERNBERFLEIFERMEEFLECR
B -R-_TE- \FEEEEECEHZMA
RIEMB AR - N ERRERSESA
BREBEBRBRRITEEERRRK
EEHH O REEREENILES - &
SERNLFERBERAR ZIFEREEREE
Rusged(E

BN R-E-NF - ERERREHSE
TAXERREE  XASBETENEER
BE - UEARIMEERIRES  BNHE
FeRMEERMERLERD

At - BEREETRENGLHBEE"T
—“NET A=t —BILEFEZIFTHME
ERTIRBRINRE B 547 2,262,267,00078

JC °

AR EABMDETHRERNE - 8
SEERERANBERL SR LR
BESHRZESEETCRSELEMNA
R EHE - T REEREESREREEE
mE R FE - B¥E 1) B AN R
TEHE Y ] RE 1 I R MR SR AR R S A A Y K
N RQKEWIERX EENEANER
RBEOGEE2ERN GIAEMNEE
B M(4)FTEAREE

HREBEEZE-T-AF+t-_A=1+—HH
FeREERANE(ERZEETREDN
FERMEERAE)EAR  MEARMEF
HERSELABUMALKRESENEKXR
HE - AR ERER SERESS
I8 o

Annual Report 2019 £k

131



132

8 X7 %% BH B #R 25

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We obtained management's assessment and supporting documents,
and checked the accuracy of calculation by verifying the inputs
of the underlying financial information and the correctness of
calculation.

We assessed the reasonableness of the following management's
key assumptions used in the impairment assessments:

Possibility and timing of converting the prepayments
made into the mining rights and the costs to be inputted
for acquiring the mining rights - we reviewed the related
agreements and the relevant government policies. We
inquired management as to assess their views on the
development of coal mine industry, the approval status of
related projects and if there were any legal barriers;

Growth rates of coal prices - we compared them to the
historical trend of coal prices and economic and industry
forecasts, and corroborated with the discussion and enquiry
with the management;

Output volumes of each operating coal mine, and estimated
operation date for the coal mines currently in construction -
we compared them to the approved throughput, and relevant
government requirements/standards for coal mine industry;

Generation volume of the thermal power plants - we
compared them to the approved capacity and the historical
capacity occupation data, and corroborated with the
discussion and enquiry with the management;

Discount rates - we involved our valuation specialists to assess
the reasonableness of the discount rates used, taking into
account the cost of capital of each cash generating unit as well
as the relevant territory and industry specific factors.

We also formulated a range of sensitivity analysis by varying the
key assumptions to assess whether additional impairment provision
or reduction would have been required.

We found the significant estimations and judgements made by the
management can be supported by the evidence we obtained.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the "Report of the Directors”, "Management's Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” (but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor's report, and the “5-Year Summary”, “About CR Power",
“Service Areas”, "Chairman's Statement”, "Directors and Senior
Management”, "Corporate Information"” and “Information for
Investors”, which are expected to be made available to us after that
date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

When we read “5-Year Summary”, "About CR Power", “Service
Areas”, “Chairman’'s Statement”, "Directors and Senior
Management”, "Corporate Information” and “Information for
Investors”, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the Audit
and Risk Committee and take appropriate action considering our
legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
AND RISK COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Mr. Chow Wai Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

aHEEaR=R

As at 31 December

HR+=—B=+—H

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 6 VTP 145,272,477
Prepaid lease payments ENHEEEA 7 - 3,437,135
Right-of-use assets FREEE 8 5,377,588 -
Goodwill Bk 13 773,405 1,287,142
Mining rights RERE 9 320,628 480,605
Exploration and resources rights B RRE 10 151,462 216,025
Deferred tax assets ERETRIBEE 33 744,390 882,182
Other receivables and prepayments H fib e Gk IE
TR RRIR 15 11,937,592 11,521,984
Interests in associates REt L ENER 11(a) 8,833,069 9,480,198
Interests in joint ventures REeEEENER 12(a) 5,158,844 3,678,437
Financial assets at fair value through UWAREETEBED
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) S AEMARE WS
HE /& E 14(a) 1,934,571 1,877,311
Loans to an FVOCI investee company MUAAREBEFEEEE
FFAE MRS W
B IRE R RIEK 14(b) 339,633 126,331
Loans to a non-controlling shareholder  MIFEIEHIIREE R 20(b) 13,954 14,266
186,166,238 178,274,093
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 3,171,932 3,295,536
Trade and other receivables JE AR TR N oAt
JE W K IR 17 20,395,018 17,898,990
Loans to an associate MBS PEER 11(b) 32,821 33,137
Loans to joint ventures AeEPEER 12(b) 415,059 45,652
Loans to an FVOCI investee company RARAREBEFER
BT AHEMLTE
WM I E R T
8% 14(b) 83,867 306,631
Loans to a non-controlling shareholder  [A3EFEHII R B X 20(b) - 36,521
Amounts due from associates JrE LS BS: 1D S SRR 18 27,348 32,637
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW A E IR 19 21,141 42,473
Amounts due from other JrE WUCEL Ath B8 28 2 R 50R
related companies 20(a) 89,493 66,063
Pledged/restricted bank deposits B 2R EIERTT
TR 21 425,503 214,281
Cash and cash equivalents RehREFED 22 4,907,306 7,977,153
29,569,488 29,949,074
Total assets HEE PALWELWEIE 208,223,167

Annual Report 2019 £k



138

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
BHEEERX

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERkEE

Equity attributable to owners AAREE AL RER
of the Company
Share capital [N 23
Other reserves Hh A 24
Retained earnings REBFHE
Perpetual capital securities holders KABARBHEHFBA 25
Other non-controlling interests EA IR I R A

Total equity HERES

LIABILITIES =N

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings BE 31
Contract liabilities ERAaRE 27
Lease liabilities MHEBE 8
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBRE 33
Deferred income PEIEWA 34
Retirement benefit obligations FEFHR R Rt FI AR 38(iii)

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

As at 31 December

Rt=B=+—H

22,316,710
8,225,686
42,381,583

72,923,979

5,581,750
8,210,284

86,716,013

68,763,429
432,157
826,903
480,933
740,073
115,002

71,358,497

22,316,710
9,078,976

38,739,628

70,135,314

7,149,297

77,284,611

69,210,171
531,755

778,517
779,275
56,729

71,356,447



Current liabilities

REBRE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Trade and other payables JERERA N EMERFRIE 26
Contract liabilities cRAaRE 27
Lease liabilities HEaE 8
Amounts due to associates FERTE & b FEFRIR 28
Amounts due to joint ventures BT E & hERIER 29
Amounts due to other JET B REE A R FIR
related companies 30
Current tax liabilities EHIEAE
Borrowings BE 31
Total liabilities =N
Total equity and liabilities HEXREE

BHEESRER

As at 31 December

Rt=B=+—H

28,719,884 28,253,761
1,309,434 1,128,165
210,811 -
468,532 1,370,208
140,549 648,770
6,747,540 292,310
924,147 423,929
19,140,319 27,464,966
57,661,216 59,582,109
IPCRNEAEN 130,938,556
FACWEL YL 208,223,167

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 137 to 309 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

Director

BF

Bt & OB B B (E R R BERE P Y R — O 6D

2
g °

EFEer RN _E_TF=A=1THABSH
MRE137 B R FE 309 BRI EHRE - WH
TIEERREEZE -

Director

5=
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

S

\
/

Turnover

Operating expenses
Fuels
Depreciation and amortisation
Employee benefit expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Consumables
Impairment charges
Tax and surcharges
Others

Total operating expenses

Other income

Other gains - net

Net losses on disposal of certain
subsidiaries in coal mining segment

Operating profit

Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Other non-controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to

owners of the Company during the year

- Basic and diluted

LR

R R
KRR
e B 5
BERMFAX
IS4
P
VEREESES
i K Ff
H it

BAE A

H A
HpH15 —F58
HERBRRD #BET

Y /B8 A B 1R F AR
& RS
%8R
FE( B2 DR A
IR ERERESR
BRBE A1 A
FRSHLE A
FRAHE
FRAERBER
ZN/NEIEZ DN

FEVEHI

FREBRAXTEBA
ZEBRER
—EXALEE

37

3.1.2

35
36

41

The above consolidated income statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

Year ended 31 December

67,757,632

(33,317,542)
(10,631,129)
(5,190,039)
(1,954,437)
(1,035,835)
(2,284,134)
(765,388)

)

(2,684,470

(57,862,974)

2,851,010
142,790

12,888,458
(3,786,511)
192,537

358,532

9,653,016

(2,311,622)

7,341,394

6,590,345

751,049

7,341,394

HKS1.37/8 7T

BET-A=1+—HLEE

76,940,125

(39,436,898)
(11,152,914)
(6,068,230)
(2,039,174)
(1,136,328)
(962,004)
(1,385,656)
(3,993,848)

(66,175,052)

2,613,340
91,441

(2,121,569)

11,348,285
(4,314,685)

223,638

53,937

7,311,175
(2,286,302)

5,024,873

3,950,435
1,074,438

5,024,873

HKS0.83/8 7T

b A G YR 2 T BRI Y B S — BFBIRE -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Currency translation difference

Share of other comprehensive income of
investments accounted for using
the equity method

Release to profit or loss in relation to disposal
of subsidiaries

Release to profit or loss in relation to
disposal of associates

Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or [0sS

Fair value changes on equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income,

SHZEIIKAR

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=1+—HLEE

FRRE 7,341,394 5,024,873

Hit2mEUWA(E58) :
AJBEE T 7 MEE 18 Y
EHH
&N E%R (2,271,465) (4,578,808)
JEMREREVE R ERE
REMEMERE W

(131,779) (206,700)
= D))
ELAEI=E (15,146) (818,797)
BEBE R
EEAEIEIsE 17,401 -

TREEF D IR 2B an i)
EH
URAnBEAEEES

AR AR A U as 1)

net of tax BEREAREE
BE) (i) 30,590 308,644

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, FREMEEU A

net of tax (BE) (Bir) CEAOELD)  (5,295,661)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, FRZEWA

net of tax (BE)EEBE) 4,970,995 (270,788)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for FREEMEA(EE)

the year attributable to: BB -

Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ 2SN 4,432,883 (1,171,366)

Perpetual capital securities holders KABRBHFBA 16,050 -

Other non-controlling interests H b IESE I 522,062 900,578
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, FRZEWA

net of tax (E1B)#H 5 (Bi#) 4,970,995 (270,788)
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should  _E #it & £ 2 [ U A 3= & B2 B8 I B 53 — G B

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHIRERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=1—-HLEE

Cash flows from operating activities RETHEENBELSRE
Cash generated from operations RETEHEENRE 43(3) 22,551,085 20,627,406
Income tax paid ERATER (2,043,506) (2,530,642)
Net cash inflows from operating activities RETHEENBESARANTE 20,507,579 18,096,764
Cash flows from investing activities RETZHEENBEESARE
Dividends received from associates and BlEErERAGE
joint ventures TrERE 1,605,309 531,507
Dividends received from financial assets BEWAAAREBEHER
at FVOCl in investee companies b3 J)\ﬁf@,m/\qﬁ D)
imﬂéﬁ?ﬁ’ﬁﬂi&ﬁ
e 241,264 212,673
Interests received 2 B 310,682 307,825
Decrease in term deposits EHEFOR D - 37,996
Acquisition of property, plant and HBEME ﬁ}%&?&ﬁ \
equipment, prepaid lease payments, BNHEERIA
right-of-use assets, mining rights and FHAEEE %ﬂ%%&
exploration and resources rights B R E R CZRTAWIR) (16,884,456)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BB R&E
and equipment, prepaid lease payments, BABEZIAE R ERRE
and right-of-use assets BEMMEHIE 43 88,683 337,031
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEKBRRMEHIE 43(b) 1,381,584 8,371,942
Proceeds from disposal of associates HEBECEMEHE 430,398 -
Loans repaid by associates BMEPEERER 11,157 143,161
(Loans to)/loans repaid by joint ventures (MEELEER),/
gﬁ%ﬁ%iém (366,507) 113,000
Loans repaid by/(loans to) other /Jﬂlfaﬂ HEEER
related parties (ME MBS m) 37,382 (39,880)
Additional investment made into FVOCI RIARAEE qugﬂ“
FFAE MRS WK
CREENEIMEE (24,757) (851)
Capital contributions into associates Mg CETE (167,954) (725,228)
Capital contributions into joint ventures mMEEtETE (2,444,245) (100,548)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of interest W BB R Rl A
in a subsidiary BE M FHE (4,923)
Government grants related to assets 38 AR O B 4 B 111,074
Net cash outflows from investing RETBHEENEESREFE
activities (21,395,447) (7,589,677)

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHIRERER

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of
perpetual capital securities

Proceeds from issuance of
corporate bonds and notes

Redemption of corporate bonds
and notes

Advances from/(repayment of
advances to) an intermediate
holding company

Proceeds from sale of shares
held by share award scheme

Proceeds from disposal of interests

in subsidiaries without loss of control

Capital contributions by
non-controlling interests
Capital reductions by
non-controlling interests
(Repayment of advances to)/
advances from associates
(Repayment of advances to)/
advances from joint ventures
Repayment of advances to
other related companies
(Repayment of advances to)/
advances from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
Principal elements of lease payments
Interests paid
Dividends paid to owners of
the Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
Others

Cash outflows from financing
activities - net

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

of the year
Exchange losses

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

METHEENRERE
RITEESHIE
EBERERTEE
BITKABAEBEFHERIA

%ﬁ@?%%&%ﬁ%ﬁ
A
BEARIESRRE

hRZER AR
(BEPREER D FZN)

& R D S Bt 81 AT AR D
H)FT S SR

i B 2 A
(*%%Tﬁ%)ﬁ%ﬂﬁ

EH R E

IR BRI E

(REBELELR)/

BEL SRR
(ERAEL SRS/
et

EERR
H BB N R B
(E%WE@EW%@%
BEEZ) /B
HIELE Hxﬂx%iﬂm
BEMEFIEARE
BEAFIE N
Eﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁAW%
ENIGIENGIE R A Fakin
gy

HAth
RETBHEENREREFE

ﬂﬂ}
E“

ﬁé&ﬁéﬂﬁ%
/J\ /ii in /?ﬁﬁ

FONRE LB FEY
ERREPS
EXRRERAEEEY

34,881,749 56,192,679
OAEEERCE] (50.617,562)
5,565,700 -
5,519,772 -
(5,612,090) (4,516,360)
6,238,035 (812,104)
469,970

1,383,919 650,068
262,601 1,008,653
(121,526) -
(850,466) 289,949
(481,878) 394,042
(107,452) (455,411)
(20,978) 13,599
(99,981) -
(4,230,420) (4,757,071)
(1,938,011) (4,184,668)
(635,294) (1,119,931)
— (1,042)
(2,084,513) (7,445,189)
(2,972,381) 3,061,898
7,977,153 5,381,686
(97,466) (466,431)
4,907,306 7,977,153

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& ET 75 ¥R R Bl 5

[

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company") is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The intermediate holding company of the Company
is China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited ("CRH"), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong. The directors regard
the ultimate holding company of the Company to be China
Resources Company Limited (“CRCL"), a company registered in
the People's Republic of China (the "PRC").

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group"”) are principally
engaged in the construction and operation of power stations.

The address of the registered office of the Company is Rooms
2001-2002, 20th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in HK
dollars, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
2.1.1 Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group has been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHKFRIHE@
POLICIES (continueD)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 wREEEGE)
2.1.2 Historical cost conversion 2.1.2/F L R
The consolidated financial statements have been B BHRREREBES
prepared under the historical cost convention, RAERE - 5 TR

except for certain financial assets which are
measured at fair value.

2.1.3 Going concern

At 31 December 2019, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$28,091,728,000.
In addition, there were outstanding capital
commitments amounting to HK$26,802,363,000
(Note 44). The directors are of the opinion that,
taking into account the current operating and
business plan of the Group as well as the banking
facilities (Note 31) available to the Group, the Group
has sufficient working capital to enable it to meet
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall
due for the coming twelve months from the balance
sheet date. Therefore, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

REEFENEREER
4 o

2. 1.3/5BaE

KEBR-_ZT—HLFE+=
A=+—H#ER&HE
& /% %8 #928,091,728,000
BIT e AN KEBES
26,802,363,0007% JT H) &
& AR A& M 5F44) ©
EERE KEEREAEHE
BRI E REBKE R
AREBAHAMNRITHE
(fFsE31)1%8 - AEEAE R
WEEESREEITHER
EEHBFZEDLREKRTZ
@AM EEL -
I ZEEHEBHRED
BISELEEHERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.4 New and amended standards adopted by the

Group

The Group has applied the following standards,
amendments and interpretation for the first time
for their annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2019:

e  HKFRS 16 Leases

e  Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
- Amendments to HKFRS 9

e Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures - Amendments to HKAS 28

e Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2015
- 2017 Cycle

e Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Group had to change its accounting policies as
a result of adopting HKFRS 16. The Group elected to
adopt the new rules retrospectively but recognised
the cumulative effect of initially applying the new
standard on 1 January 2019. This is disclosed in note
2.2. Most of the other amendments listed above did
not have any impact on the amounts recognised in
prior periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHKFRIMS@
POLICIES (continueD)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 wREEEGE)
2.1.5 New and amended standards not yet adopted by 2.1.57K 55 5 [ 5K BRAN B9 FT 5T R
the Group AENSETER)
Certain new accounting standards and ETHEEIRREL
interpretations have been published that are EEMm T ARRZE
not mandatory for 31 December 2019 reporting —NEFE+ZA=1T—H%#
periods and have not been early adopted by the EHARE G T MASE
Group. These standards are not expected to have B IR R NEBEE]
a material impact on the Group in the current or R NZE - ZEFEAE
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future HAgHAKERE A
transactions. RE R EEE &A1 R R
RRXPDEEERATE -
2.2 Changesinaccounting policies 2.2 BFTHEREE

As indicated in note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from 1 January 2019,
but has not restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting
period, as permitted under the specific transition
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and
the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed
in note 2.31.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously
been classified as 'operating leases' under the principles
of HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing
rates as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average
lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 ranged from 3.1% to 5.6%
per annum.

S E IR 2.1 TR 0 AREE
BEE-Z—NF—A—HEE
MBS R EERE 16
RAEE - HRZENNE TR
BIEXFT A WESEY -F
—N\EREABO L EEFE -
ERAFHAEEAmMELHE
SERABRBMME—_ZT—NF
—A—BHYVEEABRBERANRE
R MEFTBEERMIFE2.31%
E‘g °
RENE BT FwELERE 16
TR AEEREARERE
e EAFI7HEHEEN R L
nEAMKEHE IMEERR
HEaE %ZaEEsTH
ENRNREFE UFEA=
T—-hF—A—BEAMEARNE
EERFRFENR - N =F
—hE—A—RBERANEEA
BERABEANMEFHEEER
RENFHEFEZ1%Z5.6% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.2 Changesinaccounting policies (continued)

For leases previously classified as finance leases the
entity recognised the carrying amount of the lease
asset and lease liability immediately before transition
as the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and
the lease liability at the date of initial application. The
measurement principles of HKFRS 16 are only applied
after that date. The remeasurements to the lease
liabilities were recognised as adjustments to the related
right-of-use assets immediately after the date of initial
application.

(i) Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group
has used the following practical expedients
permitted by the standard:

e applying asingle discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics,

e relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to
performing an impairment review - there
were no onerous contracts as at 1 January
2019,

e 3accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months
as at1January 2019 as short-term leases,

e excluding initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application, and

e using hindsight in determining the lease term

where the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continueD)

2.2 Changesinaccounting policies (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

(i) Practical expedients applied (Continued) (i)

(i)

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group
relied on its assessment made applying HKAS 17
and Interpretation 4 Determining whether an

Arrangement contains a Lease.

Measurement of lease liabilities (ii)

The lease liability recognised at 1 January 2019
upon initial adoption are arrived as below.

FESHTHRRIRS @

2.2 BITBEREE (&)

PR B 2t ()

AEBIREEETEHNF
EEMNERERERBEHE
SgBefE- ARk 3
RBEBRZRETZHNA
MmE > AREREBEER
AABGHENELTREK
REFIRETLFER
BEHEFL/FHE -

HEBEZE

ERRBER T — R
—A-ARRMAEAE
mF -

Operating lease commitments disclosed R_E-N\F+-_A=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 BENREHERE 244,657
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing REREMA R BERARARN
rate at the date of initial application BEERM KRR 192,239
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised m:R=—E—-N\E+=H
as at 31 December 2018 —+—HAERMRENE
= 22,791
Less: short-term and low-value leases recognised B RESEERARXH
on a straight-line basis as expense M RKEBERE (2,430)
Less: contracts reassessed as service agreements B B EARE HEA
B (40,476)
Add: adjustments as a result of a different n: REREEETRER
treatment of extension options FEMEL 2 A% 139,795
Others HAth 122,232
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—HA—BERZ
HEARE 434,151
Of which are: Hep
Current lease liabilities TEHERE 117,672
Non-current lease liabilities FERBEEES 316,479
434,151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.2 Changesinaccounting policies (continued)

(iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets

(iv)

Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the balance sheet as at
31 December 2018. There were no onerous lease
contracts that would have required an adjustment
to the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application.

Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1
January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the
following items in the balance sheet on 1 January
2019:

e Right-of-use assets - increased by
HKS$4,539,480,000 (including reclassification
of prepaid lease payments for land use rightin
PRC amounting to HK$3,437,135,000)

e QOther receivables and prepayments -
decreased by HK$S656,963,000

e  Prepaid lease payments (for land use right in
PRC), decreased by HKS3,437,135,000

e  Property, plant and equipment - decreased by
HKS$34,022,000 (representing reclassification
to right-of-use assets for property, plant and
equipment finance leased in by the Group)

e Trade and other payables - decreased by
HK$22,791,000

e  Lease liabilities - increased by HK$434,151,000

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.2 Changesinaccounting policies (continued)

(v) lessoraccounting

The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held
as lessor under operating leases as a result of
the adoption of HKFRS 16.

2.3 Principles of consolidation
2.3.1 Subsidiary

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.3 Principles of consolidation (continued)

2.3.1 Subsidiary (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity's net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.3 Principles of consolidation (continued)

2.3.1 Subsidiary (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.3 Principles of consolidation (continued)

2.3.1 Subsidiary (Continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions - that
is, as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHKRIRS @

POLICIES (continueD)

2.3 Principles of consolidation (continued) 2.3 HmEARG@
2.3.2 Separate financial statements 232 BB HE
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at LI ENGIE R = R 9D N
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct EHMBRRE AR KA
attributable costs of investment. The results of MBEEENEZEELK
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on Ko BRAMEREZE
the basis of dividend received and receivable. W B KW IBE R AR
AIARR ©

Impairment testing of the investments in PR BT BB A B] B9 3% & W EY
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends RER - Nz EHBBZ
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the MiE A RMNE IR _\,Hfﬁ
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the MEmR AL BT
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying Eﬂ‘%iﬁi‘%lﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ@ﬂ%ﬁ
amount of the investment in the separate financial EfBEE I FEREK AR
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the KEEEEFEBEDR
consolidated financial statements of the investee's BOMEREE  BIZERE
net assets including goodwill. BIERERIR o

2.4 Associates 2.4 HELE

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are

=
ﬁ%ﬁ%hﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
%ﬂfEI#%ETW%UﬁEE’]i
W OE M 5 20% E50% 1K
%‘i%ﬂﬁﬂx% PR B 8 1 B B

accounted for using the equity method of accounting. mABEEFIEAR - IBiR#
Under the equity method, the investment is initially wmE RREVTEKAERE
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased R MEMESEER - A
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the RIEBEERGEEEE ARKE
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. AEEMERE AEERB S
The Group's investments in associates include goodwill 12 B 3 2 B 48 7O LK B B P
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the EHEE - WEEKECERA

ownership interest in an associate, any difference EEE  BEPERAER
between the cost of the associate and the Group's share SESMMEECEZRNEE
of the net fair value of the associate's identifiable assets FaEFANEBEENEM

and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.4 Associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of profit of investments accounted for using equity
method' in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.4 Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates

are recognised in the income statement.

2.5 Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures

are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group's share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint

ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.5 Joint arrangements (Continued)

2.6

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of joint ventures have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

2.6.1 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the "functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars ("HKS"), which is the
Company's functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

2.6.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investmentin a
foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHKRIRS @

POLICIES (continueD)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.6 INEIRE (&)

2.6.2 Transactions and balances (Continued) 2.6.2XKZRAZER )

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the statement of
profit or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within
other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6.3 Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BT RS R 51

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinueD)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.6.3 Group companies (Continued)

e income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

e 3ll resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

0On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)
2.6.4Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the Group's ownership interest in associates
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.7 Segmentreporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors and senior
management of the Company that makes strategic
decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of buildings,
power generating plant and equipment, mining
structures, motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures, equipment
and others and construction-in-progress (“CIP").
Construction work in progress comprises infrastructure
construction of new power plants, technical improvement
projects of existing power plants and coal mines being
constructed. Property, plant and equipment, other than
the CIP are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and any impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

CIP represents the direct costs of construction incurred
of property, plant and equipment including interest
capitalized less any impairment losses. No provision or
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time the relevant assets are completed and put
into use. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains - net' in the
consolidated income statement.

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, and are amortised
using the unit of production method based on the proved
and probable mineral reserves.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.10Exploration and resources rights

Exploration and resources rights are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and resources rights are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Exploration and
resources rights include the cost of exploration rights
and the expenditures incurred in the search for mineral
resources as well as the determination of the technical
feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those
resources. When the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting mineral resources become
demonstrable and relevant mining rights certificate
is obtained, previously recognised exploration and
resources rights are reclassified as mining rights or other
fixed assets. These assets are assessed for impairment
before reclassifications.

2.11 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
is monitored at the operating segment level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.11 Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example,
goodwill and intangible assets which have an indefinite
life - are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered from impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting

date.

2.13 Financial assets
2.13.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCI or through profit or

loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)
2.131 Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCl. For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2132 Recognition and derecognition

Reqgular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2133 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHKRIRS @

POLICIES (continueD)
2.13 Financial assets (Continued) 2.13 TREE (&)

2.13.3 Measurement (Continued) 2.13.351& (&)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
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measurement categories into which the Group BEoEAR=RzEEA -

classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for o HEEAA : W AlkE
collection of contractual cash flows where BHBEESREMSFAR
those cash flows represent solely payments Zéfizﬂﬁfﬁ/i\/ﬁi{%
of principal and interest are measured at BINEAE RHE

amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and

ﬁ'JEx—r,éT??;zEHﬁEX
REtE o ?i?/i\r?ﬁé
EHF B ARER
%'J /iiquJ\ﬁ#ﬁ%HﬁZ

o IFHERELR

presented in other gains/(losses) together Eﬂﬁ?&ﬁ?‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
with foreign exchange gains and losses. R - WiE R E & U
Impairment losses are presented as separate mREEEY N EA
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EEREBERANE

B—EBEE 25 -

Annual Report 2019 £k

169



170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)
2.13.5 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets' cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
0Cl, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHKRIRS @

POLICIES (continueD)
2.13 Financial assets (Continued) 2.13 TREE (&)

2.13.3 Measurement (Continued) 2.13.351& (&)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCl, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.
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other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit or TE S AAEBEEHRN
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal BaiNERSHEMKE
of impairment losses) on equity investments S (BE)(mEA) - LA
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from AEBEF=EEEHT AR
other changes in fair value. HEEmKE s ERRED
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2134 Impairment 2.13.4 618
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis NE B LA R EFTY
the expected credit losses associated with its debt ﬁz?%&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ‘&%@ﬁﬁﬁ
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. FFTEREHHAREMER

The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.
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For trade receivables, the Group applies the o FE AR X C REE
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which KAS® %ﬁﬁ‘“#&%ﬁgﬂ”
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised 9 5% T ET AT AV RS Ttﬁzi
from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note ZAERER TR

15 for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

2.15

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are
given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of subsidiaries or associates to secure loans,
overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial quarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because
all guarantees are agreed on arm's length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Company's liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of:

e the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.15

2.16

Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

These estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management's judgement. The fee
income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is reported in the consolidated
income statement within other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the Company.

Inventories

Inventories include fuel oil for power generation, coal,
materials for repairs and maintenance and spare parts,
and are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are initially recorded at cost and are charged
to fuel costs, repairs and maintenance, or consumables,
respectively when used, or capitalised to property, plant
and equipment when installed, as appropriate, using
weighted average cost basis. Cost of inventories includes
costs of purchase and transportation expenses.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
products sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents listed in the consolidated
statement of cash flows represent cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, and other short-term highly-
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.20

2.21

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.22

2.23

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEREFKFRIlE @
POLICIES (continueD)
2.23 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.23 EERIEREFSBL (48)
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EALFZH
Inside basis differences RSB EEE

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using the
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements,
except for deferred tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only where there is an agreement in
place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c

Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.24 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include all expenditures relating to
the employees for their services. The Group recognises
employee benefits as liabilities during the accounting
period when employees render services and allocates to
related cost of assets and expenses based on different
beneficiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plan

In connection with pension obligations, the Group
operates various defined contribution plans in
accordance with the local conditions and practices
in the countries and provinces in which they
operate. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate publicly administered pension
insurance plan on mandatory and voluntary basis.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expenses when incurred.

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans, state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of
HKAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits
are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.25

2.26

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or contractual obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Provisions for the Group's restoration, rehabilitation
and environmental expenses are based on estimates of
required expenditure at the mines in accordance with
PRC rules and regulations. Provisions are measured at
the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales of
products and services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown, net of discounts
and after eliminating sales with the Group companies.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group's activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customers, the type of
transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of electricity

Revenue is earned and recognised upon
transmission of electricity to the customers or the
power grid owned by the respective regional or
provincial grid companies.

(b) Sales of coal

Revenue is recognised when the coal delivered to
the customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer's acceptance of the
coal.

(c) Salesof heatsupply
Revenue is recognised when the heat is delivered to
the customers.

(d) Provision of services

Service income is recognised when services are
rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.28

2.29

Interestincome

Interest income from FVPL is included in the net fair value
gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
or loss when the right to receive payment is established.
This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery
of part of the cost of an investment. In this case, the
dividend is recognised in OCl if it relates to an investment
measured at FVOCI. However, the investment may need
to be tested for impairment as a consequence.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.30 Leases

As explained in note 2.2 above, the Group has changed
its accounting policy for leases where the Group is the
lessee. The new policy is described below and the impact
of the change in note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group, as lessee, had substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership were classified
as finance leases. Finance leases were capitalised at the
lease's inception at the fair value of the leased property
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, were included in other short-term and
long-term payables. Each lease payment was allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost
was charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases was depreciated over the asset's useful life or over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term
if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.30 Leases (Continued)

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESFHEFRIETE @

POLICIES (continueD)

2.30 Leases (Continued) 2.30HE @)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.30 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

e anyinitial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items
of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in
the balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did
not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new
leasing standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueD)

2.31

2.32

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's and the Company'’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company's shareholders.

Perpetual capital securities

Perpetual capital securities issued by the Group, which
are satisfied with the following criteria are classified as
equity instruments:

(i)  Financial instruments exclude those are settled on a
net basis in cash (or other financial assets);

(i) Financial instruments must or can be settled on
own equity: (a) For non-derivative contracts, they
exclude those are settled gross by delivery of a
variable number of own shares; (b) Derivative
contracts that result in the delivery of a fixed
amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed
number of an entity's own equity instruments.

The dividends for the perpetual capital secruities are
accounted for as profit distribution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financialrisk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central Group
treasury department under policies approved by the
board of directors. The department identifies, evaluates
and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units.

3.1.1 Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The majority of the Group's operations
are in the PRC and transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") which
is the functional currency of the respective
group entities. Foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from certain cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings which are denominated in
HK dollars ("HKS"). However, the Company
and certain subsidiaries are located in Hong
Kong and their functional currency is HKS,
the foreign exchange risk for them mainly
arises from balances denominated in RMB and
borrowings denominated in RMB and GBP.
During the year ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, the Group did not enter into any forward
exchange contracts or currency swap contracts.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

In addition, given there are different
functional currencies within the Group,
there are still foreign exchange risk which
arises from the transactions and balances
within the Group even though they are
eliminated. The carrying amounts of the
foreign currencies denominated assets and
liabilities before elimination (excluding the
amounts denominared in HKS or USS, of which
the functional currency is USS or HKS) at the
reporting date are as follows:

B B RS R R Al 5t

ERIFE MRS @
3.1 &REkRRERZEE)
3. 1.1 15 (&)

(1)

SNEEB ()

BN ERA%EE
7 17 15 T H0 B e
B B &
B0 % 5 % 4 B

Wi DHEEEHES
B IINGE R BR o A ¥R 4
B - AT A SN T
EMEERABGECH
BE B T ETY
ERETE B TINEG
EERBBE)NE®R
(ER NN

As at 31 December

Rt+=—R=+—H

12,516 12,508

18,596,090 16,400,607

Assets &=
uss ETT
RMB AR
HKS BT
GBP HagE
Liabilities afE
RMB AR
GBP g
usD ETT
Euro (“EUR") BT (BT ])

6,140,235 6,277,095

828 405
207 -

1,532,775

The Group is primarily exposed to changes in
RMB/HKS exchange rates. The sensitivity of
profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates
arises mainly from non-functional currency
denominated financial instruments.

52,795

12,659

AEEFZEHAR
BHAETEZTZEEHN
R\ Bg o 15 5 B IE R
HHNHREETERE
PASEDNRE M B ¥ 5HE
WEMIA -

Annual Report 2019 £k

189



190

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)
3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

RMB/HKS exchange rate ARBEATER
- increase by 10% —EF10%
- decrease by 10% —TE10%

Profit is less sensitive to movements in the
RMB/HK dollar exchange rates in 2019 than
2018 because of the decrease in the RMB
denominated net monetary assets/liabilities.
Impact to the other equity components is
relatively stable between two years. The
Group's exposure to other foreign exchange
movements is not material. This sensitivity has
been determined assuming that the change
in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

post tax profit
HIRBE RS

£ Rl @ iR S T8 (@)
3.1 £rEbEEE @)
3.1.1 15 (&)

SINGEE LB (8

Impact on other
components of equity

HHEMERII NS E

1,275,018 [SWITELY
(1,275,018) IEOWEEEIN)!
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk.

As at 31 December 2019, except for
HK$57,885,411,000 (2018: HKS56,953,339,000)
of long-term borrowings whose interests
were charged at floating rates, interests on all
remaining long term borrowings and long term
loans from related parties were charged at fixed
rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for borrowings at floating rates which
are not hedged with hedging instruments. The
analysis is prepared by assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
period were outstanding for the whole year.

3

B B RS R R Al 5t

£l @ RS T8 (@)
3.1 £rpEbEEE @)
3. 1.1 15 (&)

(i)

REHERA
SRIELGL

BB

RNE B = E IR
REBEE - BTEE
BITNEEREAREHE
EETE/%%/MLEW%——(EL
B o 1% B E M BT
mﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁlﬁ%
NABEN R -

R—ZT—hh&E+=A
=+—B8 " BRZEH
FMEFENRBE
B 57,885,411,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates on
long-term borrowings at that date had been
10 basis point higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year or net assets as of 31 December
2019 would have been approximately
HKS43,414,000 (2018: HK$42,715,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

Price risk

The major price explosure of the Group is from
purchase of coal. The coal price is influenced
mainly by the PRC market supply and demand
conditions. A material change in prices of
coal could significantly affect the Group's
financial performance. The Group historically
has not entered into any commodity derivative
instruments to hedge the potential price
fluctuations of coal and does not have a fixed
policy to do so in the foreseeable future.
However, the Group do take means to manage
the fluctuation of coal price. If the coal price
increased/decreased by 5%, net profit for the
year would have been HKS1,249,408,000
(2018: HKS1,478,884,000) lower/higher.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

£l @ RS T8 (@)
3.1 ©REREE@E)
3.1.21sEEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep) 3

3.1 Financialrisk factors (continued)
3.1.2 Creditrisk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to bank deposits, trade and other receivables,
and amounts due from related companies. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
as at 31 December 2019 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet.

(i) Risk management

Credit risk for the Group is concentrated on
a limited number of power grid companies,
associates, and joint ventures. However,
management of the Group, having considered
the financial background and good
creditability of the power grid and related
companies, and operating prospects of
associates and joint ventures, believes that
there is no significant credit risk.

AEBNEERREER
BRITER - B
&E@EW%E&E%ﬁ
BRBRIE WX BHF
*mm_ﬁ NE+=A
—t+t-BETRENE
£ W£%ﬁaﬁwéﬂ
BEBHNRAEER
%éﬁé?%ﬁ%ﬁﬂh
FEEMNER@E -

(i) AkEE

AEBNEERRE
FRAOBEERD
HS%%TE%&E\%{E
MM REL ARG
BRMEREFOREDN
M2 RAED
ENEERRE N
SEHEEERSALE
BEXEERE -

Bank deposits are mainly placed with state- RITEREEGFER

owned financial institutions and reputable HELREERER

banks which are all high-credit-quality RUFRERTT - BEAR

financial institutions. THASEEEZN
RIS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

(i) Risk management (Continued)

Other than above items, the Group also expose
to credit risks arsing from below off-balance
sheet items:

Credit risk exposure relating to MEESR Tii'%ﬂ\lg £
off-balance sheet items: EHENEER
Financial guarantees (Note 48) Eﬁ“?@%(m.&%)

£ Rl @ MRS T8 (@)
3.1 £RERREZEG@E)
3.1.215EF /% (&)

(i) Rk

EIE(8E)

Br EAtIR B Sh - K&
BrEYREEESR
ERIMNEBANEER

oo
AN

564,689

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

e Trade receivables,

e  Other receivables (excluding receivables
from related parties), and

e Loans to/amounts due from related
parties (including associates, joint
ventures, FVOCI investee companies,
non-controlling shareholders and other
related parties).

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables from initial
recognition.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the aging
information.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 48
months before 31 December 2019 or 1 January
2019 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within
this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward
looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. The Group has identified
several relevant factors, and accordingly
adjusted the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 was
determined as follows for trade receivables:

Expected loss rate BRI R 0.00%

Gross carrying amount  BREEE 11,179,801 2,281,061
Loss allowance HEER (549)

3

0.02%

ERIFE MRS @
3.1 &rREkRRERZEE)
3.1.215EF /% (&)

(i)

TREERE(E)

JEW IR (18)

L E® - pE
WERN -Z— A
F+-_A=+—H
rF—FE—NEFE+_A
=+ —HHREERE
BEWNT :

0.18% 48.13%  100.00% 0.55%
676,287 10,432 71,414 14,218,995

(1,203) (5021)  (71,414)  (78,187)

Expected loss rate EHEBILE 0.00% 0.02%
Gross carrying amount  SREE(E 9,874,567 1,293,619
Loss allowance HEEE ) (283)

2.02% 55.00%  100.00% 1.01%

118,165 7,303 107,954 11,401,608
(2,386) (4,051)  (107,954) (114,676
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTinueD) 3 EEkRESHe
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 TrEkREZEE)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.215EEf (&)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) eMEEREBEE)
Trade receivables (Continued) JEY R (48)

The loss allowances for trade receivables as R+—A=+—8BH

at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss LK R OR (B 2 s

allowances as follows: HR 9108 (B 2E 1 ¥ BR a0

T

At 1 January #Z—HF—H 114,676 159,973

(Decrease)/increase in loss FRANERERNER

allowance recognised HEEECRD)

in profit or loss during the year Vgl (29,931) 41,126
Receivables written off F MR AT

as uncollectible [B] & Y 58 (5,295) (8,478)
Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining HELAREEE

Assets (as defined in Note 5) (AP 5 FTES) = (71,232)
Exchange differences fEN =% (1,263) (6,713)

At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 78,187 114,676
Trade receivables are written off when there EWESREREEE
is no reasonable expectation of recovery. 78 Hf U& 1B BF T LA
Indicators that there is no reasonable iH o R B AR
expectation of recovery include, amongst EHEERFEEE
others, the failure of a debtor to make BIE)EB AR
contractual payments. NEKFIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
loans to/amounts due from related parties
(including associates, joint ventures, FVOCI
investee companies and non-controlling
shareholders) and other receivables
(excluding receivables from related parties).

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

(Continued)

The loss allowance for other financial assets at
amortised cost as at 31 December reconciles to

the opening loss allowance as follows:

ERIFE MRS @
3.1 &REkRRERZEE)
31215 EF /(&)

(i)

TREERE(E)

b BN 0P
1t & B & (48)

R+—A=+—H&
BHR AT ER E A
T B A BB E 2
R 710 18 2 5 4 i 40

T

At 1January 2018 RZZ-\¥—-H—-H 184,422 438,596 623,018
Increase in the allowance AR BN

recognised in profit or s

loss during the period - 11,828 11,828
Receivables written off k=L El:)

as uncollectible el - (12,780) (12,780)
Disposal of Shanxi Coal HELRREEE

Mining Assets (175,942) (136,752) (312,694)
Exchange differences ERER (8,480) (19,817) (28,297)
At at 31 December 2018 RZZ-\F

and 1 January 2019 +-A=t-EBk

“T-NF¥-A-H - 281,075 281,075

Decrease in the allowance HARNEREANETE

recognised in profit or BRERD

loss during the period - (516) (516)
Receivables written ERHERN AR E

off during the year e IR

as uncollectible - (5,973) (5,973)
Disposal of Shanxi Coal HELTREREER

Mining Assets - - -
Exchange differences ERER - (9,474) (9,474)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NEF

+=A=1+-H - 265,112 265,112
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Net impairment losses on financial assets
recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following losses/(gains)
were recognised in profit or loss in relation to
impaired financial assets:

Impairment losses on trade FEW R FUBER R
receivables

Impairment losses on other Hih S pEE
financial assets NERIER=ES

Net impairment losses on TREERE
financial assets BRFEE

3.1.3 Liquidity risk

The Group operates a central treasury function
at corporate level that surplus cash of operating
entities within the Group is gathered in a pool. The
cash balance is then advanced to entities within
the Group with cash needs. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with borrowing
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions in order
to meet the liquidity requirements of the Group in
both short and long terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

£l @ RS T8 (@)
3.1 £rpEbEEE @)
3.1.3 B E LR (&

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

As stated in Note 2.1.3, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$28,091,728,000 and outstanding
capital commitments of HK$26,802,363,000
at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
HKS$22,814,916,000), which exposed the Group to
liquidity risk. In order to mitigate the liquidity risk,
the Group had obtained sufficient short and long-
term bank facilities at the end of the reporting
period. In addition, the management will undertake
close monitoring process to control the timing of
the expected cash outflows associated with the
construction of new power plants and the purchase
of power generation equipment or other new
investments. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's liquidity risk has
been significantly reduced and they are satisfied
that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations in full as and when they fall due for the
coming twelve months from 31 December 2019.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities,
computed on the earliest date when the Group
would be required to settle them. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are computed at floating rates,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

Bt 2.1 30T A =
Z—-NF+_A=+—
B AEE®MRBEEF
%65 28,091,728,000 /8
L REEELRNEER
26,802,363,000/8 T(=— =
—N\F+_A=+—8H:
22,814,916,000%87T) °
Tﬁzﬁﬁlﬁﬂmu@ﬁi
E}l" 75_’1/)%1 //\L@J,éfi
CAREBERBEKRE
\E%ﬁaﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
ﬁ%% o BEEES
Lﬁi‘%a%ﬁ%—s' LAY 1) 32
SR ERMBEERERME
ok B 7% & &9 48 48 78 HA
fﬁ@iﬁﬂﬂﬂ’qﬁ%ﬁaﬂo L ULE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTinueD) 3 EERESHe
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 £rEbEEE @)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 3.1.3nEE AR (&)

At 31 December 2019 RZE-nE
+-A=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities: (T4 4REE
Non-interest bearing N8 18,090,127 9,479,748 - - 21569875 21,569,875
Fixed interest rate B - 10817628 11,678,059 10,094 22,505,781 21,253,013
Variable interest rate FHHE - 17912221 42559324 26,497,648 86,969,199 73,921,459
18,090,127 38,209,603 54,237,383 26,507,742 137,044,855 122,744,347
Financial quarantee contracts BBEREN 564,689 564,689 564,689
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
+ZA=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities: (TS RARE -
Non-interest bearing N8 16,246,093 11,908,560 - - 28,154,653 28,154,653
Fixed interest rate Bk - 8928975 12,731,533 66,830 21731338 20,576,318
Variable interest rate FEH % - 21460060 34,660,143 34,657,156  90,777339 76,098,819
16,266,093 42201575 47397676 34,721,986 140,663,330 124,829,790
Financial quarantee contracts FHEREY - 231414 581,870 - 894,284 2,894,284
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did RZE—NFER=ZZF—N
not have any derivative financial instruments. F+-A=+—H ' K&

EWEEAOTESRTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)

3.2 Capitalrisk management

The Group's objectives in managing capital are to
safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure in order to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital based on gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
equity (excluding non-controlling interests). Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings and loans from related
parties less cash and cash equivalents, and pledged/
restricted bank deposits.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

B B RS R R Al 5t

3 SERlFERETE@m
3.2 BEXEERE

AEBEAEREEREASE
B ELERED  UARKRR
PR [0 ¥R N A A K e AR R &
gL BRFELENERE
B ARREEARRA -

REFLABENEE K&
B gRHERNTRROKE
TR REEARATHE - BT
MR EBEENRDER -

AEBRBEAABLRER
HER - Z R BEFRER
A 48 7 2 (1 B2 45 JF 122 ) 14 42
@) 8 - AEFRIRIEERR
MREBBEBETNETREES K
ReEEYRDERZRBIEE
TEREE -

R=B-AF+=A=+—H
OB B E T

Total borrowings BERE 87,903,748 96,675,137
Loans from an intermediate PER i aliab 2 /NSy
holding company =E:N 6,233,010 -
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BeRkReEEY (4,907,306) (7,977,153)
pledged/restricted B, SR
bank deposits BITHER (425,503) (214,281)
Net debt BEFE 88,803,949 88,483,703
Total equity b Ty 86,716,013 77,284,611
Gearing ratio BRAGBHE 102% 114%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BT RS R 51

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

Net debts equal borrowings, loans from an intermediate
holding company less restricted and pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The directors of
the Company consider the Group's gearing ratio has been

maintained at a comfortable level.

Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the
Group is required to comply with the following financial

covenants:

e The consolidated tangible net worth shall not be

less than HKS20 billion; and

e The ratio of consolidated adjusted EBITDA to
consolidated interest expense in respect of each

relevant period shall not be less than 3:1.

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout
the reporting period. As at 31 December 2019, the
consolidated tangible net worth was HK$85,942,608,000
(HKS$75,997,469,000 as at 31 December 2018) and the
ratio of consolidated adjusted EBITDA to consolidated
interest expense was 5.9:1 (5.0:1 as at 31 December

2018).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTinuep) 3 ErRlFERETEm
3.3 Fairvalue estimation 3.3 AAREEME
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at TERAOWUNKEEIZAREE
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have FIEMEemMIT R - EEENT
been defined as follows: AERAT -
Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F— — AHANEEXBER
for identical assets or liabilities ERMISHHRECK
kY
Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included Fh — REBEEZEAMER)K
within level 1 that are observable for the asset M (BIREEH) A
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or BREELEENS
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) ABE(E—RBRE
K EREBRIN)
Level 3- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not FE=H — WIRBEAEBETS
based on observable market data (that is, BHEBETMEERA
unobservable inputs) Er & ASIEEN T
AR A A BUE)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets TREWAEBER_Z—NF
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 +—RA=+—H®AABER
December 2019: ENEHEENAE

Assets BE

FvocCl RAREBETNE
BE®E AEM
e W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)

3.3 Fairvalue estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group's financial assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2018:

3

£ Rl @ iR S T8 (@)
3.3 DABEEMAF @

TREIAEER-F-N\F
TZA=t—BRAREEG
ENeREENMAE:

Assets &=

FvoCl NAREBENE
BEHT AEM
iRe W

- 1,877,311 1,877,311

There were no transfers among level 1, level 2 and level
3 during the year.
(a) Financial instruments in level 1 and level 2

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group held
no such financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep) 3
3.3 Fairvalue estimation (continued)
(b) Llevel 3 instruments

Level 3 instruments mainly included equity
investments at FVOCI in unlisted equity securities.
As these investments are not traded in an active
market, their fair values have been determined
using dividend discounted model. The details of the
assumptions for FVOCI and the sensitivity analysis
are disclosed in Note 14(a).

The movement of level 3 instruments for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:

B B RS R R Al 5t

E il [ b2 S 18

3.3

Opening balance at 1 January m—A—BWEYI&
Exchange difference MEHZERR
Gains recognised in other REMmEEIA
comprehensive income R AR
Additions NE
Closing balance at 31 December Rt+—A=+—
B EAR 45 84

DN ABEMEH @
(b) F=RTA

FEZRITETEBREIFL
TMRABLENUNAAEE
HEAEFHHARLMES
U 25 o EEE/\\;A—J-%\J%EIH
PERTSEE HAR
BEFAREHREALE
o AARBEFERES
SHAEMER A Y B R
K SRR E 5 W7 SE 1B PR B 5
14(a) #R & -

RE-F-h&+-A
St-RALEE E=R
TAHSHMT :

1,877,311 1,516,177
(8,283) (51,242)

40,786 411,525
24,757 851

1,934,571 1,877,311
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuep)
3.3 Fairvalue estimation (continued)
(b) Level 3 instruments (Continued)

Fair value of certain FVOCI has been determined
using dividend discounted model. The key
assumptions used for dividend discounted model
calculations are as follows:

Real discount rate TR K

Average growth rate of dividends BB g R =

3

ERIFE MRS @
3.3 DARBEME @)
(b) Z=ARTA @

ETHARBEARML
EEBEHRE 2 RAME
B3 AR B R IREI &
o lRERRERGE S
FRIE R EEZ/RRT

4 CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within next financial year are addressed below:

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

4 CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continueD)

(a)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The estimate of depreciable lives of property, plant and
equipment, especially power generating plant and
equipment and mining structures, was made by the directors
with reference to the following: (1) the historical usage
of the assets; (2) their expected physical wear and tear;
(3) results of recent durability assessment performed; (4)
technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes
orimprovements in production of similar fixed assets; and (5)
the changes in market demand for, or legal or comparable
limits imposed on, the use of such fixed assets. When
the useful lives differ from the original estimated useful
lives, management will adjust the estimated useful lives
accordingly.

The current estimated useful lives are stated in Note
2.8. It is possible that the estimates made based on
existing experience are different to the actual outcomes
within next financial period and could cause a material
adjustment to the depreciation and carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment.

If the estimated depreciable lives of power generating
plant and equipment and mining structures had been
increased/decreased by 5%, the depreciation expenses
of fixed assets for the year ended 31 December 2019
would have been decreased/increased by approximately
HKS$437,106,000 and HK$S404,136,000 respectively
(2018: HKS$445,234,000 and HK$397,002,000).

4

B B 5T ihEt RAIE @

(@)

M MERRENAERF
A

WE BELARBOLEZEE
o N % 8 DA S SRR 2R 8 ) O AT 47
EFHEAKEST2E TR
BgmELD : (NEENBER
RER : () EFREYIRERE KL
2% B METHMAFR
AHEER (WEBRUBEEEE
WEEBMAERNEMELE
BT 1 SR B ¢ R (5)
EREHBEEEENT SRR
B HERBHEETE
BEMMAERZLALLRGIA
Pro s - Z R EMAFHE RN
RAMGEOAERFEHRE - B
32 JE % AR FE S B AR ET AT 2 A
FH -

B A& {4 5T A6 A F B SR
fff£2.8 - IRIB IR B K8 AF
A ET R BE A IR T — {8 B R
HENERGER LA EHEY
X BEAZRENTENER
BEELEAHE -

fis B R K 5% A IR R TR R
BT & FEE M
W ALs% BE_ZZE — NF
+-A=+—HIFEAF
BEMWERIE D B D
/18 1N 49437,106,0000% T &
404,136,000 T( =& — )\ F :
445,234,000/ 7T K 397,002,000
BIT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BT RS R 51

4 CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continueD)

(b) Estimated impairment of non-financial assets (other

than goodwill)

In determining whether a non-financial asset is impaired
or the event previously causing the impairment no
longer exists, management has to exercise judgement,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the
level of impairment, including the discount rate or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect net present value used in the
impairment test.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, although the
Group had disposed several subsidiaries in coal mining
segment in previous year and the coal prices had been
kept at high level, the Group continued with its shutdown
plan of some of its coal mines gradually, pursuant
to the government policy implemented for reducing
overcapacity in the coal industry. In addition, certain
thermal power generating plants were determined to be
closed down and certain power assets were planned to
be retired or obsolete to follow the change in technology
regulating environment. These indicated that the
carrying amounts of related non-financial assets of the
Group might not be recoverable. Net impairment losses
of HK$1,767,267,000 therefore were recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 (Notes 6, 7, 8 and 9).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

4 CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continueD)

(b) Estimated impairment of non-financial assets (other

than goodwill) (Continued)

Further considerations in performing impairment tests
regarding non-financial assets are set out in Notes 6, 7, 8

and 9 respectively.

(c) Impairment review of goodwill

As of 31 December 2019, there was goodwill
substantially arising from acquisition of various
power plants amounting to HK$773,405,000 (2018:
HKS$1,287,142,000) (Note 13). Determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The recoverable amounts of each of CGUs
are determined based on value in use calculation. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and any residual value from disposing
the related assets and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss

may arise.

The details of the assumptions used by management and

the sensitivity analysis are disclosed in Note 13.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

4 CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continueD)

(d) Impairment review of prepayment paid for
acquisition of mining rights

Prepayment for acquisition of mining rights/exploration
rights are reviewed for impairment whenever one of the
following events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable (the
list is not exhaustive).

e The possibility of converting the prepayment into
the mining rights/exploration rights.

e The period for which the entity has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not
expected to be renewed.

e Substantive expenditure on future exploration for
and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned.

e Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources
in the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of mineral resources
and the entity has decided to discontinue such
activities in the specific area.

e Sufficient data exist to indicate that, though
a development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the exploration
and resources rights is unlikely to be recovered in
full from successful development or by sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continueD)

(d) Impairment review of prepayment paid for

acquisition of mining rights (Continued)

In estimating the recoverable amounts of assets, various
assumptions, including future cash flows to be associated
with the deposits and discount rates, are made. If future
events do not correspond to such assumptions, the
recoverable amounts will need to be revised, and this
may have an impact on the Group's results of operations

or financial position.

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
prepayment for acquisition of mining rights/exploration
rights is HKS1,301,664,000 (2018: HKS1,330,744,000)
(Note 15) and there is no impairment made for the year

ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue arising from sales of electricity
and heat generated by thermal power plants during the year.
The group is currently engaged in two business areas - thermal
power (inclusive of coal-fired and gas-fired power plants)
and renewable energy (inclusive of wind farms, hydro-electric
projects and photovoltaic power generation).

4

B B RS R R Al 5t

B B 5T ihEt RAIE @

(d) WBREENENESREDN
BERET (&)

RIEFTEER A KL R
AfFhERER(BEEREE R
BRREXBENARREERE) ©
HARKFHFEZFBREAN
RIZBERT AT £ 58 - B sk
THARKRBOREXE YK
RRERTE -

RZE—NFF+_A=+—
B WEHEEESEEMR
THRNBENRENERBES
1,301,664,0007%8 T( = & — N\
F :1,330,744,0007%8 70 ) (B 7%
5 kBEE-_ZT—hLF+-A
=+ —HIEFEHREEDRE
—TE-N\FE) -

SXRFRNEER
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62,613,522 66,001,230

from renewable energy

Sales of electricity EIHE
Including: fFE
Sales of power generation from N BB IHNE
thermal power plants
Sales of power generation AR AEREREEIHE

52,019,375 56,886,301

10,594,147 9,114,929

Heat supply (by thermal power plants)
Sales of coal

BRI 56 &

M E(NERER)

4,808,207
6,130,688

5,144,110

67,757,632 76,940,125

Annual Report 2019 £k

213



214

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

The chief operating decision-makers ("CODM") mainly include
executive directors and members of senior management of
the Company. For the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the CODM review operating results
and financial information on a group company by company
basis. Each such group company is identified as an operating
segment. When the group company operates in similar
business model with similar target group of customers, the
group's operating segments are aggregated.

There are differences from last annual report in the basis of
segmentation or the basis of measurement of segment profit
or loss. Subsequent to the disposal of certain subsidiaries in
coal mining segment during the year ended 31 December
2018 ("Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets"), management
has internally restructured the remaining coal mining
companies’ role and combined these companies with the
existing Thermal Power Segment. Therefore, the segmentation
basis is modified from 1 January 2019 and "“Coal mining”
segment is no longer reviewed by the CODM. Comparative
segment information has been restated to align with the
presentation in current year.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 2.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central corporate expenses, interest
income, finance costs, share of results of associates, share
of results of joint ventures, fair value changes on derivative
financial instruments, gains on disposal of investments,
dividend income from FVOCI investee companies and exchange
gains.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 S¥EHRhnsiEaRe

(CONTINUED)

BUA R EEN D BERE D

Segment information of the Group's revenue and results is IS
presented below: T

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

BHE_ZT-NAF+-_A=1t—HItF
I3

Segment revenue 73 BRULA

External sales HNEBSHE 57,163,485 10,594,147 67,757,632
Total #Et 57,163,485 10,594,147 67,757,632
Timing of revenue recognition  #& =R U 25 A B S

At a pointin time P — B [ 2 57,080,203 10,594,147 67,674,350

Over time BiE B R 1 3R 83,282 - 83,282

57,163,485 10,594,147 67,757,632

Segment profit pali PN 8,227,609 5,751,599 13,979,208
Unallocated corporate ROBELEER

expenses (1,989,570)
Interest income B A 367,750
Gains on disposal of HENB AR

subsidiaries 41,614
Gains on disposal of associates H & A T 33,054
Finance costs 5 E A (3,786,511)
Share of results of associates  JEREFE DS 192,537
Share of results of joint EEEaEhEER

ventures

Dividend income from FVOCI

investee companies

Exchange gains

Profit before income tax

AAanEEstElE
At AR AR Y s
WIE R BIBRE WA

bEE 56 W s

BR FT 1S5 B A

358,532

386,627
69,775

9,653,016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 SEFRABBER@
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Restated): HE_Z—N\F+_A=1+—HIF
E(BED)) :

Segment revenue AEMA
External sales PIHE 61,694,508 9,114,929 6,130,688 - 76,940,125
Inter-segment sales AEREE - - 23,241 (23,241) -
Total @t 61,694,508 9,114,929 6,153,929 (23,241) 76,940,125
Timing of revenue recognition R A
At 3 pointin time RE—EEH 61,489,438 9,114,929 6,153,929 (23,241) 76,735,055
Over time Re s R RS2 205,070 - - - 205,070
61,694,508 9,114,929 6,153,929 (23,241) 76,940,125
Segment profit 2EHFE 7,136,326 4,665,171 2,704,214 - 14,505,711
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBOXEHR (1,826,318)
Interest income FBUA 414,113
Net losses on Disposal of Shanxi HE TR R
Coal Mining Assets BEBBFE (2,121,569)
Gains on disposal of other HEEMME
subsidiaries NG 102,475
Finance costs HBER (4,314,685)
Share of results of assaciates BlEBELE%E 223,638
Share of results of joint ventures ElhastExE 53,937
Dividend income from FVOCI WAnEEFEREE
investee companies AR MR e
HEERAMRSMA 212,993
Exchange gains & B s 60,880
Profit before income tax BRETSBAIFE 7,311,175
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(CONTINUED)

Segment information about the Group's assets and liabilities is
presented below:

Segment assets
- Thermal power
- Renewable energy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

SRR EEE B

DT AR E BN EERE EN 5 5
o

Total segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

FVOCI and loans to an FVOCI
investee company

Amounts due from associates and
joint ventures

Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary and
other related parties

Pledged/restricted bank deposits, and
cash and cash equivalents

Deferred tax assets

Other corporate assets, mainly
representing assets held
by head office and investment
holding companies

Consolidated assets

DEEE
—NE NOELCELEN 109,048,321
—n]BAEsR 85,699,864 68,095,784
12 EE EEICECNACN 177,144,105
B A& (D 2 RS 8,833,069 9,480,198
NEEPDENREZS 5,158,844 3,678,437
WAREBETEAEH)
ST AEAER A Wam A
KR AREER =
Bt AEMERE

WHHWIZER Tfﬁm 2,358,071 2,310,273
JEUNE & 3 A E D E A

496,369 153,899
RSN

H th 28 B EiFT

HX%/XEE%\MIE\ 103,447 116,850
SR LR EISRITFER
BeNESEEY 5,332,809 8,191,434
EEMSHEE 744,390 882,182
HipbxEE 245
IR G BRI A )
BFENEE

6,709,308 6,265,789
EHEE PACWAL WL 208,223,167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BT RS R 51

5 TURNOVERAND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Segment liabilities

5 EFRFRASER@®

- Thermal power —NE 19,708,730 20,077,433

- Renewable energy — R BA R 8,693,568 7,929,827
Total segment liabilities waHas 28,402,298 28,007,260
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 87,903,748 96,675,137
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 480,933 778,517
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFTIS L B (& 924,147 423,929
Amounts due to associates and JEEE T EREE

joint ventures ERIA 609,081 2,018,978
Amounts due to other related parties JE T b BA B 75 5R0R 6,747,540 292,310
Other corporate liabilities, mainly HMtH¥aE FER

representing liabilities of BE LR EZER A A

head office and investment MWEE

holding companies 3,951,966 2,742,425
Consolidated liabilities aHfasE WELNMCRAER 130,938,556
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MERDHERBFERDEBEDEER
allocating resources between segments: =
e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than e BRREBELHENER R

G
TENERD  UAAREBEFE
HEFHFAELMERS Wt KA
—FHARARBEAELZEH T
AR MR E W R EIRE R T
EX-m e CXRE
EREERRIE ERE
BRI E QAR - RERIAEE
E BEMRRHRITER
REERAEEENRE MR
TEBYNMEMRDELEE
E MEEEBOEEZE
oHEB K

investments in associates, investments in joint ventures,
FVOCI and loans to an FVOCI investee company, loans
to/amounts due from associates and joint ventures,
amounts due from other related companies, deferred tax
assets, pledged/restricted bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents managed by corporate office, and other
unallocated corporate assets; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

e 3ll liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank and other borrowings, deferred tax liabilities,
current income tax liabilities, amounts due to associates
and joint ventures, amounts due to other related parties
and other unallocated corporate liabilities.

Restatements for changes in accounting policy

The adoption of the new leasing standard described in note
2.2 had the following impact on the segment disclosures in
the current year.

B B RS R R Al 5t

SRR EEE B

¢« BRAREMER  ELHE
BB EDDEAEHE M
MEEORRAHDEHE -
R 2 4 B 5 HRUR R K A
PREEBEN FHEES

HEREEESH -

BRI S BT B

RAMTEE 2.2 ATt s A B BB
FENDMBEBEAATTE -

Thermal power NE (24,060) 3,265,704 298,911
Renewable energy A B AR (7,717) 1,635,097 418,758
(31,777) 4,900,801 717,669

Comparative segment information has not been restated
due to the new HKFRS 16. As a consequence, the segment
information disclosed for the items noted above is not entirely
comparable to the information disclosed for the prior year.

LB BRE R R A A HT & B B 5
THEAELI6FEMES - Fit - Lt
HERENDEEEE L —FREN
EENTERALL °

Annual Report 2019 £k

219



220

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI RS R 5L

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Other segment information is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

Amounts included in
the measure of segment
profit and segment assets:
Additions to non-current
assets (i)
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment charges
Net gains/(losses) on disposal
of property, plant
and equipment

Amounts regularly provided to
CODM but not included in
the measure of
segment profit:
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Finance costs
Interest Income
Income tax expense

B FHE R
ﬁFD+EE’]i§E

FERENE AR 0 (1)

rE M EH

AEREES

HENE  BERRE
M/ (B4R ) %88

EHRTREERRE
RHUETBREEDH
B ENSE

JERE P EEE
[ERAEEES
B
FLEMA
FTEHi&H

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

3,399,248
6,971,273
2,273,450

192,537
226,211
1,546,391
43,635
1,976,003

SRR SR E B

AT REMDEER :

BHE—
=

T-nEtA=+-ALS

22,993,098
3,590,119
(34,106)

(1,645,080)
69,737
44,790

24,747,266
10,631,129
2,284,134

(18,350)

132,321 -
1,264,451 975,669
18,426 305,689
495,693  (160,074)

192,537
358,532
3,786,511
367,750
2,311,622



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 SEIFRABBER@

(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Restated): HE_Z—N\F+-_A=1+—HILF
g(a@w:

Amounts included in the measure  BEEDFFERD Y

of segment profit and BEFENEE

segment assets:
Additions to non-currentassets (i) FEREIEEAIE (i) 4,620,423 15,336,803 - 5755170 25,712,396
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 7,381,107 3,077,524 636,071 58,212 11,152,914
Impairment charges REERL 785,149 164,543 12,312 - 962,004
Net (losses)/qains on disposal of HENE  BERR

property, plant and equipment B(BR)/ aF8 (50,049) (165) (26,840) 2,773 (74,281)
Amounts reqularly provided to THRTELEARE

(ODM but not included REBTBREEDE

in the measure of seqment profit. ~ FIEzFEMEE -
Share of results of associates J‘&‘ 5 BerEFE 222,650 - 988 - 223,638
Share of results of joint ventures ElRAEhEEE (8,378) 50,133 12,182 - 53,937
Finance costs EM‘*;%;% 1,468,558 1,065,990 729,342 1,050,795 4,314,685
Interest Income FEHA 94,826 48,069 51,680 219,538 414,113
Income tax expense FiEHER 1,088,761 555,014 538,404 104,123 2,286,302
(i):  Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and financial instruments. (i) : IMBEETREECHEEERSRTA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

5 TURNOVERAND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
Geographical information

The Group's operations are principally located in the PRC. All of
the Group's revenue from external customers are attributed to
customers located in the PRC. The Group's non-current assets
excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments, which
amounted to HK$174,996,607,000 as at 31 December 2019
(2018: HKS$169,614,856,000) are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of each corresponding year
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as
follows:

Customer A

Customer B 25 B
Customer C =PC
Customer D E==0))

5

SRR SR E B

19,5 R

AREEBNLSETEMRFE - K&
ERARBIINBELHUARE AL
RAEEHEFE, - R_E—NAF+=
A=+—H AEBEMNFERBEE
(TEEEEMSHREERERT
B)174,996,607,0008 T (= — )\
£ 1 169,614,856,0007 7T ) i A
°

FHEEEEFHNER

REHEFEEMAEERHERER
10% MEFRWALLT -

12,013,205 13,396,340
9,879,182 10,351,951

8,526,037 7,880,532
7,452,039 8,565,736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B B RS R R Al 5t

6 HnE - MRk

At1January 2018 RZZE-NE-fA-H

Cost AR 42,354,603 150,922,254 4,053,193 11,307,318 18,532,829 227,170,197
Impairment PR (801,682)  (1,331,600)  (165,684)  (861,718) (3,795,538)  (6,956,222)
Accumulated depreciation  ZifHFE (13,430,148) (52,156,205)  (935337)  (1,357,632) - (67,879,322)
Net book amount REFE 28,122,773 97,434,449 2952172 9,087,968 14,737,291 152,334,653
Year ended 31 December HEZE-N\E

2018 +ZR=T-HIEE

Opening net book amount ENREFE 28,122,773 97,434,449 2,952,172 9,087,968 14,737,291 152,334,653
Exchange differences ERER (1,199,752)  (4,380,164)  (108,113)  (408,959)  (694,126) (6,791,114)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT (979,885)  (2,740,549)  (2,011911)  (160,740)  (548,513)  (6,441,598)
Additions NE 279,652 1,254,740 - 117,063 16,024,242 17,675,697
Transfer L3 1,161,101 8,124,226 - (417,021) (8,868,200 -
Disposals HE (30,953)  (201,368) - (109,269) - (341,590)
Impairment HE (20,403)  (217,922) - (12,709)  (183,462)  (434,496)
Depreciation charge TERY (2,027,147)  (8,541,699) (9,779)  (150,450) - (10,729,075)
Closing net book amount EREHFE 25,305,386 90,731,713 822369 7,945,777 20,467,232 145272477
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE

+ZA=1+-H

Cost AR 39,274,766 144,189,673 930,378 9,167,299 21,033,012 214,595,128
Impairment HE (324,296)  (336,870) (56,830) (1,375)  (565,780)  (1,285,151)
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHiTE (13,645,084)  (53,121,090) (51,179)  (1,220,147) - (68,037,500)
Net book amount RHFE 25,305,386 90,731,713 822,369 7,945,777 20,467,232 145272477
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B f $k 2R Bt 51

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conmmueny 6 112%E ~ R RR1E @

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE=Z—f1

TZA=t-HLEE
Opening netbook amount LT 2 REVE]
as previously reported REFE 25,305,386 90,731,713 822,369 7,945,777 20,467,232 145272477
Adjustment for change in SHRREDAL
accounting (H3E2.2)
policy (note 2.2) (34,022)
Opening net book amount & E5I|MERIIRE FE
as restated 25,305,386 90,731,713 822,369 7,945,777 20,433,210 145,238,455
Exchange differences fERER (528,133)  (2,171,595) (16,034)  (177,323)  (436,362) (3,329,447)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF (242) (286) - (1,606)  (422,702)  (424,836)
Additions B 120,256 1,207,318 = 336,939 19,427,478 21,091,991
Transfer a5 2,340,062 16,288,602  (531,756) (7,025,154) (11,071,734) -
Disposals & (31,775)  (18,701) - (4,663) (4,030)  (59,169)
Impairment A (33,928)  (199,908)  (250,038) (5957)  (1,009,829)  (1,499,660)

Depreciation charge HERAX (1,797,522)  (8,404,363) (24,541) (209,806) (10,436,232)

Closing net book amount EXREFE

At 31 December 2019 R=Z-NE

+=A=1+-8
Cost KA 40,422,872 157,639,110 380,304 2,183,016 28,477,880 229,103,182
Impairment fE (229,238)  (303,338)  (305,674) (6,518)  (1,561,849) (2,406,617
Accumulated depreciation  EitifE (14,819,550) (59,902,992) (74,630)  (1,318,291) (76,115,463)
Net book amount REFE 25,374,084 97,432,780 858,207 26,916,031 150,581,102
During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs RERN REBEEARLEERE
amounting to HK$682,884,000 (2018: HK$805,622,000) (Note E & B A 4~ 682,884,000 8 75(_
39) on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at — JU4F 805,622,000/ 7t ) (M9 &+
the weighted average rate of the borrowings of 4.36% (2018: 39) o [EEK AN IZHEERINEFY
4.58%). E4.36%(ZF— \F : 458%) &

(o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conminuep)

Depreciation charge of HK$10,389,783,000 and HKS46,449,000
(2018: HKS$10,665,813,000 and HKS63,262,000) has been
recorded in operating expenses and construction-in-progress,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, total net book value of property,
plant and equipment pledged as collateral for the Group's
bank borrowings amounted to HK$2,106,542,000 (2018:
HKS$2,744,296,000) (Note 31).

As at 31 December 2019, the ownership certificates of
certain buildings (“Building Ownership Certificates") of the
Group with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HKS$4,559,662,380 (2018: HKS$4,889,799,000) had not been
obtained by the Group. After consultation made with the
Company's legal counsel, the directors of the Company
consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to
apply for and obtain the Building Ownership Certificates and
it should not lead to any significant adverse impact on the
operations of the Group.

The impairment charge related to property, plant and
equipment amounting to HKS$1,499,660,000 (2018:
HKS$434,496,000) has been recorded in operating expenses.
The movement on the provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment of the Group by segment is as follows:

B B RS R R Al 5t

IE RN S BT

#r € B9 %10,389,783,000/8 7T &
46,449,00078T(= T — )\ F:
10,665,813,00078 7t 63,262,000
BIT)DAIARREERIT RERET

R—_E—h&F +-_A=+—H"
B AAEERTEERTERD
ME BMERRENERALFES
2,106,542,00078 jo( =& — )\ F :
2,744,296,000 87T ) (FI5E31) »

—NE+-A=+—8 K&
Ir‘ﬂiﬁ% SAEEE TEFNERE
B EFraEE])(RERENB
4 559,662,380/8 ;L(— & — J\ & :
4,889,799,000870)) - A ARIESE
ERARNRRVEARERR  RELE
B RS %frﬁﬁﬁﬁéu W17
EERERS - BTN SEAEBE MK
BERTAERTFZE -

@AM - BE MK 1%%}3@@?;9&7%
1,499,660,000 75 75( = — \F:
434,496,000 70 ) 2<<<Mmzt-<
ABR © NEI&’MBEIJ DHIIEE - R
EXEEREREBENESNT

Thermal power segment Coal mining segment

KE HEE B %

At 1 January n—A—H
Exchange differences fE N =% (48,907)
Provision of impairment R
Disposal of Shanxi Coal HELAREEE

Mining Assets
Disposals HE (329,287)
At 31 December Rt+t=ZBA=+—H

1,285,151

1,499,660

(1,015,994)

2,406,617

1,939,913
(73,265)
434,497

5,016,308
252,215)

(4,764,093)

1,285,151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conminuep)

Following the change in segment report as described
in Note 5, the Group made impairment charges against
certain coal mine assets and thermal power generating
plants of HK$1,066,171,000(2018: HK$13,682,000) and
HKS$433,489,000(2018: HKS$420,815,000), respectively, both
were reported in thermal power segment for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Each coal mine or thermal power generating plant is
determined as one CGU. The impairment losses or reversal of
impairment attributable to these CGUs was then allocated to
write down the assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset (including right-of-use
assets (Note 8), mining rights (Note 9) and related property,
plant and equipment) in the CGU.

The impairment charge of coal mine assets reported in
thermal power segment for the year ended 31 December
2019 mainly related to property, plant and equipment held
by subsidiaries located in Jiangsu, Henan and Hunan Province.
The impairment provision of HK$1,066,171,000 made mainly
resulted from the Group's shutdown plan of some of its
coal mines gradually according to the government policy of
reducing overcapacity in coal industry, after considering any
possible benefit receivable during the disposal process. The
recoverable amounts of these assets are based on their fair
value less costs of disposal.

During the year, certain thermal power generating plants
were determined to be closed down and certain power assets
were planned to be retired or obsolete to follow the change
in technology and requlating environment, consequently the
Group has made an impairment charge of HK$433,489,000,
after considering any possible benefit receivable during the
disposal process. The recoverable amounts of these assets are
based on their fair value less costs of disposal.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

PZE ~ RIS B2k i

AN B FESFT At 0 R BB 2 TR #

@%'$%lﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ
NDEEBRD B ELHBERERX
1,066,171,000%8 w( = & — )\ F :
13,682,000 7% 7T ) & 433,489,000 /8 7T
—ZF— )\ : 420,815,000 7T) -
MEHYREBEZ=-ZF— h¢+—ﬂ
Zt—HUEFEZANBEERS B2

o

EREINNBERET S —ERE
ELEN - ZFHSELEURAER
BERXIHERLDERRIFREES
EUREERREREEE(NE
8) ~ FREERE(PMEY) RIEREME - B
P R ik ) ) AR T (B 12 £b 1) 20 A LA
BETELEUNEE -

BE-_ZT—-—NF+-_A=+—HLt
FERANBES>XE2HROERESE
EREBBAETEZHGNTIEHRS -
HENMAEENNEBRRMEFENY
¥ WMEEEZHBEBEB - FTRRBE
1 066,171,000 T E ERE K

B4 = B ERIE P AT Al sEFE
Wﬂﬁvﬁaﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁiéﬁﬁ
B Z A THE - ZEEE
MR B RIBNEERAFEERLE
AT E o

FR - BARAEEEATEEAETA
NEEMMARETEBE TEHESH
BEERE  UWEARMEEERE
MEE Bt AEERNEETHERE
fRE{r] A] REUR B B9 FI 2= 14 FHZ BORUE
HBK B 433,489,000/87T - ZEEE
MT%@MEE&E N BEREE
AT B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments in 2018 are related
to leases of land located in the PRC. Being affected by the
adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases, the prepaid lease payments at 1
January 2019 has been reclassified to right-of-use assets.

Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁ

AREN T \FOENEER E
ﬁﬁ%$!mimﬁﬁﬁ@°x?
EBMBREENE 16 HBENY

2 R-ZF-NF-A-HBHHENHHE
ERHCENNDBEERREEE -

At 1 January as originally presented —A—BREREELEEY 3,537,380

Changes in accounting policy (Note 2.2) SEBOREE (fHFE2.2) -
At 1 January restated R—HA—B&% 3,537,380
Exchange differences bE = FE (168,327)
Additions NE 424,336
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT (157,945)
Amortisation charge B (109,551)
Disposal HE (2,593)
Impairment B (86,165)
At 31 December W+=ZB=+—H 3,437,135

LEASES

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to
leases:

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Prepaid lease payments (i) EMNEEEA ()
Buildings EEEEY
Power generating plant BN R

and equipment
Motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures,

FTE R

equipment and others ®E ZER
H At
Construction in progress rEITiE

THE&

BEABEXRBTIATEEERENS
B

4,496,335 4,180,413
475,954 252,693
392,044 69,986

13,543
22,845
5,377,588 4,539,480

Note i: Including the payments for ownership of land use right within PRC as at 1
January 2019.

Mizti: BER-_Z-NAF-A-AHERAL
HE AR PTE R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

LEASES (conTinuep)

As at 31 December 2019, land use right certificates (“Land
Certificates") of certain parcels of land of the Group with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$168,735,000 (2018:
HKS$315,558,000) had not been obtained. After consultation
made with the Company's legal counsel, the directors consider
that there is no legal restriction for the Group to apply for
and obtain the Land Certificates and it should not lead to any
significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group.

Lease liabilities HEERE
Current Mk
Non-current JIERED

8 THE(.“E
—hWE+ZA=+—H  &&
lrﬁfké% SAEEE TR AL
FREEZEEZ([LE])  REEE
£168,735,000/8 T (Z & —)\i :
315,558,000,%75) %%ERMEZIK
NEERERE  REAEEFRD

ﬁg Shb:if) ITT?ETH‘J&@KE%'J
TEUARENELERTIMEX
Tﬂ%% °

210,811 117,672
826,903 316,479
1,037,714 434,151

Note 2: Note 2.2 explains the change of accounting policy and Note 2.31 sets out
the remaining accounting policies.

MizE2 : MisE2 2B et R EE M
Mizk2.31 P EBREFHBUR ©

At 1 January Hn—HB—H 4,539,480
Exchange differences N ERE (102,591)
Additions NE 1,340,253
Amortisation charge BiHE R (301,936)
Disposal HeE (20,466)
Impairment BB (77,152)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 5,377,588

The impairment charge of HK$77,152,000 in 2019 was
provided for certain prepaid lease payment held by
subsidiaries engaged in coal mining business, mainly resulted
from the Group's shutdown plan of this subsidiary. The
recoverable amounts of these assets are based on their fair
value less costs of disposal.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

—E-NFRREEKX77,152,000/87T
AN ERERAREBSNNBARFERN
ETHENEEERELNEE  TZEHRN
AEBRBEAZH B ARINGTEIFTE - 325
BEMIKEZENZEAFEERLES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

LEASES (conTinueD) 8 H&w@m

During the year ended 31 December 2019, amortisation of BE-_Z—NF+=_A=+—8H
HK$227,871,000 and HK$74,065,000 has been recorded in IFFE - B $4227,871,0008 T &
operating expenses and construction in progress, respectively. 74,065,000 ST E 2 Al 5T AL & A

ST RAERETRE -

Depreciation charge of FRREENTEEZER
right-of-use assets
Prepaid lease payment ENEEER 130,754
Buildings B EREEY 139,894
Power generating plant BERMEE
and equipment 26,366
Motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures, RE R RKE -
equipment and others R EAM 4,922
301,936
Interest expense (included in B (R AR IEAA)
finance cost) 39 18,801
Expense relating to short-term HEHLMEEEHRE
and low-value leases B
(included in operating expenses) (GFALZERL) 16,816
The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was HK$118,782,000. —E-NEFHENREeREBRER
118,782,000 /87T °
(a) The Group's leasing activities and how these are () AEEMNHEZHRESSA
accounted for =
The Group leases various buildings, power generating AEEHEATRAEEREY
plant and equipment, land use rights, motor vehicles, BERNEE - DA
furniture, fixtures, equitment and others. Rental contracts RE R EE - RELRE
are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 50 years but e HEAGHNBERIESIF
may have extension options as described in (b) below. FETHER BaggAETX
(b) FTit AU RE RSB 124
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and MERFZREBINEERRE - &
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. K — RO RHE R & -
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing EEEMRETREMAIEERNE
puUrposes. Ran ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

8 LEASES (conTinuep) 8 fH&Ewm@
(b) Extension and termination options (b) ERRKIEERE
Extension and termination options are included in a AEBBATHENYMERE
number of property and equipment leases across the HREE MK THEEERE -
Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility ZEEERENEEASEER
in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's KEMAMEE FBBIER 88
operations. The majority of extension and termination RASEMNEZLE - BAENLE
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not BRI EEERERTSE
by the respective lessor. AMAEBTFE WIASH
FAATTEE ©
9 MINING RIGHTS 9 IRiEiE

At 1 January Hn—A—H
Cost DN WAOEIN 21,942,145
Impairment A (CPrRERI (4,237,241)
Accumulated amortisation Rt (CLYAYE) (2,402,934)
Opening net book amount FERMEFE 480,605 15,301,970
Exchange differences ME H ZHE (15,907) (404,324)
Additions NE - 298,606
Impairment E (190,455) (100,658)
Amortisation charge A (13,475) (388,425)
Transfer from exploration and EE e ERRE

resources rights (note 10) (fizE10) 59,860 -
Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets HELAKESE S (14,226,564)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 320,628 480,605
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Cost DN 1,197,890 1,210,516
Impairment E (680,343) (522,748)
Accumulated amortisation BETH#EH (196,919) (207,163)
Net book amount BREFE 320,628 480,605
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

MINING RIGHTS (conminuen) 9 IRiREE@

Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the mining BHEDBRBERENKRBLRENRS
rights using the unit of production method based on the FREESERAETAGTIR - MR
proved and probable reserves of the coal mines. Amortisation MEARERK AN o #4513,475,0008 (=
of HKS13,475,000 (2018: HK$388,425,000) and impairment of T — )\ : 388,425,000/%8 7T ) K
HK$190,455,000 (2018: HK$100,658,000) have been recorded TE 190,455,0008 (=& — J\ F -
in operating expenses. 100,658,000 7C) E ABREK AR o
The impairment charge of HK$190,455,000 in 2019 was NI - NLFE BEREBX
provision for certain mining rights located in Hunan, Jiangsu 190,455,000,8 7c B A MM ~ /L&
and Henan Province, mainly resulted from the Group's KouEE A THREERE T2/
shutdown plan of certain subsidiaries, after considering any RAEBRHEBEFEBER AL
possible benefit receivable during the disposal process. The e N =izt IR A T B A RIFT
recoverable amounts of these assets are based on their fair e Exfﬁégm—ﬂ&@ KIE TV IRE A
value less costs of disposal. FEEREENAGHE
EXPLORATION AND RESOURCES RIGHTS 10 &EiRENFRIE

>

At 31 December 2018 —E2-N\E+=ZA=+—H 216,025 162,310

Additions NE = 65,131
Transfer to mining rights R E R (59,860) -
Exchange differences PEH =% (4,703) (11,416)
At 31 December 2019 R=-ZF-NFE+=BA=+—H 151,462 216,025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOANS TO 11 MBS 1 5 A0l am B2 (ol 56

AN ASSOCIATE EPESR
(a) Investmentsin associates (a) REZELENER

At 1 January »—A—H 9,480,198 8,747,317
Transfer from investment in a subsidiary &8 5 — M E R A

R 20,496 701,487

Capital contributions to associates MBS PIETE 173,865 719,549
Disposal of associates HEB S b (377,255) -
Share of profits JE (R F1) 192,537 222,650
Dividends f% = (390,318) (499,744)

Impairment charges VERIEREEN (44,526) -
Share of other comprehensive loss EGEMEEEE (69,765) (107,349)

Share of other equity movement DREEE PR EAM

of associates g ) (1,649) 1,698
Exchange differences &N E%R (150,514) (305,410)
At 31 December W+=—RA=+—H 8,833,069 9,480,198
Included in the Group's cost of investment in associates is REBRBELPENKEXNABIERD
goodwill of HK$600,958,000 (2018: HK$651,643,000). £600,958,0008 (=& — N\ F :

651,643,000 7T) °
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11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOANS TO 11 Aﬁ'i‘ 5 S5 1P FEAUiE B2 Mo B

AN ASSOCIATE (conminuep) SEP¥ESH@®

(a) Investments in associates (Continued) (a) MEFELEMNER(E)
As at 31 December 2019, the principal associates of the RZE-—NF+ZA=+—
Group, all being accounted for using equity method, B AEEXTEBECFEHR
were as follows: REREZE)WT

China Resources (Xuzhou) PRC Registered and - 42.65  Operation of
Electric Power (o., Ltd. e paid-up capital a power station
BINEBENERAF RMB863,110,000 LB

AR ER
AR 863,110,000

Funeng Guizhou Power Corporation  PRC Registered and 49 - Operation of
B (BN BEBRAR FE paid-up capital 3 power station

(Formally known as China Resources RMB1,300,000,000 EETUL
Power (Liuzhi) Co., Ltd.) A RARER
(FIBEBENR)ERATF) AK™1,300,000,000 7T

Jingneng (Xilinguole) PRC Registered and - 30  Operation of
Power Corporation FE paid-up capital a power station
(RE2 (B H) REERAA) RMB 1,916,000,000 EEBUL

At kR &R
AE#1,916,000,000 7T

Fuyang China Resources Power PRC Registered and 40 - Operation of
Co., Ltd. ("CR Fuyang") HE paid-up capital a power station
EBERENERAF RMB1,263,265,000 LEE
(e ) A kR ER

AE#1,263,265,0007T

Hunan Taohuajiang Nuclear PRC Registered capital - 25  Operation of
Power (o., Ltd. HE RMB1,025,704,000 a power station
("Hunan Tachuajiang Nuclear") Paid-up capital EEFUL
BRI IZEERAR RMB1,149,227,000
(MEkEIRE]) A MER

AR 1,025,704,000 7T
BRER

AEM1149,227,000 7T

Annual Report 2019 £ 233



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOANS TO 11 MRS [P FEANiE B2 Mo B

AN ASSOCIATE (conminuep) Sr¥ESR@®
(a) Investments in associates (Continued) (a) REFEEMNER(E)

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

Jiangsu Zhenjiang Power PRC Registered and - 42.5  Operation of
Generation Co., Ltd. e Paid-up capital a power station
("Jiangsu Zhenjiang Power") RMB1,482,200,000 EEFIL
THETHEERAT A RECER
(NIHEIHE]) AE#1,482,200,000 7T

Yangzhou No. 2 Power PRC Registered and 45 - Operation of
Generation Co.,Ltd. H paid-up capital a power station
BNE_BEBERELLA RMB1,692,000,000 LBEI

AMRBRER
AR#1,692,000,000 7T

Guodian Changzhou PRC Registered and - 25  Operation of
Power Corporation HE paid-up capital a power station
BEFMEEFRDA RMB1,000,000,000 LBEI

A RERER
AR 1,000,000,0007T

Zhengzhou Huayuan Coal Mining PRC Registered and - 30.67  Exploration and
Co., Ltd. I paid-up capital sale of coal
BHEREEBB AR RMB750,000,000 MR RIEER K

RRIPNE =¥
AR 750,000,000 7T

Shanxi zhonglv China Resources PRC Registered and - 20 Operation of

Company Limited FE paid-up capital a power station

AT ERERERAT

RMB 1,641,750,000
AR ER
ARE1,641,750,000 7T

LEEY




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOANSTO
AN ASSOCIATE (conTinuep)

(a)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Note i: On 16 December 2019, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with a third party, Jointo Energy Investment Co., ltd.
Hebei., to sell the 25% equity interest in Hengshui Hengxing Power
Corporation (Hengxing Power) owned by the Group, at a consideration
of RMB164,363,625 (equivalent to HK$182,959,726).

On 19 December 2019, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with a third party, Guodian Huabei Co., Ltd., to sell the
25% equity interest in Heibei Hengfeng Power Corporation(Hengfeng
Power), at a consideration of RMB222,288,700 (equivalent to HKS
247,438,444) owned by the Group.

The two equity transfer were completed in December 2019, and
Hengxing Power and Hengfeng Power ceased to be the Group's
associates.

The above table lists the principle associates of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results of the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other associates would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

All above associates are limited liability companies.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided guarantees
amounting to HK$564,689,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$581,870,000) to secure bank loans of Hunan
Taohuajiang Nuclear.

The impairment charge of HK$44,526,000 in 2019
was provision for the Group's investment in Guodian
Changzhou Power Corporation of which the group
planned to dispose, after considering any possible
benefit receivable during the disposal process. The
recoverable amounts of these assets are based on their
fair value less costs of disposal.

11 R

¢ = 11 5% AV s 2 ol S

b

SrESH@m

(@)

REE RS (E)

MizEi: RZTE—AF+=ZA+-8-
ANEBES = AL BRER
BERGARARFLAHEEAR
SEBEZEKEHERBEELR
EFERARIEEE ) K 25% %
AV REEE RS REA
AR #164,363,625T(FA & P
182,959,726 7T) ©

R-ZE—h&E+=-A+hB &
EEEF=FHEEILERAF
BEEEEALEEG 2 TILE
LWEHNBERAR(ELE D)W
25% R AERT M AR s i R -
& A AR % 222,288,700 7T (18
B 247,438,444 787T) ©
AR EN 2019 F 12 A%
e Bt BEENHMELE N
TEBRALEBADE -

RABEERR - ERAHIK
SEXEHRECXCHAKE
FEXEFEEFENBAAR
SEFEEZERHD - AR
RESAR JHEGBEED
ENEHSEHERBNITER °

BEBMZLEHR/BEREAER

el

jnn|
M
i
OF [

564,689,000
T-NE+-_AF=+—8:
581,870,000/ T ) A ER A=
RIETZERIRITER -

“TE2E-NEFHREREX
44,526,000 BT BAEEBEREE
EMENER A (AEBE
HEZA AR MRERE B
EEEHEBEPHEMATEE
FEWFzE - 2 EEEM A I E
REDNBEERNTFEERLSEK
REHHE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOANSTO
AN ASSOCIATE (conTinuep)

(a)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information for immaterial
associates

According to the assessment of directors of the Company,
as at 31 December 2019, no individual associate is
material to the Group, therefore, no information on
individual associate is disclosed.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the immaterial associates which are accounted for
using the equity method.

11 R

¢ = 11 5% AV s 2 ol S

SrESH@®
(a) MEFEDENER (E)

TEABELEIYHEEREL
Z

1R DT E BT R
T-nfE+-A=t+—AHE
RIS DR AR BT B
EE L % (R
BOENER -

AN 85I RS A ARA
BEABECENMBERNRE -

Profit from continuing operations FE IS E E TS 192,537 222,650
Other comprehensive loss Ha 2 EEE (69,765) (107,349)
Total comprehensive income ZHEIBRALTE 122,772 115,301

Loans to an associate

Loans

M D EERK

As at 31 December 2019, loans to an associate are
denominated in RMB, unsecured and bearing interest
rates of 0% to 4.35% perannum (2018: 0% to 4.35%).

As at 31 December 2019, due to short-term nature of the
loans to an associate, the carrying amount approximates
the fair values.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

RZE-—NFF+_A=+—
B MBEErEERUARE
FHE - AEEE BN T0%E
435% M FRE(ZZT—)\F :
NFF0% & 4.35%) 518 °

RoF—AF+-A=+—
B - A 2 ) B A5
i FABENSREAA
EE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO JOINT 12
VENTURES

(a) Investmentsin jointventures

At 1 January W—A—H
Capital contributions to joint ventures (i) RI&&METE (i)
Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets HEILIFREEEE
Share of profits (R FI
Dividends (ii) A& 2 (i)

Share of other comprehensive loss FE(EEM 2GR
Exchange differences & 3 =5

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

B B RS R R Al 5t

RASERENIESRNE
&P EER

REERENER

3,678,437 3,660,368
2,444,745 100,548
- (86,519)

358,532 162,643
(1,231,330) -
(62,014) (99,351)
(29,526) (59,252)

5,158,844 3,678,437

As at 31 December 2019, the principal joint ventures of
the Group, all of which were accounted for using equity
method, were as follows:

R-ZZE-—NAEF+_A=+—
B AREIBABLE(HR
REREAR)ETZ20T

Resources J Energy Investment HK Share capital
Limited ("Resaurces J") (il o US$266,599,544
HREERIRERRAE M B
(IAEaR)) 266,599,544 KT

China Resources Power Orient HK Share capital
Co., Limited ("Orient") i 5 US$265,311,808
ERENRHBRLAE O (LEN
(155 ]) 265,311,808 €T

China Resources Power (Hezhou) PRC Registered and
Co., Limited ("CR Hezhou") (i FE paid-up capital

£BTH(EMARAT O
(TEBEM))

RMB1,724,000,000
A EHEER
ARH1,724,000,0007T

66 -

Investment
holding
REER

Investment
holding
REER

Operation of
a power station
ZEEUL
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12 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO JOINT

VENTURES (conTinuep)

(a)

Investments in joint ventures (continued)

12 REErENERRES
SrESH@
REETENELR (&)

Summit Plus International Limited
("Summit Plus")

China Resources Power (Jinzhou)
Co., Limited

ERENHMBRAA

UK Share capital
£ (GBP580,000,000
B

580,000,000 %4

PRC Registered and
I paid-up capital
RMB764,922,500

A kR AR

AR 764,922,5007T

- 40 Investment
holding
REZRK

- 50 Operation of

a power station
EEEU

Note:

In Feburary 2019, the Group made capital contribution of
GBP232,000,000 to Summit Plus, after this capital contribution the
Group's guarantee amounting to HK$2,312,414,000 to CRC New Energy

(UK) Limited was released.

ii. During the year ended 31 December 2019, dividends of GBP84,191,000
(equivalent to HK$857,362,000) was declared and paid by Summit

Plus, from its capital reserve.

iii. The Group holds 66% of the interests of Resources J. As certain key
financial and operating matters should be approved unanimously by
the board members appointed by both the Group and the third party,
the directors of the Company consider that Resources J is still jointly
controlled by the Group and the third party. Orient and CR Hezhou are
100% directly and indirectly held by Resources J, respectively.

All the entities above are limited liability companies.

According to the assessment of directors of the Company,
as at 31 December 2019, no individual joint venture
is material to the Group, therefore, no information on
individual joint venture is disclosed.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

GEE

i. RZZB—-HE-_A A&EEHF
Summit Plus ;=& 232,000,000 8% -
M &E &A1& 7K 5% E [ CRC New
Energy (UK) Limited{F H &) ¥ R
2,312,414,000 /B TTIERRRS ©

ii. HE-T—-NF+=-A=1+—8L1Lt
FEE - Summit Plus it & N E
BR R SR A% B 84,191,000 2 &5
(FEHF857,362,000/87T) °

iii. AEEFEBERERO%ER -
ETEEMBREETHALEASE
EREF=FHERZTNEESKE
—BUibE - AR ARIESRAR
EE RS =Y EEERDITELS
R B4 o T REHE N 250
%%ﬁ%&%%%ﬁﬁ%&%%%

PR AERORBEREER
EE

BEARBEEHTGE K=
T—NFE+-_A=+—H I
EERGECEHAEEBE
A B WEFEEERNEE
TEMNER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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12 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO JOINT 12 REEFENERRMES
VENTURES (continuep) Sr¥aRm@
(a) Investmentsin joint ventures (Continued) (a) RNEELENERE)
Set out below are the summarised financial information AT &Y R AR EARAIE
for the immaterial joint ventures which are accounted for BEREETENUFERBE -

using the equity method.

Profit from continuing operations FECE ETBHFE 358,532 162,643
Other comprehensive loss Hiv2HEE1E (62,014) (99,351)

Total comprehensive income FEHMABRE 296,518 63,292

(b) Loansto jointventures (b) BEELEER

Current: BER -

Loans to joint ventures & ETEER

As at 31 December 2019, loans to joint ventures are R—ZE—-—NF+_RAR=+—
denominated in RMB, unsecured and bearing an interest H RMEELEERUARE
rate of 4.35% (2018: 4.35%) per annum. FTE - B RIRE N E4.35%

ZE—)\F : 4.35%)5T B o

As at 31 December 2019, due to the short-term nature R—ZE—-—NF+_AR=+—
of the loans to joint ventures, their carrying amounts H BRRAGECENERE
approximate their fair values. HEHHYE  MARBEHOHER

HARMEE -
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13 GOODWILL

The movements in the carrying amount of goodwill during the
year are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

13 &

BENREERSFENESNT

At 1January 2018

R=Z—-NE—A—H

Cost P AR 2,719,606
Accumulated impairment losses REtBEEE (1,093,046)
Net book amount IREDFE 1,626,560
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—\F+-A=+—HLEE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 1,626,560
Impairment charge VERIEREES (298,100)
Exchange differences N E%R (41,318)
Closing net book amount FREAEFE 1,287,142
At 31 December 2018 R=-Z2—-NF+=ZA=+—H

Cost DN 2,675,089
Accumulated impairment losses REtREEE (1,387,947)
Net book amount BREFE 1,287,142

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE_T-NF+-A=T-HLEE

Opening net book amount FYIREFE
Impairment charge VERIEREEN
Exchange differences PN ER
Closing net book amount FRREFE

At 31 December 2019
Cost

R-ZZE-hE+=ZA=+—8H
R AN

Accumulated impairment losses RitBEEE
Net book amount REFE

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

1,287,142
(495,000)
(18,737)

773,405

2,654,901
(1,881,496)

773,405
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13 GOODWILL (conTinueD) 13
Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the CGUs of the Company's subsidiaries
within two segments, thermal power and renewable energy,
in different provinces in the PRC. The carrying amounts of
major goodwill allocated to individual CGUs are as follows:

Thermal power segment KNBEEDE
- Shenyang China Resources  — /& RHES
Heating Co., Ltd. BRATA
(“Shenyang Power (MEHEHRF])
Company") 198,774
- China Resources (Jiangsu) —E=HENOIE)
Investment Co., Ltd. REBRAA 448,730
- Xuzhou Huaxin Power —BRMNESEE
Generation Co., Ltd. BRAA] 315,062
- Other companies —HiRa 314,128
1,276,694
Renewable energy segment  ABARERED 10,448
Total st 1,287,142

HEE))
EERE IR

BEDEEARRNFETRE DK
MEBARMED BN EERAH
HARER)AMREELEBMN - DECE
BERReESLBMHNFZHEREE
LI

(100,000) 98,774

(245,000) (9,806) 193,924

(150,000) (6,885) 158,177
— (2,046) 312,082

(495,000) (18,737) 762,957

— — 10,448

(495,000) 773,405

Thermal power segment KNBEEDE
- Shenyang Power Company —BSE AT 348,774  (150,000) - 198,774
- China Resources (Jiangsu) —E=BEHCIE)
Investment Co., Ltd. REBR AR 470,359 - (21,629) 448,730
- Xuzhou Huaxin Power —RMNESRE
Generation Co., Ltd. BRAF 330,248 - (15,186) 315,062
- Other companies —EH MR R] 466,731 (148,100) (4,503) 314,128
1,616,112  (298,100)  (41,318) 1,276,694
Renewable energy segment  AIB4ERERD S 10,448 — - 10,448
Total st 1,626,560  (298,100)  (41,318) 1,287,142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13 GOODWILL (conTinueD)

Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of each of the CGUs are determined
based on value in use calculations. The key assumptions for
the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, sales growth rates and expected changes to gross
margin during the year. Management estimates discount rates
using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
sales growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in gross margin are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group performed impairment test
for goodwill based on pre-tax cash flow projection covering
a period of shorter than the useful life of the property, plant
and equipment and operation period of each of the CGU. The
first 5 years derived from the most recent financial budgets
approved by management, while the forecast beyond 5 years
is compiled by extrapolating the projection based on the
financial budget, assuming no growth.

For each of the CGUs with significant amount of goodwill, the
key assumptions and discount rate used in the value-in-use
calculations in 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Gross margin e AES
Sales growth rate SHE R K
Pre-tax discount rate M7 RTAL IR &

13

HEE))

BEFHERR E)

Kfﬁ@%i MEI’JTH&@@%EEHZG'Z
BEETEEL - FREETENA
BT B/RETIEPDFERNELIEER « HE
BERNENRNIEEES) - EIEE

RAARBRRTHSHERRREEE
R MR EL BB E AR
BRI AR RfAETREIR R « JHERREK
BRENERBAEE - EMRNHE

RBEBH RE TSR RS TAE

BT -

R-E-NET-A=+-0 A%
ERBERYE - BREREEBEHAERA
FHERERSEABMNNEESHRA
ROHREENEAIRSRETEN

HEEETREANR - ERFEATY

REEREMZNSCAHMKRES -
MmiBA A F TR R BEI I TEE(E

HIERIMARS - W RRLEEE
PEESHEBEANSREELEMM

5 RIZBE-NFE_Z—NFAR

AEERBEEN T 2RI LR EN
T

-12%-13%
-18%-9%
9%-14%

-0.5%-14%
-12%-2%
10%-11.15%

Gross margin EF =
Sales growth rate HEER XK
Pre-tax discount rate BB pTEL IR X

34%-40% 30%-44%
0%-8% -27%-20%
12% 10%

At 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount calculated
based on value in use exceeded carrying value by
HK$280,059,000. A decrease of gross margin by 7.18%-
14.65%, or a rise in pre-tax discount rate by 5.73%-11.02%,
all changes taken in isolation, would remove the remaining
headroom.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

—NEF+—A=+—8 " &
ﬁﬁf‘ﬂaﬁ 4 1y A /9 AT Y [0] 6 BB R A BR
M 1& 280,059,000 87T © EF K T[E
7.18%%14.65%%@@%?95%&?%

PRV



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 FVOCI AND LOANS TO AN FVOCI INVESTEE
COMPANY

(a)

Fvodl

FVOCI represent equity investments in unlisted limited
liability entities registered in the PRC which are not held
for trading. These are strategic investments and the
Group considers this classification to be more relevant.
Movement of FVOCI is disclosed in Note 3.3(b).

On disposal of these equity investments, any related
balance within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to
retained earnings.

Company A

Company B NGNS
Company C NCINE
Company D ~AID
Company E ~AlE
Company F ~AlF
Others HAh

B B RS R R Al 5t

%
NH{ERS UK @ RIAA 5t

inoIKmAIRIRERTE

S
(a)

UAREBEFEEZEHTTAH
4R & Wik

WARBEAEEZESHAH
iR e W IE RN P B &R IE
tHTEREXTEENRER
B WIRHIEEE - EHIEE
RERBIEE  AEBEREEHW
DEFEEBH - LARBES
EREHT AEMEES KT
HENEMIEE3.3(b) R -

HEZTRaRER  AQR
EBEFEEZHHARMES
We &5 7 1 70 B A 1A 4 B 4 2R

EMBREREER -

562,533 583,440

525,286 532,394
351,893 256,056
181,324 184,910
112,338 146,656
45,546 123,910
155,651 49,945

1,934,571 1,877,311

As at 31 December 2019, FVOCI are all denominated in
RMB.

BHE_Z-NAF+-A=+—HB K

AN
/D\}L/

BEAEAEHTAHEMEES W

S AARBLHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14 FVOCI AND LOANS TO AN FVOCI INVESTEE
COMPANY (conTinueD)

(b) LoanstoanFVOClinvestee company

Non-current IER B
Current Nk

NH{ERS UK m RIAR 5t

inoIKmAIRIRERTS

ENC )

(b) BILLAAMEEEABEHA
Hia RN BREDTE

=k
A

339,633 126,331
83,867 306,631

423,500 432,962

As at 31 December 2019, loans to an FVOCI investee
company, are unsecured, denominated in RMB, bearing
the benchmark lending rate published by the People's
Bank of China during the period. The loans are repayable
in 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the loans to an FVOCI investee
company, due to the short-term nature, the carrying
amounts approximate their fair values. The fair values
are also not significantly different from their carrying
amounts of non-current portion of loans to an FVOCI
investee company.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

RZZE-NF+-A=+—H" AN
ARBEFEBEHTARMES K
HOWIRE RN ERBEER - LA
R¥EFHE - P BEARBITRAMAE
HIEREERN KGR - ZFERAD
MR-_FT_TF - _T_—FR_-F

—FEE -

RZZE—NEFE+_A=+—H @R
BREEME  mAARBESAEEE
it AHMa e ENHIEE AR E
HEBREE D BEREBNENEARE
B MURARBEFEAEHT AR
iR & W MR B R 5] B R FERN B
HomAnBEERDSTEINEKNE
=8 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Consideration receivable for the Disposal i H & LA EEEE

B B RS R R Al 5t

15 HitfEUX IR T {18

of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets R E 2,790,875 4,611,513
Input VAT to be recovered #5 Uk (0] #E TE AR (E R 3,907,466 3,046,489
Prepayments for acquisition of WHEI % - RS R R

property, plant and equipment TEf A 3,867,505 2,437,302
Prepayments for acquisition of Wi SRR B9 TR < 5K E (B RE)

mining rights (Note) 1,301,664 1,330,744
Others HAtb 70,082 95,936

11,937,592 11,521,984
Note: 5T -

In January 2008 and December 2011, the Group entered into agreements with a
local government authority in the PRC to acquire the mining right of a coal mine
located in Inner Mongolia at a consideration of RMB5,782,130,000 (equivalents
to HK$6,599,087,000). Due to the local government's policy change on resources
pricing and the redefinition of resources scope, the Group entered into a
supplemental agreement with the local government in November 2019, revising
the consideration to RMB5,504,590,000 (equivalents to HK$6,145,049,000). As
at 31 December 2019, deposit amounting to RMB1,166,000,000 (equivalent to
HKS$1,301,664,000) had been paid by the Group. The remaining consideration
payable of RMB4,338,590,000 (equivalent to HK$4,843,385,000 (Note 44)) was
disclosed in the capital commitments and will be paid by instalment during the
validity period of the mining right starting from 2021.

RZZFENF—AR=-_ZE—F+=-8 &x&£E
BT RAEET IS AREBEARE
5,782,130,000 JL(#8 £ 72 6,599,087,000/%5 JT ) H
BURASHMN— RERENEERE - AR5 K
FHEREEBRNAERENZEERGE -
REBA-_T—NF+—ARET @R -
I B X B 38 & A A R #5,504,590,000 7T (HH &
726,145,049,00087C) - HE T —NF+=A
=+—0  FEEB I NEe AR 1,166,000,000
TE(HE R 1,301,664,000/870) » % FTREARE
4,338,590,000 7T (48 & A 4,843,385,000 7 7o (M 3%
G4))RBARFEERHE 88 T —FRNEE
AR EIS AT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

16 INVENTORIES

Coal R
Spare parts and consumables ERZEHMEFEm
Fuel oil VeV

16 &8

2,574,311 2,630,495
550,859 626,288

46,762 38,753

3,171,932 3,295,536

The cost of inventories recognised as operating expenses
amounted to HKS34,361,165,000 (2018: HKS40,562,857,000),
the majority of which are recognised in fuels.

The impairment charges related to inventories amounting
to HKS7,788,000 (2018: reversal HK$10,369,000) has been
recorded in operating expenses. The movement on the
provision for impairment of inventories of the Group is as
follows:

At 1 January W—A—H
Exchange differences ME N ERE

Impairment charge/(reversal)

to profit or loss KR (E
Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets HEILFAREEE
Utilisation (!

REREMG, (@)

34,361,165,0008 70( =& — )\ F :
40,562,857,00087C) + HF K& H
PARE R ERR o

87,788,000 L (=& — /\F :
[61#£10,369,0008 T ) N BBETFER
BEBRIXEREESZHAR - ~N&E
FEMREREZESOT -

108,511
(4,856)

(10,369)
(34,226)
(49,351)

At 31 December R+=ZBA=+—H

9,709

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 FEUWBREA R E thFEUXERIA

Trade receivables from contracts REEFE LR EBERNK
with customers
- Accounts receivable — FEURAR K 14,218,995 11,401,608
- Notes receivable —EREE 474,376 143,885
14,693,371 11,545,493
Less: loss allowance of trade receivables J& : FEULBR ZR (B 4 (78,187) (114,676)
Trade receivables - net EWERFOFE 14,615,184 11,430,817
Input VAT to be recovered and AU [B] HE TEAR [ A 2 TS A
prepayment for income tax TETRIA 1,894,205 2,433,934
Prepayments for coal and fuel B R K BRRTE S 5RI8 612,783 1,135,189
Consideration receivable for the Disposal i & L PEREEE
of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets fEWRE 1,674,525 1,125,358
Dividends receivable from JE I E At R B RO AR B
other companies 434,480 335,036
Deposits for environmental protection IRIRIEE 11,676 17,011
Loans to employees mEEEN 1,685 1,642
Others HAh 1,415,592 1,701,078
6,044,946 6,749,248
Less: loss allowance of other receivables J& @ EL{th FE UG R IE R (E XE M (265,112) (281,075)
20,395,018 17,898,990
All the trade and other receivables are denominated in RMB. FIT 7 e MR BR 3 I EL At FE IR IE G A A

RMEEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (conminuep)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date
is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0£30H
31 - 60 days 31%60H
Over 60 days 60 B2 F

17 FRURBRERIR H i FEUXFK]A

(&)

LERZEA IS ERERERAERE D
W -

6,426,672 6,453,797
604,875 583,248
7,661,824 4,508,448

14,693,371 11,545,493

As at 31 December 2019, included in trade receivables was an
amount of HK$593,814,000 (2018: HKS531,425,000) which is
due from fellow subsidiaries or associates and is aged within
one year.

The Group's trade debtors are mainly the local grid companies
arising from sale of thermal power and renewable energy
electricity. The Group generally grants about 60 days' credit
period to customers from the end of the month in which the
sales is made, except for the tariff premium for renewable
energy projects. The collection of such tariff premium is
subject to the allocation of funds by relevant government
authorities to local grid companies, which consequently takes
a relatively longer time for settlement.

Pursuant to CaiJian [2012] N0.102 Notice on the Interim
Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff
Premium of Renewable Energy (Al B AERLIREE M INFEEIE
S EREITPL) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance,
the National Development and Reform Commission and the
National Energy Administration in March 2012, standardised
procedures for the settlement of the tariff premium came into
force in 2012 and approvals for the inclusion in a national
register of qualified renewable energy projects (“Register
Inclusion Approval”) on a project by project basis are required
before the allocation of funds to the local grid companies.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H0  EHK
R BIE—ERURIRE XM B A B B
2N Al 778 593,814,000 L (=&
— J\%E : 531,425,000 7T ) © BR %
B—FNRN o
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la_ BTEFPH60 BHBRERE(E
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AMEREEPEMNBERME @ EHE
RS8R &K ©

1B & B BREB - BERNMNELZE
E&l%ﬁéﬁ%ﬁf\ T——_F=AH

WT%’*E’J(TﬁE EIRE BT hnE
EJJ B BEETIHANBN(TE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuen) 17 [EUXBRFRIRE{hfEUX FR]E

(€-))

As at 31 December 2019, certain operating projects of the RZZE-NF+ZA=+—8 ' K&

Group have obtained such Register Inclusion Approval for BAETELEACDISEEMALNE

the tariff premium and certain projects are in the process of ANERMiE - EBEHBHIEE RN H

applying. The ageing analysis of trade receivables over 60 FRAER o ZEHB60 B EWER

days excluding those tariff premium receivales is as follows: KT REBEERMM)NERER TN
T

Over 60 days BB 60 H 183,003 204,406
Movements on the provision for loss allowance of trade REBERRFBREEGNE SN
receivables of the Group are as follows: N

At 1 January W—A—H 114,676 159,973
(Reversal of)/provision for loss allowance JE{EZEM (#(E), s (29,931) 41,126
Written off 11 85 (5,295) (8,478)

Transfer out after disposal of subsidiaries H&ME A FEEH - (71,232)
Exchange differences N E%E (1,263) (6,713)

At 31 December KR+=—A=+—H 78,187 114,676
Movements on the provision for loss allowance of other 7 £ [ L i LK 2K TR R (B 2 A Y
receivables of the Group are as follows: (U

At 1 January W—A—H 281,075 438,596
(Reversal of)/provision for loss allowance JE{EZEH (#(E), (516) 11,828
Written off 11 55 (5,973) (12,780)

Transfer out after disposal of subsidiaries HEME A FEE L - (136,752)
Exchange differences MEHZERE CRY! (19,817)

At 31 December Rt+t=—A=+—8 265,112 281,075

Annual Report 2019 3% 249



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17

18

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuep)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note 3.1.2
provides for details about the calculation of the allowance.

Information about the expected credit loss of trade
receivables, other receivables and the Group's exposure to
credit risk can be found in Note 3.1.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of trade and other

receivables approximate their carrying amounts due to the
short-term nature.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

Dividends receivable from associates JrE IS Bt e 1 SE R B
Interests receivable from associates JrE LB o 1 HE R B
Others Hfb

17 FRURBRERIR H i FEUXFK]A

(&)

AEBRABTBYEREERIE IR
BOEFTERMEEEE  ImA
FEMSRFER = MIBHRERERE - B
At ERRNFBRENMES 1.2

BRAEWARTR - EAb WG R A%
EEERRNBMERABRAEEN
HRMIE3L -

RiE BHFEHNEREERRS
Bt R EYGRIRMNREE - N&E
I A A E A R E AT -

RZE—-hhE+=A=+—R8 R
BRHMYE - IR S E MR
HHANBEYSHAHRRE -

FEUXHSEE (B SR =R

Amounts due from associates are denominated in RMB,
unsecured, bearing an interest rate of 4.35% (2018:4.35%) per
annum and repayable on demand.

The Group does not provide any loss allowance for amounts
due from associates as none of them past due.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values approximate their
carrying amounts due to the short-term nature.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

JEWE L P ERBUARBIE B
B - HFFEK435%(ZF— N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

19 AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES 19 [ElxaE L ¥EMRIA

Current: BNER -
Interests receivable from joint ventures  JEW A E D EF B
Other amounts due from joint ventures — EfbEI A S>3 RIE

The amounts due from joint ventures are all denominated in R E B ERIBEHAAREE -
RMB, unsecured, bearing an interest rate of 4.35% (2018: Nil) BEET . BREFERLIR(ZF
per annum and repayable on demand. —N\F : BB RAREREE -

The Group does not provide any loss allowance for amounts AEFEWEF LS S B EFRIETIR
due from joint ventures as none of them past due. EREEE  AAEZEHEMESR

Hy o

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values approximate their RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H B8R
carrying amounts due to the short-term nature. BREME  BREEDLETIENR

AEEHOSNERAEE -

20 AMOUNTS DUE FROM OTHER RELATED 20 FEUHMBEASIZRIE
COMPANIES/LOANS TO A NON-CONTROLLING mIEEHIIRRE S
SHAREHOLDER
(a) Amounts due from other related companies (a) EUWHMERENTRIE

Non-trading related: EE FHEA -
Amounts due from JE U SE 12 1| A% BR IR

non-controlling shareholders
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries IS S NGIE Q]

Amounts due from ERARREBEFER
an FVOCl investee company et AHMERE W
R E A RIFIR
The amounts due from other related parties of the JFE Wi 7 £ (8] EL b 8 B 5 5R0B A R K
Group are unsecured, denominated in RMB, non-interest - UARKEGE - £EREAREK
bearing and repayable on demand. FrfEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1 B fs Sk 2R it 5

20 AMOUNTS DUE FROM OTHER RELATED

21

COMPANIES/LOANS TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (continuED)

(a) Amounts due from other related companies
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of the amounts
due from other related parties approximate their carrying
amounts due to the short-term nature.

(b) Loanstoanon-controlling shareholder

As at 31 December 2019, loans to a non-controlling
shareholder are unsecured, denominated in RMB, with
an interest rate of 4.9% (2018: 4.35%-4.9%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, the loans to a non-controlling
shareholder, due to the short-term nature, the carrying
amounts approximate their fair values. For the non-
current portion, the fair value are also not significantly
different from their carrying amounts.

PLEDGED/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2019, deposits amounting to
HKS$378,855,000 (2018: HKS206,051,000) had been pledged
to secure bank acceptance bills. Deposits amounting to
HKS$31,912,000 (2018: HKS5,546,000) were restricted for
environmental protection and industry transformation
compliance purpose with the approval of certain
governments. Deposits amounting to HKS$14,736,000 (2018:
HKS$2,684,000) were restricted by PRC court order.

As at 31 December 2019, the pledged/restricted bank deposits
are all denominated in RMB and the fair values approximate
their carrying amounts.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

20 FEUREthBAEABIFRIE,

mIEEEHIA% R & e
(a) FEWEHMhREE D BFIE (&)

RZE-—NF+_A=+—
B rBRBolnE BlH
A RENRAAEBELNS
REIREE -

(b) PIFFEFIBRERR

R—E—-—NF+_A=+—
H:RA—ZIEEHBREREER
BEIEE UARBIE-
LA4.9% (= ZF — J\F : 4.35%-
4.9% ) FEFIEKETE -

R-E-NFT-_A=1—
B BRERETEE - Wk
i B 3R & R BN EA B8 o0 BR T (B
WRAEEREREE- 3L
FEENEIEE D - HRAREEERR
HEBEMEARER -

21 R SIREIIRTER

R—ZZE—-—NWF+_A=+—8"
#5%1378,855,000%8 7t(= & — N\
F 1 206,051,000 T ) B 17 X &
EHEE - UEREBITEALER - A
#031,912,0008 (=T — [\ F:
5,546,000 77T ) B TF K48 & T UM #E
EWRFIERBREREXEASHR
BRI ZH - AE14,736,0008 (=
ZT—N\F : 2,684,0008 ) NFERT
B AR A S BRI o

RZE—-hEFE+-_A=1+—08" 2K
H ZREEITFEREIBAAREE ST
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 HERIAEEEY

Cash at bank and on hand IRTT N FER S 4,907,306 7,977,153
The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are denominated AEENRES MRS EEYUANTE
in the following currencies: KEETHE -

RMB AR 4,448,604 7,005,208
HK dollars BT 444,057 959,414
US dollars ETT 14,437 12,531
Others HAh 208 -

4,907,306 7,977,153

23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 RN
ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: LER - BBITRER

Balance at 1 January 2018 R=—ZF—-NF—H—H 4,810,444 22,341,736
Y 45 84
Sold shares held for share award scheme H &%) 2E@ =+ 21 AT A% D - (25,026)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZE—-NFE+=A
=+— B! 4,810,444 22,316,710

Balance at 1 January and RZZE—IF—A—BK
31 December 2019 +-—A=+—HB84Es 4,810,444 22,316,710
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B f $k 2R Bt 51

24 OTHER RESERVES

Nature of the component in other reserves are set out as
below:

(3a) General reserve comprises statutory surplus reserves,
enterprise expansion funds and reserve funds of
subsidiaries in the PRC. Pursuant to the provisions of
their respective Articles of Association, certain of the
Company's subsidiaries established in the PRC shall make
appropriation from their profit after tax to the general
reserves. The general reserves shall be used for making
up losses and capitalisation into capital of the respective
subsidiaries.

(b) Special reserves of the Group represent the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company and the nominal amount of the share
capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation for the purpose of the preparation of the
listing of the Company's shares on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

24 Hith{sh{E
H AR S R E R T -

(a)

—RFHEBLN P BB
RAMEAEBHRHEE  ©XH
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FEHABERMAMNMEKI - K
RAETRIEPERHEAE
BRRBRENBED BE— R
B —MRERHAERESH
B RRIMEREMEFTER -

AEENFHHEREARBE
BTRAEEEREREEA
NARDER BB LM
ETHEEEEBANNB R
AIRAE(E 2 AR EER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 OTHER RESERVES (conTinuep)

The movement of the capital reserve is as follows:

W—A—BEDEL
WAREETEERBHA
Efs AR DA BES

Opening balance at 1 January
Changes in fair values of FVOCI, net of tax

(fNRR%IR)
Release to profit or loss in the Disposal RHEEILAEEEER
of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets BRTIER
Change in ownership interests in MEBAREEEERES
a subsidiary without losing control (3 iR APl iE)
Acquisition of additional interest in WiE—FHNB AR
a subsidiary REOME R
Share of other equity movement Z Bt A ARR
of investments accounted for REMHMEREE
using the equity method EORVAEE]
Transfers (Note (c)) B (PR ()
Transfers upon utilisation (Note (d)) {5 PR R (B 5E (d))

B B RS R R Al 5t

24 Hithiii i@

EAREBHEBMT ;

Rt ZB=t—-BFEREER

Closing balance at 31 December

As at
i

571,500 448,997
277,781

(140,753)

295,792 41,577
46

(1,401) 1,443
6,303 215,500
(11,412) (273,091)

881,504 571,500

(c) Pursuant to certain regulations in the PRC governing
the mining industry, the Group is required to transfer
annually an amount being calculated at the tonne
volume of coal ore extracted that year, mulitplied by the
applicable rate. Pursuant to these relevant regulations,
the fund can only be used for future improvement of the
mining facilities and enhancement of industrial safety
measures. The fund is not available for distribution to

shareholders of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, HKS$11,412,000
(2018: HKS$273,091,000) had been utilised for
expenditures incurred in the qualified assets as stated
in Note ¢, and therefore the corresponding amount was
transferred from the capital reserve to retained earnings.

REPEEERBEXENAERRE
B AEEESFER -FX
BEHEERFBR REEF
A B A B 1R R B3R A S AR L R
ArHE - RERERE > &S
{2 7] F 1E B 12 20 & PR AR AR Bt K2
RAIEL2HEE - ZEE2 T
A RED KT ARRIR

BE_FT—NnFtZA=1—
HIFEE 11,412,200 0(=
T — J\4 :273,091,0008 7T )
ERARM Tt d B EERT
EEMRAY - At ABERIERE
BREXNFERERZREF
0 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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25 PERPETURAL CAPITAL SECURITIES HOLDERS

In December 2019, China Resources Power Investment
Company Limited (“CR Power Investment”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company,issued two batches of perpetual
medium-term notes amounting to RMB 5,000,000,000
(equivalent to HKS 5,581,750,000).

Key terms and conditions relating to the above equity
instruments are as follows:

- The principal on the notes has no fixed term for
repayment and CR Power Investment has the option to
call the notes. If CR Power Investment does not exercise
the call option, the notes will survive;

- The notes offer no redemption option to the investors
so that investors cannot require CR Power Investment to
redeem their notes at anytime;

- CR Power Investment has the option to defer interest
payment, except in the event of mandatory interest
payments, so that at each interest payment date, CR
Power Investment may choose to defer the interest
payment to the next payment date for the current period
as well as all interests and accreted interests already
deferred according to the related terms, without any
limitation with respect to the number of deferrals.
Mandatory interest payment events are limited to
dividend distributions to ordinary equity holders and
reductions of registered capital;

- The priority over repayment of these notes is
subordinated to CR Power Investment's general debts;

- The first two batches of perpetual medium-term note's
initial coupon rate is 4% and 3.93%. If the issuer chooses
not to redeem the perpetual notes, the coupon rate will
be adjusted to the current benchmark interest rate plus
initial spread and a solid 300 basis points every 3 years
starting from the 4th interest-bearing year.

The perpetual medium-term notes issued by CR Power
Investment are classified as equity instruments, and
recognized under equity in the consolidated balance sheet.
As at 31 December 2019, there was no interest on perpetual
medium-term notes that had been approved but not yet paid.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26 [EMBRFARE M FEN FRIA

Trade payables (i) JERTBRFX (i) 8,989,679 11,342,986
Other payables (ii) o A5 3R (i) 19,730,205 16,910,775

28,719,884 28,253,761

(i) Ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as (i) BREZHHEDENERKONE
follows: BOITAT -

0-30 days 0Z&30H 3,406,975 6,672,213
31-90 days 31E90H 2,077,496 2,253,431
Over 90 days 90 B 3,505,208 2,417,342

8,989,679 11,342,986

The average credit term for purchase of goods is 90 days. BEEYHFHEERAEH -
(ii) Other payables include: (i) HAEMAFIERE

Payables in respect of purchase of EHBEIRDEE

non-current assets B FE AN SRR 16,266,430 12,741,981
Accrued wages EEtE S 1,181,964 1,110,304

Other tax payables H e FIR 1,006,561 1,257,860
Interests payable JESFI B 490,069 565,574

Retirement and other long-term FEFTIR R K H Atb = HA

employee benefits obligations 8 TEFp A

(Note 38 (iii)) (B 5E 38(iii)) 85,095 23,514
Others Hth 700,086 1,211,542

19,730,205 16,910,775
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuep)

(ii) Other payablesinclude: (Continued)
Trade and other payables are unsecured, interest-free,

repayable on demand and mainly denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of trade and
other payables of the Group approximate their carrying
amounts due to the short-term nature.

27 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Non-Current JEED
Current ik

26

27

P BR R 2 HL{th fE {4 7R TR

(&)
(i) EfbEMKERRE : (&)
R A BR R % B A A SRR A

HH 2B RARBRKE
B W FEUAREINE -

7

NZF-AF+ZA=+—
A BRBEHMEE  A5E
A< BR 0 % L fth R OB D A
AREBENSNEKEE -

S{EL=1E

432,157 531,755
1,309,434 1,128,165

1,741,591 1,659,920

Majority of contract liabilities are from heat supplies customers
which are usually transferred into revenue within one year.

28 AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

As at 31 December 2019, except for deposits amounting to
HKS$370,024,000 (2018: HKS$1,243,319,000) which are market-
rate-interest bearing, the remaining carrying amounts due
to associates are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The amounts due to associates are mainly
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values approximate their
carrying amounts due to the short-term nature.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINT VENTURES 29 [ENBE{RERIA

As at 31 December 2019, except for deposits amounting to RZE-NAF+ZA=+—H" Kk

HK$28,064,000 (2018: HK$528,191,000) which are market- 12 % 28,064,000 8 L(=ZF— \F -

rate-interest bearing, the remaining carrying amounts due 528,191,000/ 7T ) L T H F K5 B

to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free, repayable on SN BRTENEECERAESER

demand and are denominated in RMB. B RARERFEE - ZFX
HEHAARETIE -

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values approximate their RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H @R

carrying amounts due to the short-term nature. BRHAME  AREBEHNEFRERE
B -

AMOUNTS DUE TO OTHER RELATED COMPANIES 30 FEfIHthBdEATIFRIA

Loans from an intermediate holding RE—HPEERAR

company EON=EAN 6,233,010 -
Amounts due to non-controlling JEST B B A B FEFE R AR R

shareholders IR 228,440 284,139
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries &R 5 M 8 2 BIEIE 24,444 7,568
Amounts due to intermediate JE A5 R AT PR AR A RIFRIA

holding company 261,646 603

6,747,540 292,310

Except for the loans from China Resources (Holdings) Company B EiER AT EEER)ARE R
Limited ("CRH"), an intermediate holding company, bearing an F[EBEF ) ERIEMEFHF]
weighted average interest rate of 3.01% per annum, amounts K301%:H B9 - FEEMEENF]
due to other related companies are unsecured, interest-free FIEAEEWE - B RERNENREE
and repayable on demand. They are mainly denominated in B o R ERIBETELUARETIE -
RMB.
As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of amounts due to R-FE—HE+-_A=+—8 '  aaRl
other related companies approximate their carrying amounts EBREME - ENEHMEEARTIE
due to the short-term nature. BN BELENEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 BORROWINGS 31 B

Non-current JEENHA
Bank loans RITER
- Secured — B 2,473,817 2,791,704
- Unsecured — I 55,349,382 58,104,169
Corporate bonds and notes (Note) NABEFRER (K 10,940,230 8,314,298
68,763,429 69,210,171
Current BN HEA
Bank loans IRITER
- Secured — B 522,282 532,414
- Unsecured — 16,067,177 21,226,102
Corporate bonds and notes (Note) REEHFRERE (M) 2,550,860 5,706,450
19,140,319 27,464,966
Total borrowings BEE#E 87,903,748 96,675,137
As at 31 December 2019, the bank loans of the Group were RZZBE-—NF+-_A=+—80 &%
secured by: B MIRITEFRATIIEB fEE#

Buildings and equipment (Note 6) BFEREE (HiEo) 2,744,296
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 BORROWINGS (conTinueD)

At 31 December 2019, the borrowings were repayable as
follows:

Within 1 year —F R

Between 1 and 2 years BiE—FETBARF
Between 2 and 5 years BBEMEETNBARF
Over 5 years HBidAF

31 8@

R_ZE-NEFE+-A=+—R EE
RN HEIEE

19,140,319 27,464,966
10,821,374 14,656,676
35,164,519 27,092,882
22,777,536 27,460,613

87,903,748 96,675,137

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of bank loans
approximate their carrying amounts.The fair values are based
on cash flows discounted using a rate based on benchmark
lending rate of the People's Bank of China or LIBOR rate.

The fair values of the corporate bonds at 31 December 2019
were HKS13,479,611,000. The fair value measurement with
a principal amount of RMB9,800,000,000 corporate bonds
are categorised within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy as
they are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange. The fair value
measurement with a principal amount of RMB2,285,000,000
corporate bonds are categorised within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy as they are private placements and are
calculated based on the discounted cash flows of the principal
and interest payments.

RZE—NF+-_A=+—8 - 17
EXmAnBEEREDEMRES - 28
BEREEFERATEHARBITEREE
FELBAREHFBMENRERE
FTE o

NAEFR T NF+_A=+—
BE A REEAEL3,479,611,0008
Lo Ae A AR 9800,000,0005T
MARIEFNARLEBEFESBEAR
AEBEEANE—&  FERAEBEA
RIEH IR EEESFR G ET o &
& A ANRM2,285,000,000 70 A A
BFENAABEFEDEARAALEE
ERNE=H RAKEBERARES
BFARE @ WiZAE RF B
AR RATHE o

Annual Report 2019 £k

261



262

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 BORROWINGS (continueD) 31 8@

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in BEEMRAENN TERSIE
the following currencies:

RMB AR 68,417,712 75,416,716
HK dollar BT 17,887,807 20,304,928
GBP HEE 1,532,775 -

EUR BT 12,659 13,544
Us dollar ETT 52,795 939,949

87,903,748 96,675,137

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had the following RZEBE—NF+-_A=+—8 &%
undrawn borrowing facilities: BARBAMMERBENT

Expiring within one year —FREIE 62,017,829 42,041,477
Expiring beyond one year —F &I NI EREION 119,021,968

ICENEEMEYE 161,063,445

During the year ended 31 December 2019, bank borrowings BE-_ZT-—NLF+A=1+—HLHF
bear average interest rate at 4.39% (2018: 4.66%)per annum. B RITEENFHFENEL4IVE

TE-)\F 466F)FTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 BORROWINGS (conTinueD)

Notes:

(1)

In January 2010, CR Power Investment issued notes with a principal amount
of RMB1,785,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,992,685,000), bearing an interest
rate 4.70% per annum and will mature in January 2020 (“Tranche 1) and
RMB500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$558,175,000) bearing an interest rate
4.95% and will mature in January 2020 (“Tranche 11") respectively. In January
2020, both Tranche I and Tranche Il were repaid.

In June 2016, CR Power Investment issued corporate bonds with a principal
amount of RMB5,000,000,000 (equivalent to HKS$5,581,750,000), bearing an
interest rate of 3.49% per annum and will mature in June 2023 ("Bonds 1").
The Bonds | were listed Shanghai Stock Exchange.

At the end of the fifth year from the issue of Bond I, CR Power Investment has
the right to adjust the coupon rate ("New Coupon rate") and holders of Bond
| have the right to sell the Bond | held by them, in whole or partially, to CR
Power Investment at a consideration equivalent to the face value of the Bond
| ' within 5 business days after the announcement of the New Coupon Rate.

In March 2019, CR Power Investment issued corporate bonds with a principal
amount of RMB3,000,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,349,050,000), bearing an
interest rate of 3.65% per annum and will mature in March 2022 (“Bonds 1l").
The Bonds Il were listed Shanghai Stock Exchange.

In August 2019, CR Power Investment issued corporate bonds with a principal
amount of RMB1,800,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,009,430,000), bearing
an interest rate of 3.40% per annum and will mature in August 2022 ("Bonds
I11"). The Bonds Il were listed Shanghai Stock Exchange.

31

EE(.“E)
FieE -
(1) RZE-—ZTF—F EHEENREAZTR

(3)

i%’ﬁﬁ)\ﬁﬂ%nssooooooﬁ(*ﬁéﬁﬁé
1,992,685,0007% 7T ) B Z 4 - 1L F FI X
4.70% 5 B Iﬁﬁﬁ_f_gifﬂiu,ﬁﬂ
(f%fﬁtn&/\Eﬁzsoo,ooo,oooﬂm
B 7 558,175,000/ ) + IEFFI L 4.95%

SRR AR T _TF— )El JHﬂ(F%:
) - RZZBZZF—F F-HRKE
?H:i’]Eféﬁa

}7\\*7 NENA EHENREHEITA

+ % A& AR %5,000,000,000 T4 & B
5,581,750,000/%71)9’127%% R F F
KI3L9% BTN —_E-=F A% H
(MM&EFH1]) - BHFIR LBEHFRHH LT -

RESFIFTEAFAFR  EHENEKE
FRAEREEANX(THEEAEX]) - ME
FIFAANBRERAMHAEE AN TR AES
%EW RSN ESF EENRERER

BENRAHERSEHFAND LD EF
| o
—NFE=A4" iﬂﬁjﬂx§§§ﬁ$

% ¥ A A R %3,000,000,000 7L (H &
3,349,050,000 8 7L ) M)A BIES - :‘rﬁiﬂ
K3 65% s BN T —_F=A5H
([EHN]) - BHEIR LEEBELAR ST L
e

RZE—NENA  EFENEEETAE
% A& A K% 1,800,000,000 T4 & R
2,009,430,000 8 70) MR RIES « iREF
K3 40%FH BT R - - —F N\ AEH
(TMEH]) - EBHINR EBESHRZ S L

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32 RERIEIYMER T B

Financial assets at amortised cost b =)o =)
Loans to an associate mEECEER 11(b) 32,821 33,137
Loans to joint ventures mMAEETEER 12(b) 415,059 45,652
Loans to a non-controlling shareholder A 3EFERR AR R E 7K 20(b) 13,954 50,787
Loans to an FVOCI investee company MU AREBEFTER
FEETAEMESE
W B IIEE
ANGI=E-N 14(b) 423,500 432,962
Amounts due from associates R LS 5 1 SE SR TB 18 27,348 32,637
Amounts due from joint ventures FEI A & HEFRIB 19 21,141 42,473
Amounts due from other e EL M B8 A B RUR
related companies 20(a) 89,493 66,063
Trade and other receivables JFEE UK B R % L i UK
excluding input VAT and prepayments R (HEIRIGER
KNI RIBRRSN) 17,888,030 14,329,867
Cash and cash equivalents, and Re MRS FEMNA
pledged/restricted bank deposits RBEEA,ZR
RITEK 21,22 5,332,809 8,191,434
Financial assets at fair value KA IEBEFTER
FVOC WAREBEGTEREE
T AHAERE W 14(a) 1,934,571 1,877,311

26,178,726 25,102,323

Financial liabilities REEAATTEN

at amortised cost t@mas
Borrowings BE 31 87,903,748 96,675,137
Trade and other payables excluding  FE{FBRFX N EAth fE 1S

non-financial liabilities FEGEEmAE

BRAN) 26,446,264 25,843,365

Amounts due to associates JE A B 5 1D SE SR TR 28 468,532 1,370,208
Amounts due to joint ventures BT & & HERIB 29 140,549 648,770
Amounts due to other related FET B R A R RUR

companies 30 6,747,540 292,310
Lease liabilities ME&E 8 1,037,714 -

WAy 124,829,790
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33 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX

LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
- To be recovered after more than

EXETRIAEE -
— #1218 A 2 &4

B B RS R R Al 5t

33 IRETHIRE E RN IR

T -

12 months 502,687 645,734
- To be recovered within 12 months — ¥R 121E A AU [El 241,703 236,448
744,390 882,182
Deferred tax liabilities: RIEFHIAEE -

- To be settled after more than —BR1I2(EA 2. &8
12 months (433,684) (731,061)
- To be settled within 12 months —BR1I2EANEE (47,249) (47,456)
(480,933) (778,517)

Deferred tax assets - net

IEER R E R

263,457 103,665

The gross movement on the deferred income tax is as follows:

At 1 January

Exchange differences

Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets

Disposal of other subsidiaries

Credited to profit or loss (Note 40)

Charged to other comprehensive
income (Note 40)

R—A—H

P R
HELAREEE

& A BT A B
RBmRET A (HEE40)

REAMERE Wik (MisEs0)

BEFTSTHAR B V= eI T ¢

103,665 (1,629,574)
(8,751) (9,443)
- 1,703,984

— (9,256)
178,739 150,835
(10,196) (102,881)

At 31 December

Rt=ZRA=+—H

263,457 103,665
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33 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX 33 RIETHIAE ERIEIETH IR

LIABILITIES (continuen) 1= = {0))

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during UTNERFRREMSHEERBEDN
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ) WEG LR —HEREERA
balances within the same tax jurisdictions, are as follows: B 4B ERIKEE -

Asat 1 January 2018 W-E-N\E-F-7 9361 BUL 14T 257% N )
Exchange differences EXEE (9,961) (784) (5,323) (9,171) - (20135 (45,374)
Disposal of Shanxi Coal HELRREEE
Mining Assets - - - - - (59,891) (59,891)
Disposal of ather subsidiaries HEEHHELN - - - - - (9,256) (9,256)
(Charged)/credited to WMERE(HR)/
profit or loss A (43,345) (3,674) (66,037) (16,367) - 216,350 86,327
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-NE
TZA=1-H 166,035 28,643 113,287 190,256 - 399,741 897,962
Exchange differences EiZE (18,458)
Credited/(charged) to MESE(IR)/
profit or loss A (61,702)
(redited to other N
comprehensive income Wzt A 21,589
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-nE
+ZA=1-8 189,622 104,555 186,141 314,231 845,391
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES (conTinuep)

33 JIEETHIE
BiEm

B B RS R R Al 5t

a
oo
—
b}
Al
1

A& E RIENE T 1A

Asat1January 2018 RZB-N§
-f-A (177868)  (1569,195)  (55476)  (159,614) (4222)  (71888)  (155.285)  (344403)  (17,799) (2.555,730)
Exchange differences ERZER 6,951 - - - 140 - 8,475 19,057 1,308 35,931
Disposal of Shanxi Coal HELREREE
Mining Assets - 1,528,702 7,366 81,379 - - 146,428 - - 1,763,875
(redited/(charged) to RMEEBHA/
profit or loss (30k) 31,775 40,493 4,750 9,953 - 2,630 162 (3,220) (22,035) 64,508
Charged to other REMEANE
comprehensive income Bl - - - - (102,881) - - - - (102,881)
As at 31 December 2018 WZE-N%
+-A=+-A (139,122) - (43360)  (68.282)  (106963)  (69,258) (2200 (38566)  (38526)  (194,297)
Exchange differences ERZER 3,411 1312 9,707
(redited/(charged) to RMEEBHA/
profit or loss (%) 212,097 (26,430) 240,441
Charged to other REMEANE
comprehensive income Bl (37,785) (37,785)
As at 31 December 2019 WZE-n%
TZA=1-H (105,137) (40,024) (54,517) (142,249) (113,058) (63,644) (581,934)

Notes:

(if)

(iii)

Others represent mainly deductible tax losses, deferred heat supply income
and depreciation differences generated from commissioning test.

Pursuant to certain regulations of the mining industry in the PRC, the Group
is required to transfer an amount to a specific reserve and such fund is
not available for distribution to shareholders (see Note 24(c) for details).
Such amounts are deductible for tax purposes when they set aside but are
expensed for accounting purposes only when they are utilised. Therefore,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for such temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the
extent that the realization of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not recognise
deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$18,025,087,000
(2018: HKS17,676,949,000) and deductible temporary differences
amounting to HK$5,591,433,000 (2018: HK$3,349,469,000). Included in
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2019 are losses of approximately
HK$16,805,610,000 (2018: HKS$15,635,860,000) that will expire within 5
years from the year of origination, in or before 2024.

(iii)

Hith T 2R EAMHENREEIE - REHR
WA TR ELEMITEER -

RE R ERERITEE S TAMAR K

SEAEBR-SFEEETE pﬁfﬁ HEZ
EE2 AN }E%Hxﬁ(?lﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁmﬁ
24(c)) RN FEE AT - BEE
BARIIX - Bt ARETHEZEER
EIEFIAALE -

ﬁhﬁﬁ fﬁﬁéﬂﬁ‘ﬂﬂlﬁﬁﬁé & T A
. HE 2 DA B IR AE I R AE A% B K 2R

MERFEMNEHE AR - EA:%fn
FE+-_A=+—HB BAEELTERA
#018,025,087,0007% 7T & i 7% &5 B(=
T — \4F : 17,676,949,00078 7T ) & AH
5,591,433,000 % T A AT HR B B =58 ( =
= — \4F : 3,349,469,000 % 70 ) HE R IE AT
MEHEE - RZT—hEFE+_A=+—
A ABERHEEBEBEEESRMEENF
BREAAFRRN T - MF k2 A2
H) /&5 18 49 16,805,610,000 % T( = Z — )\
£ :15,635,860,000#7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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33 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX 33 IRETHIAE ERIELETHIA

LIABILITIES (conTinuep)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") Law of PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned subsidiaries in the PRC with effect from 1
January 2008 onwards. The directors of the Company consider
that the Group has sufficient funds in overseas companies
and therefore the earnings retained by the subsidiaries in the
PRC are expected to be reinvested in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised withholding
tax in respect of the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries in the PRC amounting to HK$34,678,155,000
(2018: HKS$30,667,189,000) for the years from 2008 to 2019.

BiEm@m

BEPBRCEMRSH ( [BEME
Bl)ZX B-_ZTTNE—HF—H
B MPENBRAFRNMFIEME
KE IR B EBMIEINR - A RAEE
ERB AEERBINRREAR
TEE Bl PBEMNBARRE
MEBFEBHRAEERETKTE -
RZEBEENFEZE_FT—NF &
METHEHBRARANKRELZEF
34,678,155,000/87C (ZZE— N\F :
30,667,189,0008 L) MRIELIRIEA
afE-

34 DEFERRED INCOME 34 WIEUX A
Deferred income mainly represents subsidies granted by FEEU A E E45 5 T B BIEAT S0P
certain PRC governmental departments related to assets. As MTYTWHEEEMRBANRBL  RZF
at 31 December 2019, government grants of HK$73,622,000 —NF+ZA=+—H 73,622,000
(31 December 2018: HK$61,748,000) was amortised to the BT ZE—-—N\F+-_A=+—8H:
consolidated income statement (Note 35). 61,748,000 8 0) AT B E B & OF

WP EESH (MIFE35) ©
35 OTHER INCOME 35 Hitlx A

Sales of scrap materials and by-product  $HEREE K& BIE @ 993,591 757,782

Government grant (Note) BT Bh (B 5E) 674,894 755,495

Interest income FBUA 367,750 414,113

Service income RS B A 280,597 334,732

Dividend income from FVOCI REUAREBETE

investee companies BEEG AEMERS
W IR E A A8

A& UL A 386,627 212,993

Others HAh 147,551 138,225

2,851,010 2,613,340
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 OTHER INCOME (conTinueD)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group received grants from certain
PRC governmental departments to compensate high operating costs amounting
to HK$10,336,000 (2018: HKS$67,072,000). There were no ongoing obligations or
conditions attached with these grants and, therefore, the Group recognised the
grants as income upon receipt.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group received grants amounting
to HK$57,148,000 (2018: HK$S161,072,000) from the PRC government, which were
to encourage certain PRC subsidiaries to close down the coal mines as a result of
the China's supply-side reform. The grants were used for employee temination
compensation and fully paid in 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group received grants of
HKS$414,823,000 (2018: HK$306,989,000), from the PRC government, for
encouraging certain PRC subsidiaries to increase supply of electricity, and grants for
encouraging the development of environmental friendly electricity generation of
HK$118,965,000 (2018: HKS$158,614,000). There were no ongoing obligations or
conditions attached to these grants and, therefore, the Group recognised the grants
as income upon receipt.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the government grants relating to assets
are credited to other income amounting to HK$73,622,000 (2018: HKS$61,748,000)
(Note 34).

36 OTHER GAINS - NET

Net foreign exchange gains SN W 2 F 5B
Gains/(losses) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gains on disposal of right-of-use

Wk, (E518)

assets/prepaid lease payments = O
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HENB R RN K
Gains on disposal of associates HERE QR MK
Other losses HEE

HEME - BB MR

B B RS R R Al 5t

35 Eﬂilllf(i\(...a

Lo

HE-_ZT-hEF+-_A=+—HLEE £4&H
W B & T o B BT B P9 & 1 18 58 & B AN 3 N
WA EL 0 ©£58/510,336,00008 T(ZZE— N\
F:67,072,000870) © % E MBI EARZRA

M

Py B AR SR - B - AR E R R
BN
RBE_T-NFH+_A=+t—"HILFE K&

lH&leEPIESZW?*H&ZE’JﬁEES7 148,000 7L(=
ZT— )\ 161,072,000 70) © BREEE T+
IMT%’A?ELF%EPIMMEIJEA@F% S - ZE
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% BEEME  TER T NFEK
Bt o

REBEE-T—AF+_A=+—HLEFEE" &
& B R R B IR B e 4 Bl 414,823, oooﬁén:
(== — )\ : 306,989,000 7T) Jh AR EE =
TR B M B A B A (R E = N A K BB A 23R (R
% EIEE % A6118,965,0008 T(—ZF — \4F :
158,614,000 7T) © 5% 55 Bh I 48 K 2 K RO BT 75
ifﬁi1%1¢~¢t REBMAWZE R A
)\a

REBEZEZZE-AF+=ZA=1+—RHLLFE A
ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂzAEﬁﬁ?*ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%?S 622,000 7T
(ZZ—)\4 : 61,748,000 7C) (KisE34) °

36 Hithill{S —F2a

(&)

HEEREEE FANEES

69,775 60,880

621 (74,281)
17,024 67,129
41,614 102,475
33,054 -
(19,298) (64,762)

142,790 91,441
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 37 [EEMEnIF>

Wages, salaries and bonus TE  FHakies 4,323,449 5,057,832
Pension costs - retirement benefit IRRR AR — R FIETE

schemes (Note 38 (i) & (ii)) (Pt =E 38(i) & (i) 726,724 1,034,681
Termination benefit costs (Note 38 (iii)) %I IEEFE A

(Pt 3 38(iii)) 139,866 (24,283)

5,190,039 6,068,230
(i) Five highest paid individuals (i) EEBEeFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the FR AEEREZSFHHA
highest in the Group for the year include two (2018: TEEMB(ZZE-NF: =
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the 2 )EE (M FES2 BT AT I B
analysis shown in Note 52. The emoluments paid to the EHEM) - FAZNTHT =4
remaining three (2018: two) individuals during the year —E-N\F:WB)ATHEH
are as follows. Ban T -

Salaries and other benefits Fe hEMER
Bonus TEAL
Post-employment benefits BEER 1212 A
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37 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (conminuep)

(i)

38 RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

Emoluments of these three (2018: two) individuals are
within the following bands:

Emolument bands & E
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 8T
4,000,000 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 78 TE
4,500,000 7T
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 8 t&

5,000,000 7T

(i)

B B RS R R Al 5t

37 {E&f&ml 3% @

AERSHMA L &)

WEA(ZT—\F: mA)A
TEHMN T THIHE :

Number of individuals

A

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES

Retirement benefit schemes -

RIKEAGTE —FE (i)
Hong Kong (i)

Retirement benefit schemes - PRC (i) RKREANET S — P E (i)
Termination benefit (iii) =P (i)

38 RiMEZH il RHEA & Si&Eihl

at &l

2,484 2,923
724,240 1,031,758
139,866 (24,283)

866,590 1,010,398

Hong Kong

The Group operates various defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all Hong
Kong employees.The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The amount of contributions is
based on a specified percentage of the basic salary of
employees and any forfeited contributions in respect of
unvested benefits of staff leavers are used to reduce the
Group's contributions.

ol

AEERBZHKE SRR
B2 8E 7 FRHFERIRTE -
ZEMECEERAEEEE
THERE THBELERE ZHE
TRHB - HAEDREEEE
A ZBEANLE M
MBBETEEZAE ZEMHRK
AR AR AR E A SR 2 3K o
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38 RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES (continueD)

(i)

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the respective local government in the PRC. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is
to make the specified contributions.

In 2019, the Group set up a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualified employees
("Corporate Annuity Plan"). They usual need to service
over one year in the Group to be qualified. The Group
contribute 5% of the salary of participating employee to
the scheme each year. The total contribution obligation
of the Group during the year were HK$200,191,000
(2018: HK$333,082,000).

The contribution to above schemes were HK$785,859,000
during the year (2018: HK$1,073,222,000). The amounts
of above retirement charged to the consolidated income
statement and capitalised in the construction-in-progress
are HKS724,240,000 (2018: HKS$S1,031,758,000) and
HKS$61,619,000 (2018: HKS41,464,000), respectively.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

38 RimRH il REA{E Si&E il

ot 8l

(ii)

1 El

AEBENTRESRATEE
T RFEENBEREER
REFFH B WK E - NEEZE
AEFEEL SR ANKER
D ERASZ A REF - KK E
Lz SRt ElMME— R IR FL

BEE K -

RZE—NF AEBEB AR
EAEREER I THBHERR
Ketgl(ltxEFearaEll)e
BE—MEEAEBEREER
—FHEEEBER - AEE
EFA2HEFEMNE TEH
HEREHF LS9 HE R K
SERFANERETEEL
200,191,000 L (=& — N\
£ 1 333,082,000/87T)

F RN | E ot E OE R
785,859,000/% (= & — N
% :1,073,222,000 T ) ok
R KEF BN A FREER
FHBREERMEAERETRED
% % D Bl A724,240,00078 7T
(== — U :1,031,758,000
B 70) 261,619,000 T(ZF
—)\4F : 41,464,000767T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

38 RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES (continuep)

(iii) Termination benefit

(a)

For certain selected employees of China Resources
Power Hunan Liyujiang Co., Ltd., Shenyang Power
Company, and Hunan China Resources Coal Mining
Company Limited employed by the vendors of
the businesses as at respective acquisition dates
(the "Pre-acquisition Employees"), the Group has
offered early retirement packages to those who met
certain specified criteria and accepted voluntary
redundancy. Such arrangement required specific
approval granted by management of the Group. The
Group is obliged to pay such termination benefits
to those early retired employees (i.e. retired before
their statutory retirement age), who had been
working for more than 30 years or in accordance
with the respective entities' early retirement policy.
These early retired employees are entitled to certain
monthly benefits up to their statutory retirement
age.

These obligations were provided for by the Group
at the present value of the total expected benefit
payments. Where the obligation does not fall due
within twelve months, the obligation payable has
been discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects
management's current market assessment of
the time value of money and risk specific to the
obligation (the discount rate was determined with
reference to market yields at the balance sheet date
on treasury bonds in the PRC). The amount of these
obligations charged to the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2019 is
HKS$77,821,000 (2018: HK$62,149,000).

38 RIMEZH {ill R & Si&Eihl

af &l

(i) BLEZEEF

(a)

R B RIS B B X
SEHEENHEERER
TERRRA] BEENR
AR ERRERES
BR A A BUE B (T W
FIERDME  AEER
HeaETHREER AR
& S2ER R W AR B 12
HIRPRAFS - BER
BHARASEEREEAR
B - AEEE & ERZ
FRPENEE (AINAE
ﬁ%iwwEWXI%t
B=THFEIRBEAR
E%?Wﬂi%ﬂ%ﬂ%)
XK IEZEREM - RF
BRREEMNEERSFHNX
ERREFREFRETEAR
RN

ZEETHRAEB LA
& F 1+ 3k 42 %8 /9 38 (B &t
e MBBEXTLER
+—@AREIE EM
REEEA BB RF
BhIR - ZHERMEEE
MEBEHEEENE W
EERNETRKRETHE
AT IG R - BRIR R 2R
TEEBEFREEABR
ARmEREERmEE -
w(-.ru+)\@ g_j—bi
+-A=+t—"HIFEXN
EHBERNETESES
77,821,000t (=ZF— N\
F : 62,149,000787T) ©
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38 RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES (continueD)

(iii) Termination benefit (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of these termination benefit payable in current
and non-current portion are approximately
HK$15,738,000 (2018: HK$12,113,000) and
HKS67,867,000 (2018: HKS$56,729,000),
respectively.

In 2019 and 2018, certain coal mining entities
closed down coal mines and offered a termination
benefit package to their employees. These
obligations were provided for by the Group at
the present value of the total expected benefit
payments. Where the obligation does not fall due
within twelve months, the obligation payable
has been discounted using a pre-tax rate that
reflects management's current market assessment
of the time value of money and risk specific to
the obligation (the discount rate was determined
with reference to market yields at the balance
sheet date on treasury bonds in the PRC). Based on
latest estimation of propable obligations payout,
HKS62,045,000 was reversed in 2019 (2018:
expense of HK$86,432,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of these termination benefit payable in current
and non-current portion are approximately
HKS$69,357,000 (2018:HKS$11,401,000) and
HKS$47,135,000 (2018: Nil), respectively.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

38 RiMRH

ot 8l

fi = HA {8 S 1& il

(i) RLULEZEER (&

(a)

15,738,000 c(=ZE— N\
% 112,113,000 7T ) &
67,867,000 L(—Z— N
£ 156,729,000/ 7T) °

—NERZE-N
¢ ?@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ
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BRIEZEBNEE -5
ﬁaﬁ$$ﬁlkﬁ%h
A KA B RERTE
fWAEBEEL RN+ =
AREH - ENEERA
FRAILAT M RRBEIR - ZIH XK
IR E TR E 3 WA (B
B REBEEOEERR
EITRE RTTISAE - B
B2 R0 BB E SR
BEEABRANTSKE
KMEE - RIEFHA TR
ENHO TG ZF
EEﬁZO%OOM%EEﬁA
“E-NFER(ZE—
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39 FINANCE COSTS

Interests on bank and other borrowings

Interests on corporate bonds and notes
Interests on loans from related parties
Interests on lease liabilities

Others

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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39 Hl#s&EH

RITREABEE R
INGIIEC I ES: Sl
AR 7 & RN 2
HEREFE

Hith

I CI

5

Less: Interests capitalised in property,
plant and equipment (Note 6)

W RE - BE K
RFEE T E
(fizE6)

3,727,120 4,211,098
558,382 785,349
75,196 17,091
18,801 -
89,896 106,769
4,469,395 5,120,307
(682,884) (805,622)

3,786,511 4,314,685

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on
funds borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining
qualifying assets and on the general borrowing pool which
are calculated by applying an average capitalisation rate of
4.36% (2018: 4.58%) per annum to expenditures incurred on

qualifying assets.

40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax
- PRCincome tax
Deferred income tax (Note 33)

FRAEERNEMEBEERANRR A
SEEREEMEBEESREAEER
& WIRBFFHIERMEFIE4.36%
—E—)\F : 458%)ifELEEBRE
EEANRY -

40 PhiStH&H

= MRS
—PEEEMEHR

EXEPTIS B (K FE33)

2,437,137
(150,835)

2,490,361
(178,739)

2,311,622 2,286,302
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40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueD)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no taxable profit in Hong Kong or incurred tax
losses for both years.

PRC enterprise income tax has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant
tax rates applicable to certain subsidiaries in the PRC.

Pursuant to CaiShui [2012] No. 10 Notice on the Execution
of the Catalogue of Public Infrastructure Projects Entitled for
Preferential Tax Treatment, certain wind power projects of the
Group, which were set up after 1 January 2008, are entitled
to a tax holiday of a three-year full exemption, followed
by a three-year 50% exemption of enterprise income tax,
commencing from their first turnover-making year.

Pursuant to CaiShui [2011] No. 58 Notice on Tax Policy
Issues concerning Further Implementing the Western China
Development Strategy, certain entities of the Company's PRC
subsidiaries, which are located in the western regions of
the PRC, are entitled to a tax holiday of a two-year full PRC
enterprise income tax exemption, followed by a three-year
50% exemption commencing from their first year of reporting
turnover and can enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
after the tax holiday.

In addition, certain of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are
entitled to certain tax credit ("Tax Credit") against their
assessable EIT, which is calculated as 10% of the current year's
purchases and use of specific environmental friendly, water
and energy-saving, safety-enhanced equipment in the Group's
electricity generation business. The portion of Tax Credit that
has not been utilised in the current period can be carried
forward for future tax credit over a period of not more than
five years.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

40 FhfSiH&EH @
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B¥MEHERESEEMENR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continue) 40 FhiSiHEH@m
The reconciliation of the effective income tax rate from the ERFERMEREETFRAEHRERERN
statutory income tax rate is as follows: AR -

Profit before income tax B BT 1S R B AR 9,653,016 7,311,175

Calculated at a tax rate of 25% ERE25%

(2018: 25%) ZE-)N\F : 25%)5TE 2,413,254 1,827,794
Tax exemptions and concessions FEIME A RER M FIE

rates granted to PRC e K ER

subsidiaries (644,884) (411,917)
Other tax credit HMfIEEE (20,886) (37,764)
Income not subject to tax BABBAURA (325,547) (122,642)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7~ A] 057 KI5 2 446,778 195,914
Unrecognised deductible AER R E =58

temporary differences 453,653 281,978
Unrecognised tax losses RIERTIBE R 157,663 682,552
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax 1 @1 R FEREFIE

losses and temporary differences BELERERE (175,958) (184,021)
Withholding tax on the earnings remitted/ & THEB A RIELH

anticipated to be remitted by TEHAASFE KA B A TEH L

certain subsidiaries 64,355 54,408
Others HAth (56,806) -

2,311,622 2,286,302

Tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%) is adopted for the taxation HEHERAB2%(ZT— )\F:
reconciliation as such tax rate is applicable to most of the 25%)MEFHE RARFALREE
Group's operations in the PRC for the year. REBD P RFEBIFERAZRE o
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40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuep) 40 FfSiHE&R @
The tax charge relating to other comprehensive income is as BRAEMEAEREMBREST BT
follows:

Fairvalue changes of VOOl AR A BE:E
BEHF ALY

FalEh
Ra &R
DRBEE 40,786 (10,196) 30,590 411,525 (102,881) 308,644
41 EARNINGS PER SHARE 41 SiREI
(a) Basic (a) EXR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the EREXRBITEAANRES
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the AEMEFEBRAFARND BITE
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BRAOMEFHE(RAREE
during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by I 5 1E B 17 IR 19 1Y 3 38 A% B A0
the Company and held as treasury shares (Note 23). (FF3E23))5t&E -

Profit attributable to owners of AR R AR F)E
the Company (HK$'000) (F%7T) 6,590,345 3,950,435

Weighted average number of ordinary 277 & @ A% &9 hikE

shares in issue (thousands) FHE(TR) 4,810,444 4,780,876

(b) Diluted (b) #58
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting EREERFREME TEE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares BELTERERRE  FEBEZ
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive BT INE BAR & h ik T 15 8
potential ordinary shares. The Group has no such FFTE-R_FE-—NALEFE+A
potential diluted earning instrument as of 31 December =+t—H AEEVEF@E
2019 (2018: Nil). E#ERMNTAE(ZT—N\F:

E:: I
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42 DIVIDENDS

Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:

Final dividend for 2018 of HK$0.203
(2018: for 2017 of HKS0.75) per share
on 4,810,444,000
(2018: 4,773,905,000) shares

Interim dividend for 2019 of HK$0.2
(2018: HK$0.125) per share on
4,810,444,000
(2018: 4,779,120,000) shares

Dividend proposed after the end
of the reporting year:

Proposed final dividend for 2019
of HK$0.348 (2018: HK$0.203)
per share(Note(i))

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

FRHER

D3 4,810,444,000 1%

42 IR2

DIREBRE.

(ZZ—)\# : 4,773,905,000 %)
BA T =B N\ERRKE
BR0.203BL(ZF—N\F :

—+FE0.7557T) 976,520 3,580,429
.54 4,810,444,000 fi%
(ZZ— )\ : 4,779,120,000 f%)
Btr St =T NFEPHRES
FR0.27B7T
(ZZ—N\F : 0.125%87T) 962,089 597,390
1,938,609 4,177,819

E=

¥

BR=F—

R

EEERERTRNKS

NERBRE
FA%0.34878 7T
(ZZ— N\ : 0.203/F7C)
(A0

1,674,034 976,520

(i) A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 (i)
December 2019 of HKS$0.348 per share, amounting to a
total dividend of HKS$1,674,034,000 is to be proposed
at the annual general meeting on 9 June 2020. The
consolidated financial statements do not reflect this

dividend payable.

—nLE + = A
%

=+ —H JLEJ* ") K HA A
BFNK0.348F L % B 4
1,674,034, oooﬁ%xHﬂjA_?_
TEXNANBHBRRABFARS
FEZER - aHPBHRERL
E|RMZENRE -

NyAS
X N
& %
ITON
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BT RS R 51

43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a)

Cash generated from operations

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment charges
Exchange gains (Note 36)
Interest expense (Note 39)
Interest income (Note 35)
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Dividends income from FVOCI
investee companies (Note 35)

(Gains)/losses on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment (Note 36)

Gains on disposal of right-of-use
assets/prepaid lease
payments (Note 36)

(Gains)/losses on disposal
of subsidiaries (Note 36)

Gains on disposal of associates
(Note 36)

Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade

and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade
and other payables

Increase/(decrease) in retirement
and other long-term
employee benefits obligations

Cash generated from operations

IreE N i
VZREREES

R FTSH AT A

B

43 IHEREER
(a) REEHELWES

PE 3 Uk 25 (Bt EE 36)
8 (F13E39)
FIE WA (FIFE35)
JE(RE S DL
JEIhEEEER
BUAREEFERE
T AHAbER
W E N A
Ax BUL A (FI5E35)
HEME  BEMEEDN
(Wz),/ B8

(KF5E36)

e

HEEBEEE TN
HEE MRS

(KI5 36)

HERB AR (),

EE (K 36)
B D S R

(FizE36)

SEE S

FERL,(48)

IR M ol R K EL A FE MR IR

(18 0), B

& A5 R 3R e LAt FE A 5RIR

g0, R )
LY ISE L k=31
RERMEML
g/ OR )

REFPHELENRE

EY)
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9,653,016
10,631,129
2,284,134
(69,775)
3,786,511
(367,750)

(192,537)
(358,532)

(386,627)

(621)

(17,024)
(41,614)
(33,054)

60,348

(3,032,421)

577,629

58,273

22,551,085

7,311,175
11,152,914
962,004
(60,880)
4,314,685
(414,113)

(223,638)
(53,937)

(212,993)

74,281

(67,129)

2,019,094

(465,077)
1,273,153

(4,814,258)

(167,875)

20,627,406



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (coninue) 43 IHEHREE R @
(a) Cash generated from operations (Continued) (a) RETHELEMIRES(E)
In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of FReRERP HEWE -
property, plant and equipment comprise: BB R EEMSFERE

Net book amount (Note 6) BREFE(KIZE6) 341,590
Gains/(losses) on disposal of property, HEME - FE MR E
plant and equipment (Note 36) s, (E18)
(FzE36) (74,281)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BMERKREN

plant and equipment P8 FE 267,309
In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of FRERERP HEEBENHE
prepaid lease payments comprise: EEANMEHRIERTE

Net book amount (Note 7) BREFEFIEE?)
Gains on disposal of prepaid HERNHEEZBRN
lease payments (Note 36) Wzs (FsE36)

Proceeds from disposal of prepaid HEBNHEERN
lease payments P18 5018
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B BT RS R 51

43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continueD)

(a)

In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of
right-of-use assets comprise:

Net book amount (Note 8)

Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets
(Note 36)

Capital contributions into associates

Increase in trade and other receivables

Cash generated from operations (continued)

43 IHEREE M@
(3) REFTHEEMNBE S @)

ERERERT  LELHE
BERNMIFUAR

BREFE (FisE8)
HEFREEEN K
(FisE36)

e R TE
TP MR 0 e L At FE M SR TR A

Proceeds from disposal of
right-of-use assets

HEERREENFREIE

(b) Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net

In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of

subsidiaries comprise:

Net proceeds from the Disposal of
Shanxi Coal Mining Assets (Note 45)

Net proceeds from/(cash outflow on)
disposal of other subsidiaries

HEME N BTSRRI FE

HEREREXRT  HEWBR
AP IS A B

(b)

HELAEREEE
FriS 308 588 (M sk 45)
HEEMHE AR
FrissBF5E,/
(R&/mH)

1,108,095 8,485,986

273,489 (114,044)

Net proceeds from disposal
of subsidiaries

HEMB QA

TS IEFER 1,381,584 8,371,942
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43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (conTinueD)

(c) Proceeds from disposal of interests in subsidiaries

without loss of control

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

(Q

In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
interests in subsidiaries without loss of control comprise:

Equity change in ownership interests in FBE A A1 A EEZR K
subsidiaries without loss of control

P e S ) (R 2& SR il 4 )

Translation reserve ME
Proceeds from disposal of interests in ~ HEME A TR
subsidiaries without loss of control (REKIEHIRE)
58

43 HEREE M@

HEMB R AEDCREREF
) FERR

Eiﬁi//mgfﬁpp ﬁgﬁﬁg
B CREREHE) ﬁfr?%fk
B

591,010
59,058

1,381,011
2,908

1,383,919 650,068

Net debt reconciliation

(d)

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
movements in net debt for each of the year presented:

Cash and cash equivalents

Pledged/restricted bank deposits

Loans from an intermediate
holding company

Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Re LR EEY

B REHIRITIFR

XA — BT EZERAE
&

F“%

\\\\\\

Net debt for purpose of
cash flows reconciliation

HenedRFEas

Cash and bank balances
Gross debt - fixed interest rates
Gross debt - variable interest rates

Re RIRTTHEH
BERE-BEMEX
BERE—FHMEX

Net debt for purpose of
cash flows reconciliation

FEEHR
Bé‘%%ﬂirﬂ’]@iét\ FEA

4,907,306
425,503

7,977,153
214,281

(6,233,010) -
(CYRCNENEEI  (96,675,137)
(1,037,714) -

(CERTANCLE))  (88,483,703)

5,332,809
(21,253,013)
(73,921,459)

8,191,434
(20,576,318)
(76,098,819)

(CLRLINCEEI]  (88,483,703)
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43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continue) 43 HERSEER@
(d) Netdebtreconciliation (continued) (d) FEEHERG®E

Netdebtasat1January 2018 R=E-\E-F-H

WEEE 5,381,686 890,182 (800,000) (100,922,869) - (95451,001)
Cash flows RENE 3,001,898 (622,490) 812,104  (5575117) - (2,323,605)
Foreign exchange adjustments  JMNEZHE (466,431) (53,411) (12,104) 9,147,064 - 8,615,118
Othernon-cash movements ~ Hit 4 # - - - 675,785 - 675,785
Net debt as at RZE-NE+=R
31 December 2018 =+-HNFEE 7,977,153 214,281 - (96,675,137) - (88,483,703)
Cash flows BenE (2,972,381) 215915  (6,238,035) 12,568,534 118,782 3,692,815
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JMNEZF% (97,466) (4,693) 5025 (3,723,287) 9,508  (3,810,913)
Othernon-cash movements  EftiJER 4% - - - (73.858)  (1,166,004) (1,239,862)
Net debt as at RZE-NE+ZA
31 December 2019 =+-HNFEE 4,907,306 425,503 (6,233,010) (87,903,748) (1,037,714) (89,841,663)

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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44 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44 HiE
Capital expenditure contracted but not yet provided for at the R EBREFTERREENER
end of the reporting period is as follows: AT :

Capital expenditure in respect of property, % - ME N & E
plant and equipment EEMNELRRAX 21,930,599 15,205,146

Capital expenditure in respect of the W SRR B R

acquisition of mining BREMELRRX

rights/exploration rights 4,843,385 5,268,343
Capital expenditure in respect of the WEEFEEEGBN

acquisition of intangible assets BEARRX 28,379 29,013
Unsubscribed shareholder loans in MILEEEPERAE

respect of investment in B RER (T 12)

a joint venture (Note 12) 2,312,414

26,802,363 22,814,916
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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45 DISPOSAL OF SHANXI COAL MINING ASSETS IN

2018
Disposal of AACI HK (as defined below)

0On 23 November 2018, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement with AACI SAADEC Holdings Limited
("AACI"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, in relation to
the transfer of its 100% equity interest in AACI SAADEC (HK)
Holdings Limited (“AACI HK") and the coal company, namely
Shanxi China Resources Daning Energy Company Limited
("CR Daning"), whose 51% equity interest is held by AACI
HK, at a cash consideration of approximately RMB3,485.7
million (equivalent to approximately HK$3,926.6 million), as
determined based on the valuation of the equity interest of
AACI HK as at 30 June 2018 as assesssed by an independent
valuer. The Disposal was approved by the an extraordinary
general meeting of shareholders of the Company held on 17
December 2018.

Transfer of coal assets held by CR Coal including equity
interests in four Coal Companies and transfer of Target
Debt (as defined below)

0On 26 December 2018, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement (the "Equity Transfer Agreement”) with a
third party, Guoyuan Shidai Coal Asset Management Company
Limited ("Guoyuan Company"), in relation to the transfer
of its 100% equity interest in China Resources Coal (Group)
Co., Ltd. ("CR Coal") and all its equity interest in four of the
coal companies under CR Coal, namely (1) Shenzhen Ruihua
Energy Investment Co., Limited ("Ruihua Energy"); (2) Shanxi
China Resources Liansheng Energy Investment Co., Ltd. ("CR
Liansheng"); (3) Shanxi China Resources Coal Company
Limited (“CR Shanxi"); and (4) CR Taiyuan (a 49% associate
of CR Coal), (collectively, the "Target Coal Companies"), and
all their respective coal mines, at a consideration of RMB1
(equivalent to HKS1). Immediately prior to the transfer, the
Company (through its wholly-owned subsidiaries) beneficially
owns 74.14%, 51%,75.5% and 24.99% in Ruihua Energy, CR
Liansheng, CR Shanxi and CR Taiyuan.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

45 R_S—/\FHEIR

IF&E
HEACNHK(EERTX)

RZE—N\F+—A=-+=HB"' K
SEEZEPHEFENZENEB AT AAC
SAADEC Holdings Limited ([AACI])
A1 37 P% M B GE 17 s 0 B 5 HAAC
SAADEC(HK)Holdings Limited ([ AACI
HK]) 100 % &4 &k 2 7] » BIAACI
HKRF A 51 % /) 1L PR EE B K=Y
BERAR(TERERE])  BHeRE
HBAREZ 4857 HETHEERLD
3,926.6 BEAETT) * JIRBEEIHE
B P &E (& AACI HKIR —ZZE— NF X A
ZTHNREGHEET - HEFEE
RARBIE—ZT—N\F+=_A++tA
BITZIRRFFRIRS EERE o

EHEERFENREREEEE 811
Mx\ExrARINRE REZEBEE
B(EERTX)

RZE—N\F+_A=-+H &E&E
EHE-FERSAEXEEEER
BRABITBIR AR )R] I ko o
e ([ IxEEEwZE])  EREER
rEHEE(EE)BRAR([EH
HEDNEIRERTEREEET
MRER AR I IE - B ()%
IimERERIEEBR R A ([ IHERE
R () AEEBREREES
BRAB(TZE B ] (3)ILAER
HERMDARARTEBLA])
M) KREB(ERDEEN49 %
ENA)(SREAIBEKRR TR
EXEEE REAR®17TGH
ER1ABTT) c BEEZA - AQF
(BBEENBRAR) DR ERHE
BInEfR - = EHILUAK
KNIFEZEM74.14% ~51% ~755% &
24.99% A% HE o
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45 DISPOSAL OF SHANXI COAL MINING ASSETS IN

2018 (continuep)

Transfer of coal assets held by CR Coal including equity
interests in four Coal Companies and transfer of Target
Debt (as defined below) (Continued)

0On the same date, the Group also entered into a debt
restructuring agreement (the "Debt Restructuring Agreement”)
with Guoyuan Company and agreed that all shareholder
loans and accounts receivable in the total amount of
approximately RMB21.9 billion owed by CR Coal and/or
the Target Coal Companies to the Group (the "Target Debt")
shall be transferred to and assumed by Guoyuan Company
for a consideration of RMB11 billion. Guoyuan Company or
its designated entity shall pay the first instalmant of RMB6
billion of the Target Debt and pay the remaining RMB5 billion
and all outstanding interest accrued to the date on which
the consideration is fully paid based on PBOC prevailing
benchmark lending rate of the same tenor to the Group
before 31 October 2021. In 2018, the Group has recevied the
first installment of RMB6 billion,and in 2019, the Group has
received the second installment of RMB1 billion. According to
the Debt Restructuring Agreement, Guoyuan Company shall
pay the third installment of RMB1.5 billion before 31 Octorber
2020 and the forth installment of RMB2.5 billion before 31
Octorber 2021.

As above arrangements are all in relation to the disposal of
coal mines assets in Shanxi Province which are contemplated
of each other in order to achive the strategic direction of the
Group and they are entered into almost at the same time, the
directors of the Company consider that they shall be treated
and accounted for as a single transaction. The directors
considered the date of completion of transaction to be 26
December 2018.

45 R_S—/\FHETIR

E&Em@
EHHESENEREEEZE 8
MOxERATNRE - REZEBEZE
B(ERRET ) @)

FER—A » AEBETEENRA RG]
ERERApE(EHBEARBE]
WREEBEBHEEN B EERA
AEBERAEBEHNARE 219 TTHE
R ER M ERERRRE( BIZE
%) BEEZTERARLAE
EE - REAARKEI110ET - BUR
NANEECTER AT ERERSE
—HARB6ET WR_T=-—
FHA=t+—HAMAEBEZ T
ARESOERTAFIBEEREER
HIZNEHRREZEEFNE - IR
BHREEEHNFEARBEITRITE
EERHEFE -RZZTE—N\F ' K
SEEWEE -—HAIRARE60E
JC MR T —NEF - AEES RE
F_HNARAREI0ET - RIEE
WERpGHE BIRARENR_ZT=_F
FH+A=F+T—HAXE=ZHFIE
AREISEIT YR —F+
A=+—BAXEMNBERIBEARE
25187T °

AR Bl e &S | LFREREE
EAR  AEBREASEMNKEES MM
BT BATREEY - AAF
EEURBEBLERIERE—RS
BERAE - EERAXH5THK A
AR_E—)\F+-_A=+/H-
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45 DISPOSAL OF SHANXI COAL MINING ASSETSIN 45 R_S—/\FEHELfmIE

288

2018 (continuep) H=TET0))
The loss on disposal of CR Coal and AACI HK was calculated as e R 2 N AACI HKEYE 1B AT E
follows: /(N

Consideration: RAE -
Equity Transfer Agreement IR R 3,930,571 - 3,930,571
Debt Restructuring Agreement BB S - 12,493,580 12,493,580
Total consideration BRAE 3,930,571 12,493,580 16,424,151
Less: Mo
Net (assets)/liabilities disposed SEERAENTEE

as measured at Group level (BE)/aEFs (3,279,356) 8,864,521 5,585,165
Shareholder loans and accounts wEORERERK

receivable transferred JrE R 18 - (24,868,913) (24,868,913)
Add: i
Transfer from other EaHEMEEmKA

comprehensive income 265,626 472,402 738,028
Gain/(loss) on disposal HEMBRRZ

of subsidiaries Wz, (EE) 916,841 (3,038,410)  (2,121,569)

46 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Audit services
Non-audit services

ZBURTS
FERZ B AR

46 %S AMENE
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The Group entered into two trademark licence

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

47 BABTAIR %A

(a)

agreements dated 17 October 2003 with CRCL and
CRH, respectively, under which the Group was granted
irrevocable, royalty free and non-exclusive licences to
use certain trade marks and the rights to sub-license the
same to any member of the Group in consideration of a

nominal amount of HKS1 each.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive and non-
executive) and senior management. The compensation
paid or payable to key management for employee

services is shown below:

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

e LEMEHEEET

BERL 212 A

AEBR-_ZTZE=FtA+t
BoplEmEEFEhEHEE
RIVMEREERA BE B
t o AEEERAATRE - 2
ENBREGEBRAAAEAET
BAR - DA Ko 1R AN 6% [ ) 1A B
BRRNDKERSE TEEN
BN RERERESEEBRALE
5T e

FEEE A SR

TEERABBRBREZTMITR
FRT)RERERE - SHER
RBEENKENEZEEAER
E B A0 T PR
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (coninuen) 47 FBRXZ @
(c) Material related party transactions () EXBEBAIRS
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the BREIMIERREMIBO K E
consolidated financial statements, the following BN RERNEBE FETT
transactions were carried out with related parties during T3R5 :
the year:

(RH Intermediate Interest expense paid (Note 30)
EHEE holding company B FIEER(ME30)
R A A

17,091

China Resources Co., Limited Intermediate Disposal of a subsidiary
EHERNBRAA] holding company  HEKEBAT
F R A E]

18,894

Certain subsidiaries of CRH Fellow subsidiaries Supply of direct power 148
EHEENETHEAR EES NG EEHES
Providing retail power
agency services (Note i)
RHETEENRERB(HEEI)
Providing integrated
energy services
REEEERRS
Providing agency service fee
REREREE
Purchase of limestone powder
BEAKAH
Software maintenance
expense paid
B R
Trademark use fee
ERERE
Purchase of consumables
BE M
Professional fee
EXER
Purchase of fuel
BEMH
Purchase of materials

BEMH

14,247

109

23,503

127

448
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continue) 47 BABERAREA @)
(c) Material related party transactions (Continued) () EXBEBAIRS (&)

Rental expense

HemY
Advertisement expense
BERX
Insurance expense
REEFZ
Other expense
HitF%
Certain joint ventures of Joint ventures of Providing retail power
(R Cement fellow subsidiary agency services (Note i)
ERNENETRERE EES =N RHETESENRERB (HIEEI)
LEERE
Certain associates of Associates of Providing retail power
(R Cement fellow subsidiary agency services (Note i)
ERNENETHERE EES NG RHETEENRERB (HEEI)
ZHERE
Certain subsidiaries of China Fellow subsidiaries Providing maintenance service
Resources Land Ltd. BELENG Rt K ERTE
EHEMERAANET Rental expense
B AR MeEH
Transportation fee
RBE
Other expense
HERA
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuep)
Material related party transactions (Continued)

(A

China Resources Energy
Service (o., Ltd.

EHERREERAR]

China Resources Bank of
Zhuhai Company Limited
FEEBRITRHERAA

China Resources Leasing
Co., Ltd.
EEMEBRRA

Certain associates of the Group
(Note ii)

AEEMETHERE
(F5Eii)

Fellow subsidiary

EEL=ING]

Fellow subsidiary

EEL=ING]

Fellow subsidiary

EEL=ING]

Associate
B

47 BABR/XEZ @

() EXEBAIRS (HE)

Contract environment
management fee, contract
energy management fee
and exclusive operation fee

BRIREERER -
BRRREREBAK
RIREER

Interest expense paid
ENFEER
Interest income

MEBA

Providing maintenance service

PRt MRS

Sales of electricity

HEEN

Sales of coal

HERIX

Sales of heat

HE 2B

Sales of materials

HEME

Purchase of fuel

BEME

Electricity trading fee
BNIRSE

Providing agency service fee
RHEREREE

Providing maintenance service
R4 ERT

Service income

FRASUA

Rentalincome

HeWA

Rental expense

HeEH

Transportation fee

RBE

Interest expense paid (Note 28)
ENFEER (K 28)
Interest income (Note 11)

MEWA (fEE11)

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

33,930
20

4,248

485

384,981 139,942
838,343 331,507
44 90,648
72,751 39,272
106,088 33,279
1,211 -
46,034 48,625
58,121 43,161
2,439 2,548
162 168

59 -

24 -
5,363

124,878



47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuep)
Material related party transactions (Continued)

(A

Certain joint ventures of the
Group (Note i)
AEE®E T RE (i)

Certain non-controlling
shareholder of the Group

AEENE TIFERRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Joint ventures
AELE

Non-controlling
shareholder

SRR

B B RS R R Al 5t

47 BABH/XEZ @

() EXEBAIRS ()

Sales of electricity
HEEN

Sales of coal

HERRX
Sales of materials
HEMH

Sales of heat

HEHE

Sales of by-products
HERIEM

Purchase of fuel

BEIME

Purchase of materials
BEMH

Purchase of coal transportation
service
REEFMRRS
Providing agency service fee
REREREE

Providing maintenance service
REtEERY

Providing integrated energy
services
RtEAERRYS

Service income

FREHA
Management fee income
ERERA

Maintenance expenses
®EER

Interest expense paid (Note 29)
ERFEER (KT 29)
Interest income (Note 12)

MB YA (HEE12)

Interest income (Note 20)

AE ONCIEZAD

Note (i): The amounts disclosed are commissions charged to these entities

by the Group for the provision of agency services for bidding/
acquiring electricity supply from the national open market (the
“Market"). The total trading volume of electricity that the Group
bid/acquired on behalf of these entities over the Market is 3.22
billion kwh in 2019. The power plants operated by the Group also
contributed electricity to the Market through the national electricity

grid of China.

Note (ii): Some associates and joint ventures ceased to be related parties on

26 December 2018. The transactions shown were up to that date.

B EE (1) -

P RE (i)

2,283 969
484,895 759,441
740,045 -
91,997 58,038

6,375 2,257
71,582 242,202
25,230 2,313
66,015 109,481

3,267 1,188

3,102 19,140
10,537 58
27,540 27,655
13,862 15,037
106,948 148,832

5,563 4,507

5,741 2,980

737

THERESEAREERARSE
BIEHAEZEAMMSB((ME])
REE EREENRIERED
e - AEBE_Z—NFAZ
EEREMSRHREERHE
BENEKREEAR22ETR
Bf o AEEFTEEERNBBF
EEREMATSREES S -
ETHECERAEREN T
—\F+-_A-+/"BETBRE
RS - IR 5EEZE
/E;E]o
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuep)
(d) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled

entities

As at 31 December 2019, included in cash and cash
equivalents was an amount of HKS 307,658,000 (2018:
HKS 286,991,000) which is deposited in China Resources
Bank of zZhuhai Co., Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the
Group, with interest rates ranging from 0.35% to 1.50%
(2018:0.35% to 1.49%) per annum.

The Group operates in an economic environment
currently predominated by entities directly or indirectly
owned or controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the Chinese government (“state-controlled
entities"). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under CRCL, ultimate holding
company of the Company, which is controlled by the
PRC government. Apart from the transactions with the
parent company and its subsidiaries which have been
disclosed in other notes to the consolidated financial
statement, the Group also conducts business with other
state-controlled entities during the ordinary course of its
business.

The Group operates power plants in the PRC and sells
significant volumes of its electricity to the power grid
companies which are state-controlled entities in the
PRC. The Group also purchases/sells significant amounts
of coal from/to certain state-controlled entities.
Furthermore, the Group has certain borrowings and
deposits with certain banks which are state-controlled
entities in its ordinary course of business. The Group has
also entered into various transactions, including other
operating expenses with other state-controlled entities
which individually and collectively were insignificant
during the year.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

47 AR/ XEZ @)

(d)

EHMBFEEHEENRS
FEER

R_E—NF+-_A=+—§H"
AR RReEEYNESE
307,658,000 L (—F— )\ F :
286,991,00078 7T ) 17 MU A &
B [ Z M B A M MR TR
MABERRF - FHENTF0.35%
£150% (= F — J\F : 0.35%
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SERQRN - - [RRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided certain
guarantees amounting to HK$849,088,000 (2018:
HKS$2,894,284,000) to its related parties (Notes 11 and 12).

In addition, there were certain pending litigations and claims
against the Group as of 31 December 2019. After consulting
the legal counsels, the directors are of the view that the
likelihood of any further material financial impact to the
Group is remote, therefore, no further provisions have been
made in light of such litigations and claims.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
in early 2020, due to the delayed resumption of operation
in factories and enterprises in January and February, power
demand remained at low levels. With enterprises across China
gradually returning to work and resuming production at the
end of February and March, it is expected that power demand
will gradually recover. The resumption of construction of our
power plants after the Lunar New Year was postponed due
to the epidemic, which may affect the commissioning dates
of some wind power projects. The Group will accelerate the
construction of wind power projects and strive to complete
the construction target by the end of this year.

The Group will pay close attention to the development of the
COVID-19 and evaluate its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group. As at the date on which this set
of financial statements were authorised for issue, the Group
was not aware of any material adverse effects on the financial
statements as a result of the COVID-19.

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the Group had no other significant subsequent event.

48 o

49
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50 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTOF 50 hRal&EaEXRRHiE

THE COMPANY &

Balance sheet of the Company

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets EMENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB MEE 193,846 217,455
Right-of-use assets FREEE 21,309 -
Prepayment NG s 31,642 33,324
Investments in subsidiaries RSN ﬂﬁﬁ%¥ 27,770,593 27,777,646
Loans to subsidiaries M B AR ER - 13,578,093
Investments in associates EW?’#%”JE%EUTE 2,591,913 2,591,913
Investments in joint ventures RE&EhENER 1,270,108 1,270,108
Deferred tax assets RIEFTISMEE 896 -
Fvocl WA EBEEEEE
T AH AL AR S W 181,324 184,910
32,061,631 45,653,449
Current assets MBEE
Trade and other receivables JE YRS &Eﬁﬂfﬂﬁl 60,095 91,735
Loans to subsidiaries M B ARER 124,386 -
Amounts due from associates f’éﬁ”ﬁlﬂﬁﬁféﬂé%m 7,595 10,507
Amounts due from subsidiaries and JE B B T&ﬁﬂﬂ
other related companies EZpE/NEIF L 41,932,851 20,365,010
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIREEEY 482,864 2,086,739
42,607,791 22,553,991
Total assets BEE 74,669,422 68,207,440
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50 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTOF 50 /T\’A__Ié aigXRiEkE

THE COMPANY (conivvepy 58 =i )
KAREEEERG@E)

As at 31 December

Rt+t=ZA=+—H

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkasE
Equity attributable to owners A T)#EA AEILAERS
of the Company
Share capital [N 22,316,710 22,316,710
Other reserves H Note (3) Fft &t (a) 82,307 82,307
Retained earnings T% 2 Note (a) M=t (3) RERT-EAN! 17,080,310
Total equity B 40,962,228 39,479,327
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Borrowings Ep 19,458,445 25,310,052
Lease liabilities HERE 21,264 -
19,479,709 25,310,052
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables FETER R M oAt
JE AT 3RIE 190,226 163,148
Amounts due to joint ventures ~ JEfFE “ﬁ%m 781 799
Amounts due to other e E AR E A A
related companies IR 10,164,461 1,039,198
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTIS R B & 2,097 2,996
Borrowings BE 3,869,362 2,211,920
Lease liabilities HEBE 558 -
14,227,485 3,418,061
Total liabilities asE 33,707,194 28,728,113
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 74,669,422 68,207,440

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on 30 March 2020 and was signed on its behalf.

Director

EF

Director

EF

BEEC

BER-_ZE_ZTEF=-HA=+HA
FERIAN/N Téﬁ?ﬁﬁ%@ W TINES
REEEZE
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50 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTOF 50 hRal&EaEXRRHiE
THE COMPANY (continuep) S #l(a

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company MIEE () A REEEE

At 1 January 2018 A—E—-NFE—A—H 21,107,720 (412,689)
Profit for the year FRFHE 150,409 -
Dividends paid to owners of the BEIRNAQFHER ARE

Company (Note 42) (B9t 42) (4,177,819) -
Sold shares held for share award scheme & &7 82851 2 i A% D - 494,996
At 31 December 2018 A —Z2—-NF+=ZA=+—H 17,080,310 82,307
At 1January 2019 R—ZF—-—hF—H—H 17,080,310 82,307
Profit for the year FRFHE 3,421,510
Dividends paid to owners of the BIRT AR BHEE ARE

Company (Note 42) (fFE42) (1,938,609)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZF-NFE+=A=+—H 18,563,211
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51 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2019:

China Resources Power
Investment Co., Ltd.
ZHENRERRRAT

China Resources Power
(Haifeng) Co., Ltd.
ZHENEL)ARRAA

China Resources Power
(Tangshan Caofeidian)
(o., Ltd.
ZHEN(ELELE)BERAF

China Resources Power
Dengfeng Co., Ltd.
EHENEHERLAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B RS R R Al 5t

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
HE -
NEBERER

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
FE
NaBERE

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
FE

PO IERERE

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
-
PEERERE

51 BiE AT

B ATESIT

Registered and 100 -
paid-up capital

RMB15,800,000,000

AMRERER

AR #15,800,000,000 T

Registered capital - 100
RMB2,095,000,000

&R

AR#2,095,000,000 T

Paid-up capital

RMB1,589,280,000

BRENR

AR 1,589,280,000 7T

Registered capital - 51
RMB3,571,340,000

AfER

AR#3,571,340,000 7T

Paid-up capital

RMB2,305,079,800

HREAR

AR#2,305,079,800 T

Registered and - 85
paid-up capital

RMB1,760,000,000

AfRECER

AR 1,760,000,000 7

R-FE—hE+-_A=+—HHTE

Investment holding

A

Operation of a
power station
HEEY

Operation of a
power station
EEEI

Operation of a
power station
EEBIL
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B BT RS R 51

51 SUBSIDIARIES (continuep)

China Resources Power Hubei
(0., Ltd.
ERENRLERAR

(hina Resources Power
(Tongshan) Co., Ltd.
WLERENERAA

(hina Resources New Energy
(NeiHuang)(o., Ltd.
ERTERNE)BERLT

China Resources New Energy
(Suixian Tianhekou)
Wind Power Limited
ERFRESEATA)
ERERAT

(hina Resources Power
(Jiaozuo) Co., Ltd.
EREN(EE)ERAT

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
HE -
NEBELE

PRC,

Limited Liability
Company

FE
ARAT]

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
HE

AN N

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
FE
PN

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
HE -
WEBERE

51 Bt ATl

Registered and -
paid-up capital

RMB2,690,000,000

AR R AR

AR 2,690,000,000 7C

Registered and -
paid-up capital

RMB1,500,000,000

At R R &R
AEK#1,500,000,000 7T

Registered capital -
RMB950,670,000

&R

AR 950,670,000 7T

Paid-up capital

RMB760,378,270

HREXR

AR™ 760,378,270 T

Registered capital -
RMB1,110,385,200
AR#1,110,385,200 1T

Paid-up capital

RMB936,338,129

HREAR

AR 936,338,129 7T

Registered capital 100
RMB1,254,000,000

HMER

AR 1,254,000,000 7T

Paid-up capital

RMB1,074,999,504

BRER

AR#1,074,999,504 7T

&)

100

59.86

100

100

Operation of a
power station
LB

Operation of a
power station
LBEIL

Operation of a
power station
LEBU

Operation of a
power station
EEEY

Operation of a
power station
LB

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT
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51 SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 51 MiE ARGl

(hina Resources Power PRC, Registered capital - Operationofa
(Wenzhou) Co., Ltd. Sino-Foreign RMBZ2,000,000,000 power station
EBEN(AMNERRT Equity Joint Venture AR LEBEU

HE

AE2.000,000,000 7T

FINEIER b Paid-up capital
RMB1,667,972,355
HBREAR
AR#1,667,972,355 T
(hina Resources Power (Heze) PRC, Registered and - Operationofa
(0., Ltd. Sino-Foreign paid-up capital power station
EFTN(FE)ERAA Equity Joint Venture RMB931,250,000 EEEI
R At kR ER
ROMNE IR E b E AR 931,250,000 7C
(hina Resources Power PRC, Registered capital 100 Operation of a
(Bohaixingu) Co., Ltd. Wholly Foreign RMB840,000,000 power station
EREN(HETR)ERAT) Owned Enterprise AR HBEU
HE - AR 840,000,000 7
INERELE Paid-up capital
RMB619,605,540
HRER
AR 619,605,540 7C
Sichuan China Resources Yazui PRC, Registered and 51  Operationofa
River Hydro Power Development  Sino-Foreign paid-up capital power station
(0., Ltd. Equity Joint Venture RMB473,750,000 EEE
W) ERRETKEREERAR  HE A RARER
ROMNE RS E b E AR 473,750,000 7T
(hina Resources Power PRC, Registered and 100 Operation ofa

(Panjin) Co., Ltd.
ZHEN(BR)ERAF

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
HE -
NEBERER

paid-up capital
RMB776,000,000
A RBRER

AR 776,000,000 7T

power station
LBEIL
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51 SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 51 MiE A Gl

(hina Resources Power
(Changshu) Co., Ltd.
EFEN(RA)ERLA

China Resources Power Hunan
(0., Ltd.
ERENREERAA

(hina Resources Power
Henan Shouyangshan
(0., Ltd.
MEEBENERILBRAR

Jiangsu Nanre Power
Generation Co., Ltd.
IHEREBEREAAT

Nanjing Chemical Industry

Park Thermoeletricity Co., Ltd.

HMRLEIXRAZERAA

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
HE -
NEBELE

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
FE
NaBERE

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
HE
ROMEERE(RE

PRC,

Limited Liability
Company
R

AR A

PRC,

Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Venture
-
POBIERERE

Registered and
paid-up capital
US$173,520,000
AR R AR
%71173,520,000

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,361,000,000
At R R &R

AR 1,361,000,000 70

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,237,500,000
it kg R &R
AR#1,237,500,000 T

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,030,000,000
At kg R ER

AR 1,030,000,000 7T

Registered and
paid-up capital
US$127,580,252
MRS RER
%70127,580,252

Operation of a
power station
LB

Operation of a
power station
LBEIL

Operation of a
power station
LEBU

Operation of a
power station
EEBIL

Operation of a
power station
LB

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT



51 SUBSIDIARIES (continuep)

Guangzhou China Resources
Thermal Co., Ltd.
EMNEBREERDA

(hina Resources Wind
Power (Haiyuan) Co., Ltd.
ZERE(ER)ERAT

(hina Resources Power
(Xilinguole) Coal Mining
(0., Ltd.

EHE (GNP EEBRAT

(hina Resources Power
(Yichang) Co., Ltd.
ZHEN(ER)ERAT

(hina Resources Power Tangshan
Fengrun (o., Ltd.
ERENEILERERAT

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
HE -
NEBELE

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
FE
NEBERE

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
HE -
NEBELE

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
FE
NaBERE

PRC,

Sino-Foreign
Equity Joint Ventur
HE
ROMEERE(RE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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51 MiE ARGl

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB1,100,000,000
A RBRER

AE#1,100,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB1,014,838,100
AR

AR#1,014,838,1007C

Paid-up capital
RMB719,070,000
BRER
AR#719,070,000 7T

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB300,000,000

A RBRER
AR™ 300,000,000

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB769,000,000

it kR &R
AE#769,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB690,135,000

e HMER
AE#690,135,0007T
Paid-up capital
RMB674,574,250
HREXR
AR™ 674,574,250 7

Operation of a
power station
LBEI

Operation of a
power station
LBEI

60 40 Operation ofa
power station

BEB

Operation of a
power station
HEEU

Operation of a
power station
LEBU
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51 SUBSIDIARIES (continuep)

51 MiE A Gl

Coal mining

FRRTR

Operation of a
power station
LBEIL

Guizhou Tianrun Mining Co., Ltd. PRC, Registered and - 100
EMNREREARAA Limited Liability paid-up capital
Company RMB100,000,000
R - AR R AR
BRAT AR#100,000,000 7T
(hina Resources Power PRC, Registered capital - 70
(XiLinGuole) Co., Ltd. Sino-Foreign RMB2,065,000,000
ERE N HNTY)ERAT) Equity Joint Venture B AR
FE AR#2,065,000,0007C
FoMEERERE Paid-up capital

RMBL,909,333,300
BREX

AE1,909,333,300 T

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Group
which in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected/will affect the operation of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Some of the subsidiaries' English names represent
managements’ translation of the Chinese names as they have
not adopted formal English names.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are all limited liability
companies.

(a) Significant restrictions

As at 31 December 2019, cash and bank deposits of
HKS4,867,694,000 (2018: HKS6,093,098,000) are held in
mainland China and are subject to PRC exchange control
regulations. These exchange control regulations provide
for restrictions on exporting capital from the country,
other than through cash dividend approved by the
shareholders' meeting in accordance with the relevant
laws and requlations.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

ARBESRA LRI ARED
TENBARE BHAEENEE
BEEZRXE - ARAEFAR/IEE
i B A RN E RS EEERHENTT
f o

AP ER 3 Y B 1 B I M ER % [E A 32
XA HERR RN E X ZTHE
REREBRETXRABIELARE

R BEEMKRZH B AR RER
BIERAF] -

(a) EKFRH

RZE-—NFF+_A=+—
B #FBAEHEENRES M
RITFEN A 4,867,694,00078 7T
—Z — N\ % :6,093,098,000
A7) I 7838 <7 FR B HNE $E I A
R oo IS Hh 7 HNE 15 I A R B
EHEAERAET(EBRRE
AERIBEMABEEREBUED
RERREBRIN) BIBR ) o
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52 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 52 ESEllmRiER(HEEBA
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 al{XBISE 622 &5 383 (X
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE HE - Ral(EENRE
(CAP.622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE R EE ) HBISE 6226 S
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF =)
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G))
(a) Directors' and chief executive's emoluments () EBREFHNTEMS

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out below:

Non-executive directors
Li Ru Ge (ii)

ChenYing

Wang Yan

Executive directors
Tang Yong (iii)
Zhang Junzheng (iv)
Wang Xiao Bin

Ge Changxin (v)

Hu Min (vi)

Independent non-
executive directors

Ch'ien Kuo Fung, Raymond

Leung 0i-sie, Elsie

Ma Chiu-Cheung, Andrew

So Chak Kwong, Jack

BE-T-N&+-A=+—
AR SEFNHE BT
mT -

FNTES
EHE (i)
e

IE

HITES
BB (iii)
REH (iv)
B\
BRI (v)
A8 (vi)

BUFRITES

23
B
REX
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52 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP.622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G))

(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors' and chief executive's emoluments
(Continued)

(i) Salary paid to a director is generally, an emolument paid or receivable
in respect of that person’'s other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings.

(ii) Mr. Li Ru Ge resigned as the Chairman of the Board and a Non-
executive Director on 27 March 2020.

(iii) ~ Mr. Tang Yong was appointed as an Executive Director and the
President of the Company on 17 December 2019.

(iv)  Mr. zhang Junzheng was apponted as the Vice Chairman of the Board
and an Executive Director of the Company on 17 December 2019.

(v) Mr. Ge Changxin ceased to be the Vice Chairman of the Board,
Executive Director and Senior Vice President of the Company and was
re-designated as a Non-executive Director and Senior Consultant to the
President of the Compary on 15 April 2019. Mr. Ge Changxin resigned
as 3 Non-executive Director and Senior Consultant to the President of
the Company on 16 February 2020.

(vi)  Mr. Hu Min resigned as an Executive Director and the President of the
Company on 17 December 2019.

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the
Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
a compensation for loss of office.

No directors have waived any remuneration during the
year

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

52 ESilllx

EE(HEBA

alfEBISE 622 =5 383 X
HHE ~
sHREE ) MBIE 6226 S HE

5 )

A (EEFIHE

ESNEREUTEME @)

(1)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

XNTF—REEOHE —RBIZ
AR EE B AR B S E B A
B H 15 A B RO B At AR 75 1 2 S A9 K
FEM B E -

FHELEER-_ZT_ZTF=A
%;tﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ

BBEEAER_T-NF+_A+t
REZERRBRITESREE -

REREER-_ZE-—NF+-A
TLHEZEARRESGRIER
RPTES -

BERMAENR_Z-NFOA+HE
BETHBEEFARANESREER
B TEERSRAEERALFE
RARBNIERTERFAED R
B BEEFEENR T _2F
ATRNBEBHERNTERREHD
AREER

BB EAD ANTEERAH -

FAAEEYERNESFHA
EREFMALTINME £
RMAREBEHINAREE
REVENES - SERBERAIAETE o

FA - WESFREREMNHE

o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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52 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THEHONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP.622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G))
(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors' and chief executive's emoluments
(Continued)

The remuneration of each director and the chief
executive for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set
out below:

52 EENaRER(EEBA
alfEBIsE 622 E= 5 383 X
HZE -~ pal(EENIRE
sHREE ) MBI 6226 S HE

B2 ) ()

() EFREFEHTEME @

HE—_Z2—N\F+_-_A=+—
BIEFE SEELERHT
BEHBSHENNOT

Non-executive directors FHTER
Li Ru Ge (ii) FRE(iN) - - - - -
Chen Ying (iii) BRE (iif) - - - - -
Wang Yan (iii) E3=A(D) - - - - -
Executive directors HITER
Ge Changxin BERH - 5,478 - - 5,478
Hu Min e - 4,440 78 - 4,518
Wang Xiao Bin T - 3,864 78 - 3,942
Independent non- BUFHITES
executive directors
Ch'ien Kuo Fung, BRe 300 - - - 300
Raymond
Leung 0i-sie, Elsie 2B 345 - - - 345
Ma Chiu-Cheung, Sl 345 - - - 345
Andrew
So Chak Kwong, Jack HER 345 - - - 345
1,335 13,782 156 - 15,273

(i) Salary paid to a director is generally, an emolument paid or receivable
in respect of that person’s other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings.

(ii) On 5 March 2018, Mr. Li Ru Ge was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and the new Chairman of the Board of Directors.

(iii)  Included in the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, Mr. Chen Ying
and Mr. Wang Yan, of the Company also received emoluments from the
related companies.

(i) XNTFESENHFS-—RARZALE
BEBARARANBAREBHHE
MR BB E -

(i) RZZE-N\F=ZARH FTHEXRE
BRERFATEERESTGH (I
o

(i)  BRESEAEREZ T ERRE D FUER

MBS T ERE EXBRENESIHE
R o
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52 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THEHONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP.622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G))
(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors' and chief executive's emoluments
(Continued)

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the
Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
a compensation for loss of office.

No directors have waived any remuneration during the
year.

(b) Directors' retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2018: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors' services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2018: Nil).

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

52 EENlaRER(EEBA
alfEBISE 622 =5 383 X
HZE - pal(EENRE
sHREE ) MBIE 6226 S HE

=)@

(@)

ESNEREVTEME @)

TR AEETEANESFHA
ZREFMALTINME  F
BMAREBEEMAKREE
BEBME - SERBERAFE o

FA - TESFERETMAME

ESRKNEN R BEBER

FA - T F WEE A R
TR RS SRR R (= F
—\F: E) -

MERHEEEREOE=F1R
e RE
HE_ZT—NLF+_A=+—
BIEFE  AARWERER
HEERBRATMEE=H M
RE(ZE—N\F:E)-
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52 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP.622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G))

(CONTINUED)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 December 2019, there is no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2018: Nil).

(e) Directors’' material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company's business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2018: Nil).

52 EENaRER(EEBA
alfEBIsE 622 E= 5 383 X
HZE -~ pal(EENIRE
sHREE ) MBI 6226 S HE

B )@

(d) UEE - ZEEESH2EZER
HZEEEEHECERAT
BARZER - BEEFFIEMR
S2ER
RZE—-—NF+_A=+—
B WENES XEFEH
ZEBREZEEEREBREL
BERASXGAZER  EEXR
HEMTGLH(ZT—N\F :
/) o

(e) EBRNXRG  KHASHNE
Kz
RAFE/REXAFEANE
o] B A 3 4 N1 R]BLE S AT
RV BEARBIEERNETE
EXREEAEAEARNERK
X BHRAHZZE-N
FME) -
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ralsid

Chairman

EE

Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Executive Directors

HITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHITES

Company Secretary
NREIWE

Auditor
e

Legal Advisor

SRR

Wang Chuandong
TER

Wang Chuandong
FTER

ChenYing

BRE

Wang Yan

TE

Tang Yong

e

Zhang Junzheng
oK B I

Wang Xiao Bin
F M

Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung
Elsie Leung Qi-sie
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung
Jack So Chak Kwong

Wang Xiao Bin
F M

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

RICE KB R RS
HITEF AT
AL MR 28 B RE LA

Clifford Chance
SIEARMEBRET
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Share Registrar

R E R

Registered Office
Bt E Y

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen's Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong.

BBPREBELFZLABRAT

BEET

SRKEFR 1835

AR

17 1712E 1716 F

Rooms 2001-2002, 20th Floor,
China Resources Building,

26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong.

General Line: (852) 2593 7530
Facsimile: (852) 2593 7531
BEET

BB 26 9%

FEHARE

201 2001 £ 2002 &

#a1% : (852) 2593 7530

{85 : (852) 2593 7531
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE

The Company's shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Our stock code is 836.

FINANCIAL DIARY
Financial year end 31 December 2019

Announcement of final results 30 March 2020

Last day to register for final dividend 19 June 2020

4 June 2020 to
9 June 2020

Book close

Payment of final dividend on or about 9 July 2020

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please contact
the Company's Share Registrar:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
Telephone: (852) 2862 8628

Facsimile: (852) 2865 0990

For enquires from investors and securities analysts, please contact:

Investor Relations

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited

Room 2001-2002, 20th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

General Line: (852) 2593 7530

IR hotline: (852) 2593 7550

Facsimile: (852) 2593 7531/2593 7551

E-mail: crp-ir@crc.com.hk

OUR WEBSITE

WWWwW.Ccr-power.com

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited B EDZERERAT

iz R ERARIA AR

KRR ORERBER ST AR A A
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M FLH —ZE-A%F
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ERHENZERARAEF

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited

Rooms 2001-2002, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BRBFEEE265

M AE2001-2002%

Telephone E5% : (852) 2593 7530
http://www.cr-power.com
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